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CORPORATE PROFILE
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Man Sang International Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) have two existing lines of business: (i) purchasing,
processing, assembling, merchandising and wholesale distribution of pearls
and jewellery products (the “Pearls and Jewellery Segment”); and (ii) property
development and investment (the “Property Segment”). The shares of the
Company have been listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited since 1997 under the stock code of 938.

The Group is one of the world’s largest merchants, purchasers and processors of
pearls. The processing, manufacturing and assembling of pearls and jewellery
products are conducted at the Group’s production facilities, Man Sang
Industrial City, which is located in Shenzhen, the People Republic of China
(the “PRC”). There are 27 blocks of buildings with total gross floor area of
approximately 76,000 square meters within Man Sang Industrial City.

With the Group’s extensive experience in the pearl business gained over the
past years, the Group has, together with a few other major pearls and jewellery
companies in the PRC, developed a large-scale international pearl and jewellery
trading platform, which is known as China Pearls and Jewellery City (“CP&J
City”) and is located in Zhuji of Zhejiang, the PRC, since 2006. CP&]J City is
designed to be the world’s largest pearl and jewellery trading platform which
provides facilities for processing, manufacturing, research and development,
and trading of pearl and jewellery products, as well as related supporting
services including logistics, electronic commerce, exhibition and convention,
accommodation, catering and entertainment.

During the year, the Group completed a transaction to further acquire 7%
equity interests in CP&J City from a minority shareholder which has increased
the Group’s equity interests in CP&J City from 55% to 62%. With the proven
track record of CP&J City in the past years and the prospects of the property
development business in the PRC, it is expected that such acquisition will have
positive effect to the future prospect of the Group. The Group will continue to
explore merger and acquisition opportunities in the property sector in the PRC
in order to maximise shareholders’ value in the coming future.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
I§EY FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
R R B y
Year ended 31 March ;ﬂ 4
®WE3H31H IL4EE
Consolidated Income Statement AWk 2013 2012 Change %
20134F 20124F B
(Restated)
(8 51)

Revenue (HK$’000) WA (FT) 461,185 370,236 90,949 +24.6%
Gross profit (HK$’000) BA (THIT) 151,488 157,150 (5,662) -3.6%
Profit before income tax (HK$’000) B BT A3 B s 1] (F-#5oC) 112,077 122,209 (10,132) -8.3%
Profit for the year (HK$°000) AAE A (T-H#5T) 64,267 80,097 (15,830) -19.8%
Profit attributable to the equity holders A</ &] B

of the Company (HK$’000) JREA Vs A (T ot 48,244 54,845 (6,601) -12.0%
Basic earnings per share (HK cent) g IR AT R (A 3.78 4.42 (0.64) -14.5%
Diluted earnings per share (HK cent) g AR 28 R (S 1) 3.78 437 (0.59) -13.5%
Full year dividend per share (HK cent) — 24FE4: AR (HEAl) 18 25 7 -28.0%

As at 31 March

R3H31H
Consolidated Balance Sheet HEAREAREE 2013 2012 Change %
20134 20124 ]
(Restated)
2(«E§U )
Net assets (HK$’000) % HE (T T) 1,002,842 1,419,270 (416,428) -29.3%
Cash and cash equivalents (HK$°000)  Hi4: K25 [F B4 (T-HEIT) 440,770 605,099 (164,329) -27.2%
Borrowings (HK$°000) R (FUsI0) 327,600 184,500 143,100 +77.6%
Shareholders’ equity (HK$°000) SRR 5 (T3 0T) 863,094 1,270,576 (407,482) -32.1%
KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS
F B bR
2013 2012 Change
20134 20124F S
(Restated)
(Ke= )
Gross profit margin®" BAIFO 32.8% 42.4% -9.6 percentage points
-9.6 I 71 73 i
Return on equity® &R A DT 5.6% 43%  +1.3 percentage points
+1.3M1H 52
Current ratio (times)® MBI () ® 1.3 2.0
Gearing ratio® HARA MRS 0.33 0.13
@) Gross profits margin represents gross profit divided by revenue of the Group. (1) TARIEALEETHBRLIA ©

) Return on equity is defined as the ratio of profit attributable to equity holders of ~ (2) JE PR 4 ] R i A D e R A s R B DA A
the Company to total equity attributable to equity holders of the Company. 28D HUREAG AR 25 o

3) Current ratio is defined as the ratio of total current assets to total current  (3) LB L AR I B AR R LA B B AR
liabilities. #e

) Gearing ratio represents total borrowings, including current and non-current  (4) B L R AR B AR (LTS B S Pk
portion, divided by total equity. TRy ) bR AAERE R
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HIGHLIGHTS OF THE YEAR 2012/2013
2012720134 RS %

@ 10 - 13 MAY 2012

20124E5H10H £13H
Participated in Jewelry Shanghai 2012

20 iR H AR e
(™% 1-4]JUNE 2012

201256 H1H £4H
- Participated in JCK Show — Las Vegas, the United States
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(% 21-24JUNE 2012
20124E6H21H %24 H
Participated in June Hong Kong Jewellery & Gem Fair
ZHEANAFERE MRS S

™ 17 AUGUST 2012
2012%:8H17H
2012 Annual General Meeting at The Royal Garden
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20124E9H 19H %25H
Participated in September Hong Kong Jewellery & Gem Fair
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HIGHLIGHTS OF THE YEAR 2012/2013
2012/20134E RFHHE

Photo taken in Hong Kong Internaffonal Jewell

R A A 7 [ PR PR

%) 29 NOVEMBER 2012 - 2 DECEMBER 2012
20124¢11H29H £20124¢12H2H

Participated in Hong Kong International Jewelry Manufacturers’ Show
22 B 7 s I R TR B R R SE

%) 18 DECEMBER 2012
20124£12H18H
Completion of the disposal of the entire issued share capital of
Eternal Noble Group Limited
SERGH B K AR A BRI A A 2T e BT IR

%) 3 JANUARY 2013
20134£1H3H
Completion of the acquisition of 7% of the issued share capital of China
Pearls and Jewellery City Holdings Limited
S BRI v R i R R I A PR B 2 B AT IRAR 7%

%) 23 - 26 JANUARY 2013
20131 H23H £26H
Participated in the 23rd International Jewellery Show in Tokyo
S H A HURt 5523 Jie [ R R

% 5-9 MARCH 2013
2013%3H5H®9H

Participated in Hong Kong International Jewellery Show
S5 B 7 s I % o
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EN £ 8

e —

On behalf of the board of directors, I am pleased to present the results of Man

Sang International Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2013 (“FY13”).

PERFORMANCE

The Group recorded profit attributable to equity holders of the Company of
HK$48.2 million and basic earnings per share of 3.78 HK cents in FY13, as
compared to a profit of HK$54.8 million and basic earnings per share of 4.42
HK cents for the year ended 31 March 2012 (“FY12”).

The Group’s revenue increased by HK$91.0 million or 24.6% from HK$370.2
million in FY12 to HK$461.2 million in FY 13, while the gross profit decreased
by HKS$5.7 million or 3.6% from HK$157.2 million in FY12 to HK$151.5
million in FY13.

The past financial year has been a year full of challenges. Weak economic
conditions and continuing uncertainty affect several of the markets in which the
Group operates. In particular, prolonged European debt concerns and a sluggish
economic recovery in the United States seriously affected confidence in the
global financial market.

Cheng Chung Hing % {5 8l
Chairman T
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12 2013 4F B AR ¥ 461,200,000 75 7C > 15 1
£4591,000,000 # 7T 5% 24.6% > T F HIl 12012 4F
W AR B 157,200,000 75 I Bk 2 2013 4F B BUAF
B 151,500,000 %5 JG - 8 & £ 5,700,000 #5 G 5%
3.6% °

A 25— {8 A AR P TR PR o AEIRER R SS
BB R R AR - TR A AL E AR
Wi SHREE HEEE R T > RBAEHE
AP A8 > BRI BRIk A 1
AL o



CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
ENE 4

In China, inflation and appreciation of the Renminbi (“RMB”) continuously
affects the production and overhead costs and labour costs, all of which caused
downward pressure on gross profit margin. On the other hand, there are signs
that the Chinese government may start to loosen controls on bank’s lending
and deposit rates which hopefully will increase the funding available for
property purchasers and hence it is expected to have a positive impact on the
development and property sale in the PRC.

DIVIDEND

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend of 2 HK cents
per ordinary share to shareholders whose names appear on the register of
members on 28 August 2013. The said final dividend, subject to the approval of
shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting to be held on 20 August
2013, will be paid on 6 September 2013.

An interim dividend of 1 HK cent per ordinary share and a special dividend of
15 HK cents were declared for the six months ended 30 September 2012 and
were paid to shareholders on 28 December 2012.

PROSPECTS

Looking forward, the ongoing uncertainties of the global economy will
continue to constrain overall customer demand. In addition, the operating
environment for manufacturing in Mainland China remains challenging with
increases in wages, inflation and appreciation of the RMB. Nevertheless,
management will remain prudent and observant in managing the Group’s
investment portfolio and businesses to minimise these adverse impacts.
Notwithstanding, the Group will continue to explore new business
opportunities so arising in order to maximise shareholder’s value in the coming
future, in particular the property sector where the Group has been focusing in
the past years. With the solid foundation we have cultivated over the years, we
are confident to achieve sustainable growth and create maximum returns for our
shareholders.

APPRECIATION

I would like to take this opportunity to express my heartfelt gratitude to all
our shareholders, customers and other business partners for their long-term
attention and support to the Group over the years. I would also like to thank the
senior management team and all staff of the Group for their dedication and hard
work to the Group during the past year.

Cheng Chung Hing
Chairman
Hong Kong, 25 June 2013
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B B o s 520

FINANCIAL OVERVIEW

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Man Sang International Limited (the
“Company”) is pleased to report the results of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2013 (“FY13”).
During FY 13, the audited consolidated profit attributable to equity holders of
the Company was HK$48.2 million (year ended 31 March 2012, as adjusted
(“FY'12”): HK$54.8 million), representing a decrease of 12.0% as compared
with that in FY'12. Basic earnings per share was 3.78 HK cents (FY12: 4.42 HK
cents), representing a decrease of 14.5% as compared with that in FY12.

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year under review, the global economy remained subdued and
continued to be influenced by the Eurozone banking and sovereign debt crises.
Consumer and investor confidence remained weak in the United States and
Europe. Notwithstanding this, major countries in the Asia region have been able
to record economic growth which has stablised the economic environment in
Asia.

China continued to be Asia’s leading economic performer, notwithstanding
recent statistics show that the economic growth in China has slowed down as
a result of the weakening global economy as well as the various fiscal policies
adopted by the Chinese government in 2011 with an aim to cool down the
overheating economy. In particular, cooling measures have been implemented
by the Chinese government in the property sector in response to the fast rising
property prices. In response to the risk of economic slowdown, the Chinese
government not only has implemented a series of policies to expand domestic
demand, but has also loosened controls on bank’s lending and deposit rates.

During the year, the difficult economic environment in Europe has weakened
the demand for pearls and jewellery products which adversely affected the
revenue of the Group. The continuous surge in operating expenses in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) including but not limited to wages and
materials costs, has put additional pressure on the profitability of the pearl and
jewellery operation. In order to maintain competitiveness, the Group continues
to devote efforts on cost control measures, as well as the improvisation in the
operation to maximise efficiency and hence minimising costs.

For the property sector, the revenue generated from sales of properties in the
China Pearls and Jewellery City (“CP&J City”) increased strongly during
the year which was attributable to the completion of a block of residential
apartments and factory buildings where the relevant contracted sales were
recognised in FY13. Rental income contributed by CP&J City continued to
grow due to the improvement in occupancy rate as well as rental rates during
the year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
o L ) i L A

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Group currently has two major lines of businesses: (i) purchasing,
processing, assembling, merchandising and wholesale distribution of pearls
and jewellery products (the “Pearl and Jewellery Segment”); and (ii) property
development and investment (the “Property Segment”).

Revenue and Gross Profit

Pearl and Jewellery Segment

Net sales attributable to the Pearl and Jewellery Segment decreased by
HK$38.6 million or 12.9% from HK$300.0 million for FY12 to HK$261.4
million for FY13. Such decrease was primarily attributable to a drop in net
sales of saltwater pearls and assembled jewellery. Saltwater pearls contributed
HK$73.3 million (FY12: HK$79.0 million) to the Group’s net sales in FY13,
representing a decrease of HK$6.3 million from FY12. Assembled jewellery
contributed the most to the Group’s net sales in FY'13 with HK$176.0 million
(FY12: HK$213.9 million) in FY13, representing a decrease of HK$37.9
million from FY'12. Such decrease was mainly due to an increasing competition
and shrinking demand in luxury products, resulting from the aftermath of
the global economic crisis and the persistent austerity measures imposed
throughout European countries.

Net sales of saltwater pearls and assembled jewellery accounted for 28.0%
(FY12:26.3%) and 67.3% (FY 12: 71.3%) of the total net sales, respectively to
the Pearl and Jewellery Segment in FY13.

During the year under review, Europe was the Group’s largest market, in
which net sales decreased by HK$44.2 million or 29.4% to HK$106.3 million
(FY12: HK$150.5 million). Net sales in North America were HK$67.5 million,
representing a decrease of 12.3% compared to HK$77.0 million in FY12. Net
sales in Hong Kong and other Asian countries were HK$79.0 million in FY13,
representing a positive growth of 24.4% as compared to HK$63.5 million in
FY12.

Gross profit decreased by HK$30.6 million or 27.1% to HK$82.5 million in
FY13 (FY12: HK$113.1 million). The decrease was mainly due to a drop in
gross profit margin by 6.1 percentage points during FY13 (FY13: 31.6%;
FY12: 37.7%) in addition to the decrease in net sales as discussed above. The
shrink in gross profit margin was mainly attributable to the surge in cost of
materials and labour costs in the PRC.
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Property Segment

Revenue from the Property Segment was HK$199.8 million (FY12: HK$70.2
million) during FY13, which comprised sales of properties of HK$159.4
million (FY12: HK$32.8 million) and rental income of HK$40.4 million
(FY12: HK$37.4 million). China Pearls and Jewellery City (“CP&J City”)
continues to contribute the most to the performance in the Property Segment,
which accounted for 93.3% (FY12: 83.5%) of total revenue to the Property
Segment in FY13.

Revenue from sales of properties increased by HK$126.6 million or 386.0% to
HK$159.4 million (FY12: HK$32.8 million) in FY'13. The increase was mainly
due to the increase in net sales of newly completed residential apartment and
factory buildings in CP&J City. Rental income increased by HK$1.2 million or
9.8% to HK$13.4 million (FY12: HK$12.2 million) in FY13 as a result of the
improvement in occupancy rate and the upward adjustment in rental rates for
the existing tenants.

Gross profit attributable to the Property Segment increased by HK$24.9
million or 56.5% to HK$69.0 million (FY12: HK$44.1 million) in FY13.
The increase was mainly attributable to the sales of the newly completed
residential apartments and factory buildings. The gross profit margin decreased
by 28.3 percentage points to 34.5% in FY13 from 62.8% in FY12, mainly
due to the effect of a bulk sales arrangement scheme where certain properties
were being sold at deep discounts. The properties involved in such bulk sales
arrangement scheme were market centre units that are less marketable due to
their geographical location.

Selling and Administrative Expenses (the “S&A expenses”)

S&A expenses mainly comprised selling expenses of HK$17.5 million
(FY12: HK$23.3 million) and administrative expenses of HK$84.9 million
(FY12: HK$76.8 million). S&A expenses increased by HK$2.3 million or
2.3% to HK$102.4 million (FY12: HK$100.1 million) in FY13, as a result
of the combined effect of (i) a decrease of HK$14.5 million in the reversal of
impairment of trade and other receivables to HK$3.8 million (FY12: HK$18.3
million) in FY13; (ii) an impairment loss of prepaid lease payment of HK$5.7
million was recognised during FY'13; (iii) share option expense of HK$11.3
million was recorded during FY'12 for options granted to a consultant in return
for certain services provided by the consultant to the Group; and (iv) a decrease
by HK$4.8 million in sales commission and exhibition expense as compared to
last year.
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Profit Attributable to Equity Holders of the Company

The profit attributable to equity holders of the Company decreased by HK$6.6
million or 12.0% to HK$48.2 million (FY12: HK$54.8 million) in FY'13, which
was primarily due to the net effect of (i) the reduction in operating profits in the
Pearl and Jewellery Segment as a result of the drop in turnover couple with the
increase in costs of labour and materials; and (ii) an one-off consultant share
option expense of HK$11.3 million was recorded in FY12.

Material Acquisition and Disposal

During the year, the Group acquired an additional 7% of the issued shares of
China Pearls and Jewellery City Holdings Limited (“CPJ HK”) together with
the loan in the amount of HK$17.8 million owed by CPJ HK to the Group for
a purchase consideration of HK$28.4 million. As such, the Group increased in
the equity interest in the CPJ HK from 55% to 62%. Details of the disposal are
set out in note 42 of the consolidated financial statements.

During the year, the Group entered into a sale and purchase agreement with an
independent third party to dispose of the entire equity interest held by the Group
in Eternal Noble Limited and its subsidiaries (“Disposal Group”) together with
its sharecholder’s loan at an aggregate consideration of HK$194.3 million. The
Disposal Group would have been established for the purpose of developing
a mirco credit business in the PRC, however, the plan had been terminated
during the year. Details of the disposal are set out in note 41 of the consolidated
financial statements.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

As at 31 March 2013, the Group’s total equity, including non-controlling
interests, was HK$1,002.8 million (2012: HK$1,419.3 million), representing a
decrease of 29.3% from last year. The decrease was mainly attributable to the
payment of dividends amounted to HK$486.5 million during FY'13.

As at 31 March 2013, the Group had cash and bank balances of HK$440.8
million (2012: HK$605.1 million). Cash and bank balances were mainly
denominated in Hong Kong dollars, United States dollars and Chinese
Renminbi. The Group’s working capital or net current assets were HK$189.0
million (2012: HK$651.0 million). The current ratio, represented by the current
assets divided by the current liabilities, was 1.3 (2012: 2.0).

As at 31 March 2013, the Group’s total borrowings, which were denominated
in Hong Kong dollar and Chinese Renminbi, were HK$327.6 million (2012:
HK$184.5 million) and were interest-bearing. The Group does not currently use
any derivatives to manage interest rate risk. Gearing ratio, representing total
borrowings divided by total equity, was 0.33 (2012: 0.13).
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As at 31 March 2013, the Group had available banking facilities of HK$289.4
million (2012: HK$104.4 million) with various banks, of which the unused
banking facilities amounted to HK$109.4 million (2012: HK$104.4 million).
With the committed unused banking facilities in place and available cash
and cash equivalents, the Group has adequate financial resources to meet the
anticipated future liquidity requirements and capital expenditure commitment.

The Group’s borrowings and banking facilities were secured by certain
investment properties with an aggregate carrying amount of HK$442.5 million
(2012: HK$421.8 million).

Treasury Policy

The Group principally operates its businesses in Hong Kong and mainland
China. The Group is exposed to foreign exchange fluctuations from various
currencies, such as United States dollars and Chinese Renminbi, which were the
major foreign currencies transacted by the Group during FY12 and FY'13.

Since Hong Kong dollars remains pegged to the United States dollars within
a defined range, the Group is not exposed to any significant foreign exchange
risk against the United States dollars. The Group has subsidiaries operating
in mainland China, in which most of their transactions, including revenue,
expenses and other financing activities, are denominated in Chinese Renminbi.
The Group is not exposed to any significant foreign exchange transaction risk
in relation to Chinese Renminbi and has not entered into any foreign exchange
contract as hedging measures.

Notwithstanding the above, the Group is subject to foreign currency risk arising
from certain transactions which are dominated in other currencies, such as
Euro. The Group manages its foreign currency risk against other currencies by
closely monitoring the movement of the foreign currency rates and may use
hedging derivative, such as foreign currency forward contract, to manage its
foreign currency risk as appropriate.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 March 2013, the Group had contingent liabilities of HK$85.3
million (2012: HK$76.3 million) in respect of guaranteeing the mortgage for
certain purchasers of properties in CP&J City under mortgage collaboration
agreements with a bank in the PRC and certain investment properties with
carrying amount of HK$28.1 million have been pledged to a PRC bank to
secure a loan granted by the PRC bank to a third party (2012: Nil).

Human Resources

As at 31 March 2013, the Group had a total workforce of 914 (2012: 976), of
whom 59 (2012: 64) were based in Hong Kong. The total staff cost, including
directors’ emoluments, share options benefit and mandatory provident fund,
was approximately HK$77.9 million (2012: HK$83.1 million). Employees
were remunerated on the basis of their performance and experience.
Remuneration packages, including salary and year-end discretionary bonus,
were determined by reference to market conditions and individual performance.
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CHAIRMAN

Mr. CHENG Chung Hing, aged 52, has been an Executive Director and
the Chairman of the Company since 1997 and has been re-designated as a
Non-Executive Director of the Company since 6 October 2009. He provides
leadership to the Company, and, with the support from other members of the
Board, is responsible for the formulation and development of corporate policies
and business strategies, as well as the overall management of the Group. He
was awarded the “Young Industrialist Awards of Hong Kong 1997” by the
Federation of Hong Kong Industries and the “Distinguished International
Entrepreneur of the Year Award 1997 by San Francisco State University and
the “Chinese Outstanding Entrepreneur Award 2008” by the China Enterprise
Confederation and the China Enterprise Directors Association. He is currently
a member of the Guangxi Committee of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference and the Shenzhen Committee of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference, vice chairman of the China Chamber of
International Commerce, honorary life president of the Hong Kong Gemstone
Manufacturers’ Association Limited, foundation honorary chairman of the
Gem and Jewellery Committee of China General Chamber of Commerce and
honorary chairman of the Zhejiang Pearl Trade Association. He has over 30
years of experience in pearl and jewellery businesses. Mr. Cheng is currently a
director of China Metro-Rural Holdings Limited, a company listed on NYSE
MKT (ticker symbol: CNR). He is also a co-chairman and executive director of
China South City Holdings Limited (a company listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (stock code: 1668)). Mr. Cheng
is the younger brother of Mr. Cheng Tai Po and Mr. Cheng Sai.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. CHENG Tai Po, aged 61, has been an Executive Director and the Deputy
Chairman of the Company since 1997. He is responsible for the Group’s
pearl purchasing and processing, and has developed a special pearl processing
technique as well as a special grading system which is used by a large number
of the Group’s customers. Mr. Cheng is a board member of the Zhanjiang
Ocean University, the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) and a general
committee member of the Hong Kong Jewelry Manufacturers’ Association.
Over the years, Mr. Cheng has developed close working relationships with
many pearl suppliers which enable him to build up a strong and reliable supply
network. He has over 30 years of experience in pearl business. Mr. Cheng
is currently the vice chairman of the board of director of China Metro-Rural
Holdings Limited, a company listed on NYSE MKT (ticker symbol: CNR).
He is also a non-executive director of China South City Holdings Limited (a
company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1668)). He is the elder
brother of Mr. Cheng Chung Hing and Mr. Cheng Sai.

Ms. YAN Sau Man, Amy, aged 50, has been an Executive Director of the
Company since August 1997. She, together with other members of the Board, is
responsible for the overall management of the Group as well as the formulation,
development and implementation of the Group’s corporate policies, business
strategies and overall sales and marketing strategies. Ms. Yan has over 25 years
of experience in the selling and marketing of pearl and she also has extensive
experience in the jewellery business.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. LEE Kang Bor, Thomas, aged 59, was an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company since June 2004. He had been re-designated as an
Executive Director and appointed as the Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”) of
the Company with effect from 1 September 2009. He resigned as the CEO
of the Company on 31 March 2011 and has been re-designated as a Non-
Executive Director of the Company with effect from 1 April 2011. He has
over 15 years’ experience in business management, mergers and acquisitions,
financial advisory, accounting, taxation, and corporate advisory in Hong
Kong and China. He is currently an independent non-executive director of
Sparkle Roll Group Limited (a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 970)) and is also an independent non-executive director and chairman
of the audit committee and remuneration committee of CIG Yangtze Ports
PLC (a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 8233)). Mr. Lee
possesses various professional qualifications. He graduated from the University
of London with a bachelor’s degree and a master’s degree in laws, and was
called to the Bar of the Lincoln’s Inn in 1990. Mr. Lee is currently a member
of the Society of Trust and Estate Practitioners, The Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators in the United Kingdom and The Hong Kong
Institute of Chartered Secretaries. He is also a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants, the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong and the Hong Kong Institute
of Directors. Mr. Lee served as the president of the Taxation Institute of Hong
Kong from 1999 to 2002, and is currently serving as the president of the Asia-
Oceania Tax Consultants’ Association and a vice president of the Hong Kong
Professionals and Senior Executives Association.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. FUNG Yat Sang, aged 61, has been an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company since September 2009. He has over 30 years of
financial management experience and held senior management positions in
various multinational corporations in Hong Kong, Australia, Thailand and
China. Mr. Fung is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants in United Kingdom and a member of the CPA Australia.

Mr. KIU Wai Ming, aged 64, has been an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company since September 2004. He has been in the banking
and finance field for over 30 years. He is currently an executive director and
the chief executive officer of Walker Group Holdings Limited (a company
listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1386)). He is also an independent
non-executive director of CCB International (Holdings) Ltd. Mr. Kiu holds a
bachelor’s degree in economics and marketing from Louisiana State University,
the United States of America.

Mr. LAU Chi Wah, Alex, aged 49, has been an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company since September 2004. Mr. Lau is a member of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. He holds a bachelor’s
degree in accounting from University of East Anglia, United Kingdom. Mr.
Lau manages initial public offerings and fund-raising exercises and advises
listed companies on mergers and acquisitions, takeovers, buyouts and other
corporate transactions. He has over 25 years of experience in corporate finance
and accounting.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. LEUNG Alex, aged 34, is the Chief Financial Officer and Company
Secretary of the Group. Mr. Leung had worked in two international
accounting firms in Hong Kong before joining the Group in February 2012.
He is responsible for the financial and accounting management, corporate
governance affairs and merger and acquisition activities of the Group. Mr.
Leung is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a member of the CPA Australia. He has more than 10 years of
experience in auditing, accounting and corporate management.

Mr. CHENG Sai, aged 56, is the General Manager of Man Hing Industry
Development (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd (“Man Hing”). He is responsible for the
overall operations of Man Hing. Mr. Cheng has over 20 years of experience in
pearl business. He is the brother of Mr. Cheng Chung Hing and Mr. Cheng Tai
Po.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

Man Sang International Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) recognises the importance of achieving the highest
standard of corporate governance consistent with the needs and requirements
of its businesses and the best interest of all of its stakeholders, and the board
of directors (the ‘Board”) is fully committed to doing so. The Board believes
that high standards of corporate governance provide a framework and solid
foundation for the Group to manage business risks, enhance transparency,
achieve high standard of accountability and protect stakeholders’ interests.

The Group has adopted a corporate governance statement of policy which
provides guidance on the application of the corporate governance principles on
the Group, with reference to the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the
“CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”).

Save as the deviation from the code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code as further
detailed in the heading “Non-Executive Director” below, in the opinion of the
directors of the Company (the “Director(s)”), the Company has complied with
all code provisions as set out in the CG Code throughout the year ended 31
March 2013 and, where appropriate, the applicable recommended best practices
of the CG Code.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules as the code of conduct for dealing in securities of the Company
by the Directors. All Directors have confirmed, upon specific enquiries made
by the Company, that they have complied with the required standard set out in
the Model Code during the year ended 31 March 2013. To ensure Directors’
dealings in the securities of the Company (the “Securities”) are conducted
in accordance with the Model Code and securities code of the Company, a
Director is required to notify the Chairman or the Deputy Chairman in writing
and obtain a written acknowledgement from the Chairman or the Deputy
Chairman prior to any dealings in the Securities.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for the overall management of the Group, which
includes leadership and control of the Company and oversees the Group’s
businesses, strategic decisions, internal control, risk management and
performances. The management team is delegated with the authority and
responsibility by the Board for the day-to-day management of the Group. The
delegated functions and work tasks are periodically reviewed. Major corporate
matters that are specifically delegated by the Board to the management include
(1) the preparation of interim and annual reports and announcements for the
Board’s approval before publishing; (2) implementation of adequate systems
of internal controls and risk management procedures; and (3) compliance
with relevant statutory and regulatory requirements and rules and regulations.
It is the responsibility of the Board to determine the appropriate corporate
governance practices applicable to the Company’s circumstances and to ensure
processes and procedures are in place to achieve the Company’s corporate
governance objectives.

The Board has maintained the necessary balance of skills and experience
appropriate for the business requirements and objectives of the Group and for
the exercise of independent judgement. Each Director with various professional
qualification, experience and related financial management expertise have
contributed to the effective direction of the Company and provided adequate
checks and balances to safeguard to the interests of both the Group and the
shareholders. Hence, the Board believes that the current Board composition
satisfy the balance of expertise, skills and experience to the corporate
governance requirements of the Group as well as the ongoing development and
management of its business activities.

The Board currently comprises two Executive Directors, namely Mr. Cheng
Tai Po (Deputy Chairman) and Ms. Yan Sau Man, Amy, two Non-Executive
Directors, namely Mr. Cheng Chung Hing (Chairman) and Mr. Lee Kang Bor,
Thomas, and three Independent Non-Executive Directors, namely Mr. Fung
Yat Sang, Mr. Kiu Wai Ming and Mr. Lau Chi Wah, Alex.

On 3 April 2012, Mr. Zhang Huaqiao resigned as an Executive Director and
the Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”) of the Company to pursue his personal
businesses.

The biographies of the Directors are set out in “Profile of Directors and Senior
Management” on pages 19 to 21 of this annual report.
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The Board meets regularly to discuss the overall strategy as well as the
operation and financial performance of the Company, and to review and
approve the Company’s interim and annual results. During the year, four Board
meetings were held and the attendance of each Director at the Board meetings is
set out in the section headed “Board and Committees Meetings” of this Report.

Regular Board meetings for each year are scheduled in advance to facilitate
maximum attendance of Directors. All Directors are given an opportunity to
include matters for discussion in the agenda. The Company Secretary assists the
Chairman in preparing the agenda for meetings to comply with all applicable
rules and regulations. The agenda and the accompanying Board papers are
normally sent to Directors at least three days before the intended date of a Board
meeting. Draft minutes of each Board meeting are circulated to Directors for
their comment before being tabled at the next Board meeting for approval. All
minutes are kept by the Company Secretary and are open for inspection at any
reasonable time on reasonable notice by any Director.

Pursuant to the bye-laws of the Company, all Directors appointed to fill a
causal vacancy shall hold office only until the next following general meeting
of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election at the meeting. At
each annual general meeting, one third of the Directors for the time being shall
retire from office by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

Save for the family relationships disclosed in the Profile of Directors and Senior
Management set out on pages 19 to 21 of this annual report, the Directors do not
have material financial, business or other relationships with one another.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The roles of the Chairman and the CEO of the Group are clearly defined
and segregated to ensure independence and proper checks and balances. The
Chairman focuses on the business strategy and direction of the Company
and has executive responsibilities, provides leadership for the Board and
ensures proper and effective functioning of the Board in discharging of
its responsibilities. The CEO is accountable to the Board for the overall
implementation of the Company’s strategies and the co-ordination of overall
business operations.
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Following the resignation of Mr. Zhang Huagqiao as the CEO of the Company
on 3 April 2012, there is no officer carrying the title of CEO up to the date
of this annual report. In the absence of the CEO, the duties of the CEO have
been/will continue to be undertaken by other executive members of the Board,
namely Mr. Cheng Tai Po and Ms. Yan Sau Man, Amy, therefore, in the
opinion of the Directors, the roles of the Chairman and the CEO have been/will
continue to be properly segregated in the absence of an officer carrying the title
of CEO.

The Company is in process of identifying a suitable candidate with appropriate
experience as CEO to carry out its duties of overall implementation of the
Company’s strategies and the co-ordination of overall business operations.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

According to the code provision A.4.1 as set out in the CG Code, non-executive
directors should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election.
Although one of the Non-Executive Directors, Mr. Lee Kang Bor, Thomas, and
all three Independent Non-Executive Directors, namely Mr. Fung Yat Sang,
Mr. Kiu Wai Ming and Mr. Lau Chi Wah, Alex have not been appointed for
a specific term, they will all retire at the annual general meeting at least once
every three years and will be eligible for re-election in accordance with the CG
Code. In the opinion of the Directors, the retirement of each Non-Executive
Director at the annual general meeting at least once every three years shall have
the same effect of appointing them with a specific term of three years.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has complied with the requirements under Rules 3.10(1), 3.10(2)
and 3.10A of the Listing Rules. The Company has received confirmation of
independence from all three Independent Non-Executive Directors, namely Mr.
Fung Yat Sang, Mr. Kiu Wai Ming and Mr. Lau Chi Wah, Alex in accordance
with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

The Board has reviewed the independence of all Independent Non-Executive
Directors and concluded that all of them are independent within the definition
of the Listing Rules. Furthermore, the Board is not aware of the occurrence of
any events which would cause it to believe that the independence of any of the
Independent Non-Executive Directors has been impaired up to the date of this
report.
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DIRECTORS’ INDUCTION AND CONTINUOUS
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Upon appointing a new Director, each new Director receives an induction
package covering business operations, policy and procedures of the Company
as well as the general, statutory and regulatory obligations of being a Director
to ensure that he/she is sufficiently aware of his/her responsibilities under the
Listing Rules and other relevant regulatory requirements.

The Directors, on an ongoing basis, will receive amendments to or updates on
the relevant laws, rules and regulations. In addition, the Company encourages
the Directors to enrol in a wide range of professional development courses
and seminars relating to the Listing Rules, Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
and corporate governance practices so that they can continuously improve
their relevant knowledge and skills. The Company has organised a seminar
in June 2012 on updated laws and regulations, board effectiveness and risk
management. The Company has also provided reading materials to all Directors
to develop and refresh their professional knowledge.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

An Audit Committee has been established by the Board with specific written
terms of reference and all members of the Audit Committee are Independent
Non-Executive Directors. Pursuant to the Audit Committee’s terms of
reference, the Audit Committee is authorised to commit Company funds in
order to obtain advice from outside legal counsel, accountants, investigatory
services or other expert advice. Details of the authority and responsibilities of
the Audit Committee are available on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange.

The Audit Committee comprises three Independent Non-Executive Directors,
namely Mr. Fung Yat Sang, Mr. Kiu Wai Ming and Mr. Lau Chi Wah, Alex.
Mr. Fung Yat Sang is the chairman of the Audit Committee.

During the year ended 31 March 2013, the Audit Committee held three
meetings to review the annual results for the year ended 31 March 2012
and the interim results for the six months ended 30 September 2012 before
their submission to the Board and monitored the integrity of such financial
statements. In addition, the Audit Committee also had a private meeting with
the independent auditor without the presence of management to discuss any
area of concern. The attendance of each member of the Audit Committee is set
out in the section headed “Board and Committees Meetings” of this Report.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

A Remuneration Committee has been established by the Board with specific
written terms of reference and the majority of the members of the Remuneration
Committee are Independent Non-Executive Directors. Details of the authority
and responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee are available on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The Remuneration Committee comprises three Independent Non-Executive
Directors, namely Mr. Fung Yat Sang, Mr. Kiu Wai Ming and Mr. Lau Chi
Wah, Alex, one Non-Executive Director, namely Mr. Cheng Chung Hing, and
one Executive Director, namely Mr. Cheng Tai Po. Mr. Kiu Wai Ming is the
chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

During the year ended 31 March 2013, the Remuneration Committee held one
meeting to approve the remuneration packages and performance bonuses for
the Directors and senior management of the Company. The attendance of each
member of the Remuneration Committee is set out in the section headed “Board
and Committees Meetings” of this Report.

Details of the amount of Directors’ emoluments for the year ended 31 March
2013 are set out in Note 13 to the financial statements.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

A Nomination Committee has been established by the Board with specific
terms of reference. The Nomination Committee is responsible for, amongst
other things, identifying individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members, considering the reappointment of the Directors and succession
planning for Directors and making recommendations to the Board in respect
of the aforesaid matters. Details of the authority and responsibilities of the
Nomination Committee are available on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange.

The Nomination Committee comprises three Independent Non-Executive
Directors, namely Mr. Fung Yat Sang, Mr. Kiu Wai Ming and Mr. Lau Chi
Wah, Alex, one Non-Executive Director, namely Mr. Cheng Chung Hing, and
one Executive Director, namely Mr. Cheng Tai Po. Mr. Lau Chi Wah, Alex is
the chairman of the Nomination Committee.

During the year ended 31 March 2013, the Nomination Committee has
reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board and concluded that
members of the Board has possessed the expertise and independence to carry
out the Board’s functions and responsibilities.
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BOARD AND COMMITTEES MEETINGS

The individual attendance records of each Director at the meetings of the Board,
Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee during the year ended 31
March 2013 are set out below:

wHEghLEEEHR
BAE2013F3H3IHIEFE  KEFHFES
& BT B MO B & ek 2 WA
FLERESA T

Audit  Remuneration

Board Committee Committee

Name of Director HHES HEG HHRE® PMZEE G
Mr. Cheng Chung Hing B R LS A 4/4 - 1/1
Mr. Cheng Tai Po RIS 4/4 - 1/1
Mr. Zhang Huagiao* RACAG Sk * 0/0 - -
Ms. Yan Sau Man, Amy W75 E /N E 4/4 _ _
Mr. Lee Kang Bor, Thomas ZEERI S 3/4 - -
Mr. Fung Yat Sang WA e 4/4 33 1/1
Mr. Kiu Wai Ming EHEA S 4/4 3/3 1/1
Mr. Lau Chi Wah, Alex Bl HE e 4/4 3/3 11
* Mr. Zhang Huagjiao resigned as Executive Director and CEO of the Company on * BRALAGSCAE AN 20124F4 A 3 H BHT AN R T E

3 April 2012

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Board is responsible for overseeing the preparation of financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2013 which gives a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Group as at 31 March 2013, and of the results and cash flows
for year then ended. In preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2013, the Board has selected appropriate accounting policies, applied
them consistently in accordance with the Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards which are pertinent to its operations and relevant to the financial
statements, made judgements and estimates that are prudent and reasonable,
and ensured the preparation of the financial statements on the going concern
basis.

The Group endeavours to present a balanced, clear and comprehensible
assessment of the Group’s performance, position and prospects. The interim
and annual results of the Company are announced in a timely manner within the
limit of two months and three months, respectively, after the end of the relevant
periods in accordance with the Listing Rules.

The Directors have acknowledged their responsibility for preparing all
information and representation contained in the financial statements of the
Company for the year ended 31 March 2013.
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AUDITOR’'S REMUNERATION
During the year under review, the remuneration paid/payable to
PricewaterhouseCoopers is set out as follows:
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Services rendered Fi 3 438 R 5 Fee paid/payable
S IR dii]

HK$’000

Tt

Audit of financial statements WAL AR 1,400
Agreed-upon procedures on interim results TR LT 350
Financial and tax due diligence WIS R B TS S i £ 1,514
Other non-audit services HoAth I FAZ RS 102
3,366

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges that it has overall responsibility for the design
and implementation of internal controls which covers financial reporting,
operations, compliance and risk management of the Company, as well as
continuous monitoring the effectiveness of such internal controls. The Board
has delegated such responsibility to the management of the Company. The
management, under the supervision of the Board, has established an on-going
process for identifying, evaluating and managing significant risks faced by the
Group.

The Audit Committee reviews the internal controls that are significant to the
Group on an on-going basis. The Audit Committee also considers the adequacy
of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the Group’s accounting
and financial reporting function, as well as their training programmes and
budgets.

During the year, the Company has engaged an external adviser to review its
internal control procedures and make recommendations to the Board any
improvements that can be made to the existing internal control procedures. The
review covers the effectiveness of material controls on financial and operational
control as well as risk management functions across the Group. The internal
control and accounting system of the Group have been in place and functioning
effectively for the year under review.

The Board is satisfied that the internal control system in place covering all
material controls including financial, operational and compliance controls and
risk management functions for the year under review and up to the date of
issuance of the annual report is reasonably effective and adequate.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Leung Alex has been the Company Secretary of the Company since
February 2012. He is a full time employee of the Company and has adequate
working knowledge on the Company to discharge his duty as the Company
Secretary. Mr. Leung reports to the Chairman of the Company and is
responsible for advising the Board on corporate governance matters. For the
year under review, Mr. Leung has confirmed that he has taken no less than 15
hours of relevant professional training.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Procedures for Shareholders to Convene a Special General
Meeting (“SGM™)

Pursuant to the Company’s bye-laws and the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda
(the “Companies Act”), registered Shareholders holding not less than one-tenth
(10%) of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at
general meetings of the Company (the “SGM Requisitionists™) can deposit a
written request to convene a SGM at the registered office of the Company (the
“Registered Office”), which is presently situated at Clarendon House, 2 Church
Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda. The SGM Requisitionists must state in their
request(s) the objects of the SGM and such request(s) must be signed by all the
SGM Requisitionists and may consist of several documents in like form, each
signed by one or more of the SGM Requisitionists.

The Share Registrars will verify the SGM Requisitionists’ particulars in the
SGM Requisitionists’ request. Promptly after confirmation from the Share
Registrars that the SGM Requisitionists’ request is in order, the Company
Secretary will arrange with the Board to convene a SGM by serving
sufficient notice to all the registered Shareholders in accordance with all the
relevant statutory and regulatory requirements. On the contrary, if the SGM
Requisitionists’ request is verified not in order, the SGM Requisitionists will be
advised of the outcome and a SGM will not be convened as requested.

The SGM Requisitionists, or any of them representing more than one-half of
the total voting rights of all of them, may themselves convene a SGM if within
twenty-one (21) days of the deposit of the SGM Requisitionists’ request, the
Board does not proceed duly to convene a SGM provided that any SGM so
convened is held within three (3) months from the date of the original SGM
Requisitionists’ request. A SGM so convened by the SGM Requisitionists
shall be convened in the same manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which
meetings are to be convened by the Company.
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Procedures for Shareholders to Put Forward Proposals at a General
Meeting

Pursuant to the Companies Act, either any number of the registered
Shareholders holding not less than one-twentieth (5%) of the paid-up capital of
the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company
(the “Requisitionists™), or not less than 100 of such registered Shareholders,
can request the Company in writing to (a) give to Shareholders entitled to
receive notice of the next general meeting notice of any resolution which
may properly be moved and is intended to be moved at that meeting; and (b)
circulate to Shareholders entitled to receive notice of the next general meeting
any statement of not more than 1,000 words with respect to the matter referred
to in any proposed resolution or the business to be dealt with at that meeting.

The requisition signed by all the Requisitionists may consist of several
documents in like form, each signed by one or more of the Requisitionists; and
it must be deposited at the Registered Office with a sum reasonably sufficient
to meet the Company’s relevant expenses, not less than six weeks before the
meeting in case of a requisition requiring notice of a resolution or not less than
one week before the meeting in the case of any other requisition. Provided that
if an AGM is called for a date six weeks or less after the requisition has been
deposited, the requisition though not deposited within the time required shall be
deemed to have been properly deposited for the purposes thereof.

Shareholders’ Enquires and Proposals

Shareholders should direct their enquiries about their shareholdings to the
Company’s share registrar, Tricor Secretaries Limited, at 26th Floor, Tesbury
Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong, or call its customer service hotline
at (852) 2980 1333.

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the general meetings
of the Company.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

The annual general meeting provides an opportunity for shareholders to
exchange views with the Board. The chairman of the Board, the chairman
of Audit Committee and the chairman of Remuneration Committee had
attended the 2012 AGM of the Company held on 17 August 2012 to answer
shareholders’ questions.

The public are welcomed to give their comments and make enquiries through
the Company’s website and by means of emails to the investor relations
department (email address: ir-hk@man-sang.com). The management always
provides prompt responses to any such enquiries. During the year under
review, there are no changes in the Company’s Memorandum and Articles
of Association. An up-to-date consolidated version of the Company’s
Memorandum and Articles of Association is available on the Company’s
website.

By Order of the Board
CHENG Chung Hing
Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 June 2013
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The directors (the “Director(s)”) of Man Sang International Limited (the
“Company”) herein present their report together with the audited financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for
the year ended 31 March 2013.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. During the year, the
Group is principally engaged in two lines of businesses: (i) the purchasing,
processing, assembling, merchandising and wholesale distribution of pearls and
jewellery products; and (ii) property development and investment which covers
development, sales and leasing of properties.

The principal activities of the Company’s major subsidiaries are set out in note
46 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS
The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2013 are set out in the
consolidated income statement on page 46 of this annual report.

An interim dividend of 1 HK cent per ordinary share and a special dividend of
15 HK cents were declared for the six months ended 30 September 2012. The
Board recommended the payment of a final dividend of 2 HK cents per ordinary
share to shareholders whose names appear on the register of members on 28
August 2013, subject to the approval of shareholders at the forthcoming annual
general meeting to be held on 20 August 2013.

The proposed final dividend, if approved at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company to be held on Tuesday, 20 August 2013 (the “2013
AGM”), is expected to be paid on Friday, 6 September 2013 to shareholders
whose names appear on the register of members of the Company on Monday,
28 August 2013.

The register of members of the Company will be closed during the following
periods:

(a) from Friday, 16 August 2013 to Tuesday, 20 August 2013 (both days
inclusive), for the purpose of determining Shareholders’ entitlement to
attend and vote at the 2013 AGM, during which period no transfer of
shares will be registered. In order to qualify for attending and voting
at the 2013 AGM, all transfer documents accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch share
registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Secretaries Limited, at 26th Floor,
Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong not later than
4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 15 August 2013; and
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(b) from Monday, 26 August 2013 to Wednesday, 28 August 2013
(both days inclusive), for the purpose of determining shareholders’
entitlement to the proposed final dividend, during which period no
transfer of shares will be registered. In order to qualify for the proposed
final dividend, all transfer documents accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch share
registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Secretaries Limited at the address as set
out in sub-paragraph (i) above not later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 23
August 2013.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in reserves of the Company and of the Group during
the year are set out in Note 35 to the consolidated financial statements and in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

The Company’s net reserves available for distribution, calculated in accordance
with the provisions of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, as at 31 March 2013
amounted to HK$49,945,000 (2012: HK$388,809,000), which represented the
aggregation of contributed surplus of Nil (2012: HK$59,005,000) and retained
profits of HK$49,945,000 (2012: HK$329,804,000).

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the movements in share capital of the Company are set out in Note 33
to the consolidated financial statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES AND PROPERTY, PLANT
AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in investment properties and property, plant and
equipment of the Group during the year are set out in Notes 18 and 21 to the
consolidated financial statements, respectively.

BORROWINGS AND INTEREST CAPITALISED
Borrowings repayable on demand or within one year are classified under
current liabilities. Details of the borrowings are set out in Note 32 to the
consolidated financial statements. Interest and other borrowing costs
capitalised by the Group during the year are set out in Note 37 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DONATIONS
Donations made by the Group during the year amounted to HK$1,267,000.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A five-year financial summary of the Group is set out on page 145.
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DIRECTORS
The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this report
were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Cheng Tai Po (Deputy Chairman)
Ms. Yan Sau Man, Amy
Mr. Zhang Huagiao (resigned as an executive director and

chief executive officer on 3 April 2012)

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Cheng Chung Hing (Chairman)
Mr. Lee Kang Bor, Thomas

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Fung Yat Sang

Mr. Kiu Wai Ming

Mr. Lau Chi Wah, Alex

In accordance with article 87 of the Company’s bye-laws, at each annual
general meeting one-third of the Directors for the time being shall retire from
office by rotation. Accordingly, Mr. Cheng Chung Hing, Mr. Kiu Wai Ming
and Mr. Lau Chi Wah, Alex shall retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE AGREEMENT

Each of Mr. Cheng Chung Hing, Mr. Cheng Tai Po and Ms. Yan Sau Man, Amy
has entered into a service agreement with the Company on 31 August 2012 for
a fixed term of three years commencing on 1 September 2012. Such agreements
are determinable by either party serving not less than three months’ notice in
writing to the other.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors being proposed for re-election
at the forthcoming annual general meeting has entered into any service contract
with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the
Group within one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of Directors and senior management are set out on
pages 19 to 21.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Continuing Connected
Transactions” below and in Note 43 to the consolidated financial statements, no
other contract of significance to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries,
its holding companies or fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the business of the Company has been entered into or existed
during the year.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The following sharing of office agreement (the “Sharing of Office Agreement”)
was entered into by Man Sang Jewellery Company Limited (“Man Sang
Jewellery”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and China South
City Holdings Limited (“China South City”), a company being deemed as
a connected person of the Company by The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) at its discretion under Rule 14A.06 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”). As such, the
entering into the Sharing of Office Agreement between Man Sang Jewellery
and China South City and the transactions contemplated thereunder constituted
continuing connected transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.
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China South City 23 February 2011 3 years commencing  Suite 2205, 22/F Sun Life Tower, The $1,828,000
on 17 March 2011 to Gateway, 15 Canton Road, Tsimshatsui, (Note 1)
16 March 2014 Kowloon, Hong Kong with a total floor (BF5ED)
(both days inclusive)  area of approximately 3,873 square feet.
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conditioning fees, utilities fees and government rates.
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Rental fees, management fees, air-conditioning fees and utilities fees payable
by China South City to Man Sang Jewellery under the Sharing of Office
Agreement are calculated on a pro-rata basis with reference to the total floor
area of the shared premises over the total floor area of the premises rented by
Man Sang Jewellery.

An announcement was published on 23 February 2011 (the “Announcement”)
regarding the continuing connected transactions in accordance with the Listing
Rules.

The continuing connected transactions have been reviewed by the Independent
Non-Executive Directors of the Company who have confirmed that for the year
ended 31 March 2013, the continuing connected transactions have been entered
into (i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Company; (ii) on
normal commercial terms; and (iii) in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules, the Board engaged the auditor of
the Company to perform certain factual findings procedures in respect of the
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or
Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with reference to Practice
Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the
Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. The auditor has reported the factual findings on these
procedures to the Board and confirmed that for the year ended 31 March 2013,
the continuing connected transactions (i) are properly approved by the board
of Directors of the Company; (ii) have been entered into in accordance with
the terms of the agreements governing the transactions; and (iii) have not
exceeded the cap amounts for the year ended 31 March 2013 as set out in the
Announcement.

COMPETING BUSINESSES

As at 31 March 2013, none of the Directors had any interest in a business which
competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the Group’s
businesses.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME I Jie T )

Particulars of the Company’s share option scheme which was adopted on  Z/\ FlJA20024FE8 H 2 H R 4% 2 Ml IR =t (T %
2 August 2002 (the “Share Option Scheme”) are set out in note 34 to the  AEFTH ) Z 7RG R G2 & A B R M 5134 -
consolidated financial statements.

Details of the movement of the share options granted under the Share Option  4F JA HE 2 1 B HE ot #1952 11 22 G I HE 2 S Bl e I

Scheme during the year are set out below: HWHT -
Changes during the year
ENEH
Exercise Exercised Lapsed  Balance at
Price  Balance at during during 31 March
Grantees Date of grant Exercisable period HKS 1 April 2012 the year the year 2013 Notes
20124 20134
fififE  4HIAZ 3A3IAZ
ES-IN ity H Fr B #0 G NI FERKR Gifx W
Directors
HH
Mr. Cheng Chung Hing 2 May 2006 2 May 2006 to 0.253 1,000,000  (1,000,000) - -
1 May 2012
HORARLE A 200645 A2 H 200645 2 H &
201245 1H
Ms. Yan Sau Man, Amy 1 September 2009 1 September 2009 to 0.450 8,000,000 (8,000,000 - -
31 August 2012
AL/ME 2009491 1H 20094F9H 1H £
201248 /131H
Mr. Zhang Huaqiao 20 September 2011 20 September 2011 to 0.630 12,353,902 - (12,353,902) - 3
19 September 2016
AL 20114F9 /120 201149 20HE
20164F9 A 19H

21,353,902 (9,000,000) (12,353,902) -

Other Employees
HipfgER
27 August 2009 27 August 2009 to 0397 8,600,000 (6,850,000) (1,750,000) = 4
26 August 2012
20094F8 H27H 20094F8 H27H 2
201248 H26 H
2 March 2012 2 March 2012 to 0.610 3,000,000 = ~ 3,000,000 5
1 March 2017
20123 H2H 012F3H2HE
20174F3H1H

11,600,000  (6,850,000) (1,750,000) 3,000,000

32,953,902 (15,850,000 (14,103,902) 3,000,000
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Notes:
1. These share options represent personal interest held as beneficial owner.
2. The Company recorded the fair value of these share options as staff cost in the

consolidated income statement. The Company will record the nominal value of
the shares which is HK$0.10 per share issued pursuant to the exercise price of
the share options as additional share capital and the Company will record the
excess of the exercise price of the share options over nominal value of the shares
in its share premium account. Any share options which have lapsed or been
cancelled will be deducted from the balance of the share options.

3. Following the resignation of Mr. Zhang Huaqiao on 3 April 2012, all share
options granted to him lapsed.

4. All these options were vested on or before 26 August 2011.

S. 1,000,000 share options will be vested on the first anniversary of the date of
grant, another 1,000,000 share options will be vested on the second anniversary
of the date of grant and the remaining 1,000,000 share options will be vested on
the third anniversary of the date of grant.

GRANT OF CONSULTANT OPTION

On 23 August 2011, the Company entered into a consultancy services
agreement (the “Consultancy Services Agreement”) with Magical Asia Capital
Limited (the “Consultant”), an independent third party, where the Consultant
agreed to provide the following services to the Company: (i) advise and assist
the Group in seeking and identifying an appropriate target company for the
strategic co-operation in the development of micro credit businesses; (ii)
assist the Group in seeking and identifying a senior executive with appropriate
experience and reputation in the financial sector; and (iii) perform such other
duties as may be mutually agreed (if any).

In consideration of the provision of the services by the Consultant, the
Company agreed to grant option to the Consultant to subscribe for 49,415,608
shares of the Company (the “Consultant Option”, representing 4% of the issued
share capital of the Company on the date of grant of the Consultant Option) as
service fee paid to the Consultant. The exercise price of the Consultant Option
was fixed at HK$0.515 per share. The Consultant Option is exercisable in
whole or in part at any time within five years from 20 September 2011.

No Consultant Option was exercised or lapsed during the year.

IR 24 o A R 28 ] 39
20134F4k

L. EE G HA IS et 2PN e ]
NG o

2. AN F MG a5 S B HE 2 S SR(EAE By B TRA
FEAGE AR R o AN A EriTAR IR R 5
JRREAEAT 1T #5472 A I (0. 109 o0 2 Mk
13 2 TR RCAERHAMBEA » 1 AR w519 r 412
FERE AT (o A6 8 o 073 AT 1 22 25 B R A LA
T MR o AT B ARk B k8 2 SRR
I PR A48 % P 1B

3. TRALAE SE AR 20124F4 H 3 H BEAT4% - 1T
T2 T M R 2R -

4. AR g 4 W EAE R 201 14E:8 A 26 B 8k 2 il 7t
Eo

5. 1,000,000 A 1 e RE IS A 152 11 HI A% — HL 47
H 5 > 73 5151,000,000 B il B REAS i 432 o H
% Wi AR H BB > 1 R 1,000,000 H i
JERERII A B AR =4 B R -

5% A e 0 It

R20114E8 H23 H » AN E B — 2B 3 =7
Magical Asia Capital Limited ([ JE#[#] 1) 517 B 4]
IR 55 T e (1R R IR TS Wohie 1) - UL > BRI
A R AL & RS © () d ek K o B A
AR SRk K A 8 HEEA R EE R /N
SEVSEATRIMG S E 5 ) 0 Bh A S i mok S
— R4 A IR A R B SRR A
M E 5 K(iil) B AT 7T e B AH I & 2 Ho ATk 75
(nf) -

AR 4 R IR A IR 2 AU A A FR M)
JRRL ] 5% 11 B8 ISt E DA {1 5 15 49,415,608 Bt AR 4
JRE5S (T L ) SR ARE | > A5 AR 2 ) A 432 o )
BEHES B 2 B8 T AR 4%) > 1F 5S4 T i )
Z RS o R I I RO T oF A o o o PR PR 00
0.515%5 T » B ] i A RE AT 20114F9 H 20 H 2
T AT A B PR 4 3 S 3 3 DAA T i o
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 March 2013, the interests and short positions of the Directors in
the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)), which (a) were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to provisions of Divisions 7 and
8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which the
Directors have taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO);
or (b) were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein; or (c) were required, pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set
out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange were set out below:

(a)  Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company

HREAZ B HERS

20134E3 31 H » 3 F A A B 3 AT o] A1
T 1% I (e 78 5 B B R 01 (T 38 2 T B
B 1) BEX VIR T 1 ER) 2 0y - A BRIy ok
55 P (a) R I5 T2 X B B X VERER 7
R ER 843 B 2 H e ZE R N AR w) K W 2 i (L4
HRPEFE IR K BB BELE 3 F I ESr
HZRERE IR 5 BU(b) AR RS I S R
553524 JEL A 52 A B I 8 1 B S 5 k(o) AR
P LTRSS B 2 BT F G TR R
W RS JI| (T A vy BN ) 2B R0 A 28 \) B
T2 MRS IR H AR

(a MRAXFHERZES

Number of ordinary shares

of HK$0.10 each held

¥ A R IR 0. 103 0.2
sigilie sl
Percentage
of the
issued share
Direct Deemed Total  capital of the
Name of director Capacity interest interest interest Company
A2 ]
B BT A
HPWA gl HENER  BEAHER HARE 5 Aok
Mr. Cheng Chung Hing Beneficial owner and interest 341,773,453 468,781,655 810,555,108 63.32%
of a controlled corporation (Note)
HIAA B SE 4 AT NS s 1 e # (BF&E)
Ms. Yan Sau Man, Amy Beneficial owner 18,000,000 — 18,000,000 1.40%
75 /MR Hiaa A
Note: BT

These 468,781,655 shares of the Company were directly owned by Rich Men
Limited, where Mr. Cheng Chung Hing owns 100% of the issued share capital of
Rich Men Limited.

Rich Men Limited E H#:4E f1 468,781,655k A A
Ay > 1 ERAABILAE A ME4T Rich Men Limited
B 2T IRA100% °
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(b)  Long positions in underlying shares of the Company
Details of the interests of the Directors in the share options of the
Company are separately disclosed under the section headed “Share

Option Scheme”.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors had, as at 31 March
2013, any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which (a) were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to provisions
of Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which the Directors have taken or deemed to have
under such provisions of the SFO); or (b) were required, pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein;
or (c) were required, pursuant to the Model Code to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Share Option Scheme” above, at no
time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any Director or their
respective spouse or minor children, or were any such rights exercised by them;
or was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to
enable the Directors to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN
SECURITIES

As at 31 March 2013, substantial shareholders’ interests and short positions in
the shares and underlying shares of the Company, other than the Directors, as
recorded in the register of substantial shareholders maintained by the Company
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO were as follow:

IR 24 o A R 28 ] 41
20134F4k

Aoy w) R BE A 2 5 A
TR AR 2 ) R HE A 1 R R
[ RST8] ] — B (A AR B 45 28 o

(b)

B b SCH R & Ah 0 R20134E3 H31H -
R 4 A ] 2 5 A 2 ) 8 AT A I v
9] (e o 2 B 5 W 00156 X VR K T 1 e
F8) Z ety ~ AH B A B A (a)
FRAE 5 55 KW B M 55 XV EE 7 K 4 8
O3 2 K JE N AR F) B 52 T (6
FEARIERE 2 O BRI BB E N F
Wit B A 2 HERE SR AT 5 s (b) IR
75 S5 M B G 0 26 352 W JE R sE A% B
FTHE BB RO 5 B () MR PR S HIZE A
AT S AR T 2 M g8 BOIR A -

S By B AR g Z R

B b3 TR PR ) — B P S B 41 o AR AT
o 3 57 ol CHL S A8 AR &) 1 Lo B AR A 1 TR
AR T By AR 2 1 M i 2 HEA) > AT %
SEREA 5 AR A R AT A ) 4 O MR S
EROESRs ey & IR CC IR O PN RN |
%A HER] o

F BB Z & 77 HE

201343 A31H - REAR L W) 4% 1835 5 K )
B 3361047 B 2 E BB A LM
TSR (S R AN ) LE AL TRy KA B £y
R 2 HERS IR ¢

Number of shares held

P I A BOH
Percentage of the
ordinary shares

Name of shareholder Capacity Direct interest  Deemed interest of the Company
AR
Jbe 3R 4 St HiZ RS WL B A 2 T8 4 b
Rich Men Limited Beneficial Owner 468,781,655 - 36.62%
A A
The interests stated above represent long positions. o ERS AR A o
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2013, the Company has not been
notified of any person (other than the Directors of the Company) or entity had
an interest or a short position in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of
the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
under Section 336 of the SFO.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS OF LISTED ISSUERS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 of the
Listing Rules for securities transactions by the Directors. Having made specific
enquiries with all the Directors, they have confirmed compliance with the
required standard as set out in the Model Code throughout the year ended 31
March 2013.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-executive
Directors an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. The Board has assessed the independence of all the
Independent Non-executive Directors and is satisfied of their independence.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee, which comprises three Independent Non-executive
Directors of the Company, has reviewed with the management in conjunction
with the auditor, the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group
and discussed the internal control and financial reporting matters including the
review of audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2013.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
The percentages of purchases and sales for the year ended 31 March 2013
contributed by the Group’s major suppliers and customers are as follows:

Purchases

- the largest supplier 10%
- five largest suppliers combined 31%
Sales

- the largest customer 8%
- five largest customers combined 29%

None of Directors, their associates or substantial shareholders (which to the
knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital) were interested, at any time during the year, in the Group’s five largest
customers or suppliers.

B b ScPigg B4 > 1R20134E3 31 H - WRIEH
I B B PIE336 e R ARETREZ
RO AT EL o AR FNE AR RAT AT A (AR
A RN ) SR B AR S R - A B
AP RA STk

LT NERETERER SRR
SEHI

AN T Bk TE AT 5B 5528 5 PR A T R S
B BT 2 A I o 48 ) A P SR B AR E
EHE > HEWRRNEE20134F3 31 H L4
JE TR — LA ST AR ST JI BT a2 R A o

WL R RTE S B S

AR F) O A L I AT E S ARE R TR
5313 MGt HL R S B A3 8 i 2 AR BERERR LK -
HEOAhRE IR RITEE B S0
NIREEIE ) AA

®HREEY

HAANF =B kT EFAR FRER
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HE > BREFHALEEBE2013F3A31H 1k
TR 22 SRS AT IR R o
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Eiife
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- HHREFZHEM 29%
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained a sufficient public
float during the year and up to the date of this Directors’ Report under the
Listing Rules.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s bye-laws,
or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company to offer new shares
on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

AUDITOR

The financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers
who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment in the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended 31
March 2013.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Details of the Company’s corporate governance practices are set out in the
Corporate Governance Report of the Annual Report.

EVENT AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE
Details of the significant events occurring after the balance sheet date are set out
in Note 45 to the consolidated financial statements.

On behalf of the Board

Cheng Chung Hing
Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 June 2013
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF MAN SANG
INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Man Sang
International Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the
“Group”) set out on pages 46 to 144, which comprise the consolidated
and company balance sheets as at 31 March 2013, and the consolidated
income statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements
The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 March 2013, and
of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 25 June 2013
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22 Al 22
B WA 3R
Year ended 31 March
BAEIH3IH LA E
2013 2012
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
i Tl THIC
(restated)
(& H %))
Revenue KA 7 461,185 370,236
Cost of sales S8R A 11 (309,697 (213,086)
Gross profit EA 151,488 157,150
Other income Hpbigzs 9 2,021 4,347
Other gains — net HoAtblg A—35+40 10 14,421 16,669
Selling expenses SRS 11 (17,479) (23,279)
Administrative expenses FTBUBA 11 (84,914) (76,759)
Increase in fair values of investment properties and % &4 3 J ¥ B 4% G W)€
investment properties under construction ApINIER:L (] 46,638 40,400
Operating profit R A 112,175 118,528
Finance income g 37 15,129 12,567
Finance costs s LA 37 (15,250) (8,882)
Finance (costs)/income — net WS (AR ) /Wit — VR (1z1 3,685
Share of profit/(loss) of an associate JERE— B A AR A () 23 4)
Profit before income tax Bix P43 B i i A 112,077 122,209
Income tax expense AR BB 32 14 (47,810) (42,112)
Profit for the year AR AE B 353 ] 64,267 80,097
Attributable to: & 5 HEA
Equity holders of the Company AN AR 48,244 54,845
Non-controlling interests Ttz 16,023 25,252
64,267 80,097
Earnings per share attributable to equity A2 v e S MREAG Bt 22
holders of the Company 16
Basic HA 3.78 HK centsifill  4.42 HK centsi5 il
Diluted o 3.78 HK centsi:{ll  4.37 HK cents Il

RS T A R JBOR 2 S R OR 317 -

Details of dividend to the equity holders of the Company are set out in note 17.

5555 2 144 5 2 M5k 25 AR &7 B BB 3 1)
Fh43 o

The notes on pages 55 to 144 are an integral part of these consolidated financial
statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
AL SRS

Year ended 31 March

WRE3IH31H L4
2013 2012
HK$°000 HK$°000
¥ T T
(restated)
(58w 71)
Profit for the year A i ) 64,267 80,097 /
Other comprehensive income: Hopth 2 R4S -
Exchange difference on translation of foreign operations BB INETS 2 T 5250 - 23,864
Change in deferred income tax liabilities in relation to Bl ZREEB I 5 B B -
increase in fair value of leasehold land and buildings e AE B (E 2 TR AL TSR B 5 E)
arising from tax rate change - (111)
Increase in fair value of leasehold land and buildings, net L&+ R BF /A Ao fE i (E > BRI
of deferred income tax KEFTASBL R 9,447 6,420
Other comprehensive income for the year AR A A T A 9,447 30,173
Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax AR AT s KA - BRBLIF AR 73,714 110,270
Attributable to: HITHENG
Equity holders of the Company VNN 57,691 77,006
Non-controlling interests E R g 16,023 33,264
73,714 110,270

The notes on pages 55 to 144 are an integral part of these consolidated financial %555 %5 144 & 22 [l 51 & AN &5 4 B 75 3 35 A0 B4
statements. B4y o
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R E AR

As at 31 March

As at 1 April

#3H31H WaA1H
2013 2012 2011
Note HK$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000
i T T T TH#TT
(restated) (restated)
(5 ) (REH)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES g Y =N
Non-current assets e B &
Investment properties &Y 18 902,342 869,590 847,257
Investment properties under construction ERIEYE 19 64,452 61,278 61,741
Property, plant and equipment L ER N 21 126,712 120,342 117,736
Prepaid lease payments TR B 22 162 5,874 8,024
Prepayments TR IE 969 2,724 -
Investment in an associate R—REE A2 BE 23 144 121 121
Deferred income tax assets RS TSR e 25 1,695 908 1,126
1,096,476 1,060,837 1,036,005
Current assets B
Inventories yesty 26 76,771 71,156 52,104
Properties under development BRI 20 - 51,038 36,711
Completed properties held for sale (A AR E S 27 208,840 263,420 206,743
Investment properties under construction R G2 g g
held for sale 19 - 7,602 -
Trade and other receivables JRE S0 B B HL At MR ARk 28 148,498 267,503 134,835
Financial assets at fair value through AR 5 1N AR F MR 2
profit or loss BWEE 29 28,396 45,435 30,540
Current income tax recoverable )R E 1,938 991 4,794
Cash and cash equivalents Bl I G R B4 30 440,770 605,099 606,806
905213 1312244 1,072,533
Current liabilities i E= R
Trade and other payables JREASH Bk B At B A} Bk 31 387,711 505,464 463,042
Current income tax liabilities TR R A 108,987 116,800 103,606
Borrowings Efs 32 216,900 36,900 23,800
Amount due to an associate JEAST— M A R OE 23 2,581 2,032 1,492
716,179 661,196 591,940
Net current assets B & I 189,034 651,048 480,593
Total assets less current liabilities HA A D B B 1,285,510 1,711,885 1,516,598
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
HeaEmEfafE
As at 31 March As at 1 April
R3H31H R4H1H
2013 2012 2011
Note HK$’000 HKS$°000 HKS$°000
i3 T T T T T
(restated) (restated)
(%E7) (K8E51)
Non-current liabilities FER B £
Deferred income tax liabilities A BT 5B 1 1 25 171,968 145,015 121,857
Borrowings e 32 110,700 147,600 71,400
282,668 292,615 193,257
Net assets & R 1,002,842 1,419,270 1,323,341
EQUITY e -~
Equity attributable to equity holders 7R ) J TG i ‘
of the Company
Share capital JeAs 33 128,019 126,434 122,709
Reserves i
— Proposed dividends — RIS 17 25,604 281,642 =
— Others — Hite 709,471 862,500 1,085,202
863,094 1,270,576 1,207,911
Non-controlling interests Fe e B E £ 139,748 148,694 115,430
Total equity LR £ 1,002,842 1,419,270 1,323,341

The notes on pages 55 to 144 are an integral part of these consolidated financial 55554 144 B 2 B} 5 5 A 45 5 BA TS e 2 1 22 8

statements. TR o

The consolidated financial statements on pages 46 to 144 were approved and 5546 % 144 BT ik 45 & W TR & O R 20134F 6 H
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 25 June 2013 and were signed 25 H ¥ $-@r it i A HETI 9% > Ay F oI # S

on its behalf by: REEE -
Cheng Chung Hing Cheng Tai Po

SR B K #

Chairman & Non-Executive Director Deputy Chairman & Executive Director

FREHRF B THEH B LA THEF
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BALANCE SHEET
B AUEE

As at 31 March
W3H31H
2013 2012
Note HK$000  HKS'000
i T T 7T
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES B R A
Non-current assets B & B
Investments in subsidiaries M A 2 B 24 211,074 210,695
Amounts due from subsidiaries JRE S B8 /N ] 3 TE 24 282,049 579,860
493,123 790,555
Current assets B
Other receivables HoAh RENUIR K 752 732
Financial assets at fair value through AR R I RESI R
profit or loss A 29 720 2,225
Amounts due from subsidiaries JRE ST 6F o8 /A ) I 24 36,131 70,683
Cash and cash equivalents Bl RER B4 30 1,294 1,872
38,897 75,512
Current liabilities i B £ 1%
Other payables F At AT AR AR 450 1,096
Net current assets i B B VR 38,447 74,416
Total assets less current liabilities A WA B £ AR 531,570 864,971
Net assets B TE 531,570 864,971
EQUITY 23
Equity attributable to equity holders of 7R ) e 3B AV B i
the Company
Share capital A 33 128,019 126,434
Reserves bt 35
— Proposed dividends — BRI 17 25,604 281,642
— Others —HAfth 377,947 456,895
Total equity s 531,570 864,971

The notes on pages 55 to 144 are an integral part of these consolidated financial
statements.

The consolidated financial statements on pages 46 to 144 were approved and
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 25 June 2013 and were signed
on its behalf by:

igﬁmﬁZW%iﬁ%ﬁ%Eﬁ%%&%%%ﬁ%

$546 % 144 B T i G7 A BB R B R 2013486 A
25 H A S e JL e BRI > Wil R A E S

RHE

Cheng Chung Hing Cheng Tai Po
YR B K

Chairman & Non-Executive Director

TGP THEH B LR THEF

Deputy Chairman & Executive Director
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Year ended 31 March

BE3IH31H L4
2013 2012
HK$°000 HK$°000
F#u THIT
(restated)
(K8E51)
Cash flows from operating activities REEBEEZRERE
Profit before income tax % B 15 B i i ) 112,077 122,209
Adjustments for: bR IR TE (o ik
Interest income F B A (15,129) (12,567)
Interest expenses F BB 15,250 8,882
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment W2 > BRI Mk eE 7,675 8,162
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments FEATAR Bk G 8 2,328
Impairment loss on prepaid lease payments TAAHH O 2 A R 5,704 -
Share of (profit) /loss of an associate JRE Rl — KM A
(W F) /R (23) 4
Share-based payment DA B HEHE 2 AT 3R 379 12,761
Increase in fair values of investment properties BB R R E %
and investment properties under construction AREKEE (46,638) (40,400)
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEMEA R 2R 2,814 -
Gain on disposals of investment properties and HEREYERTERRE
investment properties under development WEZ A 9,577) (15,158)
Gain on disposals of property, plant and WEYE - BB Rk
equipment 2 (407) (133)
Fair value change in financial assets at fair value BB IR A AR
through profit or loss 2 BB B N A fHE ) (4,933) 3,804
Dividend income B3 (1,590) (1,957)
Operating cash flows before working capital BEGRLBHHTZ
changes REBIEHE 65,610 87,935
Change in working capital: BHEE RS
Inventories peats (5,615) (18,252)
Completed properties held for sale e &2 T 113,800 6,044
Properties under development BRI (6,052) (64,226)
Trade and other receivables JRE MBS B HA RE SR 3K (3,995) (8,694)
Prepayments TE A EOE 1,755 (2,724
Trade and other payables B AT % B A R A (85,968) 32,066
Amount due to an associate TR — R B 2 R 549 490
Cash generated from operations REERELZHE 80,084 32,639
Interest paid EATFLE (17,380) (13,734)
Income taxes paid BT PR (32,320) 9,216)
Net cash generated from operating activities REEHEEZHETH 30,384 9,689

o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HERERER
Year ended 31 March
BE3IH31H L4
2013 2012
HK$°000 HK$°000
F#u THIT
(restated)
(%E51)
Cash flows from investing activities BE B A 2 Bl
Purchase of property, plant and equipment WS B - WE B (2,570) (3,341)
Proceeds from disposals of property, plant and HEYE - R RS
equipment IH 422 278
Additions to investment properties NEREYE - (2,521)
Proceeds from disposals of investment properties i &4 &£ T 15 7H 13,985 56,755
Additions to investment properties under NEERREYE
construction - (163)
Proceeds from/(purchases of) financial assets at fair  FFf3#JAR H /() @@
value through profit or loss, net Bt RES R T
B 21,972 (18,699)
Settlement of/(advance of) entrusted loan bR (B30) 123,000 (123,000)
Disposal of subsidiaries B N ) (3,041) =
Dividend received BB E 1,590 1,957
Interest received B IS 15,129 12,567
Net cash generated from/(used in) BAWGBEE ()2
investing activities BemH 170,487 (76,167)
Cash flows from financing activities AR B AL Z R R E
Issue of new shares BT 6,572 10,750
Proceeds from borrowings &5 208 200,000 184,500
Repayments of borrowings R (56,900) (95,200)
Acquisition of additional interest in a subsidiary i — [ B & 2 7] 2 BRAME £ (28,400) -
Dividend paid EATRE (486,472) (37,852)
Net cash (used in)/generated from REWE (R, B
financing activities HEedE (365,200) 62,198
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents B4 R W R & WA 2 F 8 (164,329) (4,280)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year -4 2 3 4 M % [R5 4 605,099 606,306
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes e ) 2 5 2 - 2,573
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year R ZBLE R R B 30 440,770 605,099

The notes on pages 55 to 144 are an integral part of these consolidated financial

statements.

5555 144 B 2 Wk 20 AR 55 6 P S 9 1) i

oy e



RA:BIBRAT B A W] 53
20134F3k

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
o £ HE 4 52 B)) R

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

A T BORKE RS
Share Property Retained Non-
Share Share option  revaluation  Translation earnings controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve (note a) Total interests equity
THRCHE  WpsEEfh PRETE ] TR
WA Bl (ki Wl ERRE () At FEdi gL

HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000
T Tt Tt T T T Tt T Tt

(restated) (restated) (restated) (restated) (restated)

(BEF)  (HBEF) i5)  (REF)  (BEF)
Balance at 1 April 2011 R20114E4H 1 H 2 &5k
(as previously reported) (T 2 ) 122,700 322,659 047 104642 9917 606058 1225412 131603 1357015
Adjustments for change in accounting policies  Hf 4 7 s &z I 55 1258
for adoption of amendments to HKAS12 BRI A2 Gt EoR#E)
(note 3(a)) W (HiE3) = = = = (3,034) (14,467) (17,501) (16,173) (33,674)
Balance at 1 April 2011 (as restated) R20114E4H 1 H 2 554
(&%) 122700 322,659 047 104642 5688 591591 1207911 115430 1323341
Profit for the year AL A - - = = = 54,845 54,845 25252 80,097
Other comprehensive income: Hi 2w
Increase in fair value of leasehold land and ~ FH 8 1 S B/ fo (E 18
buildings, net of deferred income tax > BRIEAERTASH 4 = = = 6,420 = = 6,420 = 6,420
Change in deferred income tax liabilities in B B ifi 5| S &
relation to increase in fair value of leasehold ~ JMEF/A AR (4 (2 i
land and buildings arising from TERTELA )
tax rate change - - - (111) - - (111) - (111)
Exchange difference on translation of BB T 2 S A
foreign operation - - - - 15,852 - 15,852 8,012 23,864
Total comprehensive income for the year AR 2 T A = = = 6,309 15,852 54,845 77,006 33,264 110,270
Interim dividend (note 17) FHIRE (HEREL7) - - - - - (37852)  (37.852) = (37.852)
Share option benefits T IRCHE AR A - - 12,761 - - - 12,761 - 12,761
Issue of new shares upon exercise TR HE RSB T
of share options 3,725 7,025 - - - - 10,750 - 10,750
Transfer to share premium upon exercise of ﬁﬁﬁﬂx%ﬁﬁi%)\ﬂxfﬁ
share options T fE = 4,023 (4,023) = = = = = =
Transfer to retained earnings upon lapse of %Hﬁ@%ﬂﬁﬁﬁ?)\{%%
share options gl - - (2,144) - - 2,144 - - -
Release of property revaluation reserve upon  FHLEE 1 Hi S b4 R el
depreciation of leasehold land and buildings ~ #4¥)3  fiifkfs - - = (1,409) = 1,409 - - -
Transferred to retained earnings upon RS2 R TYE
disposals of completed properties held for REELABE A SRR A > By
sale, net of deferred income tax AT - - - (1,058) - 1,058 - - -
Total transactions with owners B NHEAT 2 55 126,434 333,707 16,021 (2,467) = (33241)  (14341) - (14,341)
Balance at 31 March 2012 R201243A31H 255 126434 333,707 16021 108,484 N7 613195 1270576 148,694 1419270

y
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

I 2 p2p
MR S B
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
8 ] JBE R A
Share Property Retained Non-
Share Share option revaluation Translation earnings controlling Total
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve (note a) Total interests equity
) TEIREHE T } PRE A } e
A i it Phfl RESLERAE (Wfika) Fi HEdi A HE 4
HKS$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HKS$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HKS$’000
Tkt Tt T T Tkt Tt T Tkt Tt
(restated)  (restated)  (restated)  (restated)  (restated)
(&g (R&EH) (R&EF)  (REH)  (RES)
Balance at 1 April 2012 R20124E4 H 1 H Z B 126,434 333,707 16,021 108,484 76,730 628,841 1,290,217 166,329 1,456,546
Adjustments for change in accounting policies #4715 & HHEHI 55 125
for adoption of amendments to HKAS12 BRI AZ St BUREE)
(note 3(2)) AL (HH3E3() - - - - (3.995)  (I5646)  (19641) (17635  (37.276)
Balance at 1 April 2012 (as restated) R20124:4H 1 H 2 453
() 126434 333,707 16020 108484 075 613915 1270576 148,694 1419270
Profit for the year AR - - - - - 48,244 48,244 16,023 64,267
Other comprehensive income: HAbA TS
Increase in fair value of leasehold land and THE T BT R
buildings, net of deferred income tax {8 - BRIEAE 8R4 - - - 9,447 - - 9,447 - 9,447
Total comprehensive income for the year A A i 4 AR - - - 9,447 - 48,244 57,691 16,023 73,714
Final and special dividend (note 17) W RS (MHE17) - - - - — (281,642)  (281,642) - (281642
Interim and special dividend (note 17) o BRI S (B 3E17) - = = = — (204,830)  (204,830) — (204,830
Share option benefits FR AR - - 379 - - - 379 - 379
Issue of new shares upon exercise of A R TR HE RS 51T 7
share options 1,585 4,987 - - - - 6,572 - 6,572
Transfer to share premium upon exercise of 17 {5 B HERFRE A I
share options i E = 3,185 (3,185) = = = = = =
Transfer to retained earnings upon lapse of  FSCHE Al p 88 A (P2
share options bkl - = (1,488) = = 1,488 = = =
Release of property revaluation reserve upon  H & 14 S #7475 s [l
depreciation of leasehold land and buildings ¥ 2 Bk s = = = (1,115) = 1,115 = = =
Acquisition of additional interest in ] s — T i 2 ) 2 A4
a subsidiary (note 42) 14 (tska2) - - - = - 14,348 14,348 (24969)  (10,621)
Transferred to retained earnings upon R 2 % TYE
disposals of completed properties held for FEES A PR A > bR
sale, net of deferred income tax AT BT - = = (2,420) = 2,420 = = =
Total transactions with owners SR AT 2 385 1,585 8,172 (4,294) (3,535) —  (467,101)  (465,173) (24969)  (490,142)
Balance at 31 March 2013 2013435131 0 2K 128019 341879 1727 1143% 7735 194338 863094 130748 1,002,842
Note: [ EE -
(a) The Group’s retained earnings included an amount of HK$26,622,000 (2012: (a) A A 18 2 AR B i ] A N R SR A

HK$19,862,000) reserved by the subsidiaries in the People’s Republic of
China (“PRC”) in accordance with the relevant PRC regulations. The PRC
laws and regulations require companies registered in the PRC to provide for
certain statutory reserves, which are to be appropriated from the net profit (after
offsetting accumulated losses from prior years) as reported in their respective
statutory financial statements, before profit distributions to equity holder. All
statutory reserves are created for specific purposes. PRC company is required
to appropriate 10% of statutory net profits to statutory surplus reserves,
upon distribution of its post-tax profits of the current year. A company may
discontinue the contribution when the aggregate sum of the statutory surplus
reserve is more than 50% of its registered capital. The statutory surplus reserves
shall only be used to make up losses of the company, to expand the company’s
production operations, or to increase the capital of the company. In addition, a
company may make further contribution to the discretional surplus reserve using
its post-tax profits in accordance with resolutions of the board of directors.

The notes on pages 55 to 144 are an integral part of these consolidated financial
statements.

([ H B ) 22 B o 2 i e B P 80 A i 725 A
BE AR i A5 T 22 26,622,000 #5 IT (20124F -
19,862,000%5 70) © Hf B VA L i KR BERAE B
G 2 AR S TR EARSE o —4&
FE R o VA S S R R R A 2 v R (R
AR R 5B R P 4 i i A T BSR4
o TR EATEEHAREEEHN - PEA
BSR4 L AN AE TE 2 B AR s A A vk 2
T A2 10%EREERBATES - BIEE
B AT 4 Bt s M E A 50% M » 23 7 )
DIME I M R AT S o R BER AR
& AR R A A Al E - ROK A A AR E 2
B B HINARIEAR o HAh > AHE A IR
PR G 2 Pk 00 A BLAR s B 1) 2 R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao £ B 755 R B

For the year ended 31 March 2013 # % 201343 431 H IF4F %

1.

GENERAL INFORMATION

Man Sang International Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together, the “Group”) are principally engaged in the (i) purchasing,
processing, assembling, merchandising and wholesale distribution of
pearls and jewellery products; and (ii) development, sales and leasing
of properties.

The Company is incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company
with limited liability under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended). The address of its registered office is Clarendon House, 2
Church Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda.

The Company is listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited.

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, unless
otherwise stated.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies have
been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

(a)  Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Company have
been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”), which include all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong, disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and applicable disclosure
requirements of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Main Board
Listing Rules”).

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, as modified by the
revaluation of financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss, investment properties, investment properties under
construction and leasehold land and buildings, which are
carried at fair values.

— R E B

B A= B A BRA R (T A W] 1) B L it e
N (BERE [ AR M ) 2 BEER « ()2
TRERBIE fh Z PRI - I L - #Eik - HE
RACEEI 8 5 M Gi) R ~ S KA
gfo

AN A R AR R A A 1981 4F A R
(RABAT) 76 7 7% 28 o W Sr 2 28 78
o Z A BRITAE 2 A o HCEE M Ik 2 R b
ht % Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM11, Bermuda °

AR A A A B 50 2 BT A PR W] SEAR
Lo

R AR WIS > A5 R 3 DL T8
{H -

EREHHBORM R

A A KR BRI T 2 B
RHIIAT - BRAA RSN » SZFBUR
BT RIS E R -

(a) AmERLYE

AN R 2 A B R Tk IR
5 B w2 AE A 2 s S R
5 E R (SRR LS AR 2
IR s B s e A ME ) - AV
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R A W5 28 2 i A BR S Rl 76 25
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&3 6 W B R B w:

For the year ended 31 March 2013 #%201343 H31 H IL4F R

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with

(@)

(b)

HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting

estimates. It also requires management to exercise its

judgement in the process of applying the Group’s accounting

policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement

or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates

are significant to the consolidated financial statements are

disclosed in note 4.

Subsidiaries

@

Consolidation

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special purpose
entities) over which the Group has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies generally
accompanying a shareholding of more than one
half of the voting rights. The existence and effect of
potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or
convertible are considered when assessing whether the
Group controls another entity. The Group also assesses
existence of control where it does not have more than
50% of the voting power but is able to govern the
financial and operating policies by virtue of de-facto
control. De-facto control may arise from circumstances
where it does not have more than 50% of the voting
power but is able to govern the financial and operating
policies by virtue of de-facto control.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are de-
consolidated from the date that control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances, income and
expenses on transactions between group companies
are eliminated. Profits and losses resulting from inter-
company transactions that are recognised in assets are
also eliminated. Accounting policies of subsidiaries
have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

EREEBORME (4])

(@)

(b)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5h A IS R B T
For the year ended 31 March 2013 # % 201343 431 H IF4F %

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(b)  Subsidiaries (Continued)

@

(i)

Consolidation (Continued)

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not
result in loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions — that is, as transactions with the owners
in their capacity as owners. The difference between
fair value of any consideration paid and the relevant
share acquired of the carrying value of net assets of
the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on
disposals to non-controlling interests are also recorded

in equity.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost
less impairment. Cost also includes direct attributable
costs of investment. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the company on the basis of dividend
received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries
is required upon receiving dividends from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the
investment in the separate financial statements exceeds
the carrying amount in the consolidated financial
statements of the investee’s net assets including
goodwill.

RA:BIBRAT B A W] 57
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(ii)

B (A1)

7B [ 5 FC L 2 PR i
AT EAVEEUR R IE
932 53 ASR I HE AR 22 5 —
RN BLHEA N AHAE 2 A
NG RTINS S © TS
FHEATARAE 2 o (B B AR
R A T A B 2 )
JEE {9 {0 YR A P 25 R 5k
TERERR T o 1) IR RO i
F1 il ) 2 M 7 i ok 1
o

R £ RS

Wi JB 4 7 5 A (B 41
PRIUES IR o AT
BUE ) BRI A o B
J& 2 R SE A AL R %
C R B BARR

i T s B e DR A B
LAY AN TS
i SRR > e S P
R B E R A ERRE S
R R P BE A TE
(LA P ) Z R - AN
WHZECES BB 2 7 BB AR BB
{E TR -



58 MAN SANG INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2013

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bh e IS R B T
For the year ended 31 March 2013 #%201343 H31 H IL4F R

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(b)  Subsidiaries (Continued)
(iii)  Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained
interest in the entity is re-measured to its fair value
at the date when control is lost, with the change in
carrying amount recognised in profit or loss. The fair
value is the initial carrying amount for the purposes
of subsequently accounting for the retained interest
as an associate, joint venture or financial asset. In
addition, any amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in respect of that entity are
accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities. This may mean that
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss.

(c) Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant
influence but not control, generally accompanying a
shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the voting rights.
Investments in associates are accounted for using the equity
method of accounting. Under the equity method, the investment
is initially recognised at cost, and the carrying amount is
increased or decreased to recognise the investor’s share of the
profit or loss of the investee after the date of acquisition. The
Group’s investment in an associate includes goodwill identified
on acquisition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5h A IS R B T
For the year ended 31 March 2013 # % 201343 431 H IF4F %

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.

(c)

Associates (Continued)

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but
significant influence is retained, only a proportionate share of
the amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate.

The Group’s share of post-acquisition profit or loss is
recognised in the consolidated income statement, and its
share of post-acquisition movements in other comprehensive
income is recognised in other comprehensive income with
a corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount of the
investment. When the Group’s share of losses in an associate
equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, including any
other unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognise
further losses, unless it has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether there is
any objective evidence that the investment in the associate is
impaired. If this is the case, the Group calculates the amount of
impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount
of the associate and its carrying value and recognises the
amount adjacent to “share of profit/(loss) of an associate” in the
consolidated income statement.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and downstream
transactions between the Group and its associate are recognised
in the Group’s financial statements only to the extent of
unrelated investor’s interests in the associates. Unrealised
losses are eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies
of associates have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Dilution gains and losses arising in investment in an associate
are recognised in the consolidated income statement.

2.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(a)

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings held by the
Group or under finance lease to earn rental income and/or for
capital appreciation, which include property interest held under
operating lease carried at fair value.

Investment properties are stated at fair value at the balance
sheet date. Any gain or loss arising from a change in fair
value is recognised in the consolidated income statement. An
investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no
future economic benefits are expected from its disposals. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is included in the consolidated
income statement in the year in which the item is derecognised.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s carrying
amount only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost
of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and
maintenance costs are expensed in the consolidated income
statement during the financial period in which they are
incurred.

The fair values of investment properties are based on valuation
by independent valuers who hold recognised professional
qualification and have recent experience in the location and
category of properties being valued. Fair value is determined
based on market value, being the estimated amount for which a
property could be exchanged on the date of valuation between a
willing buyer and a willing seller in an arm’s length transaction
after proper marketing wherein the parties had each acted
knowledgeably, prudently and without compulsion.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is
reclassified as property, plant and equipment and its fair value
at the date of reclassification becomes its deemed cost for
accounting purposes. The deemed cost of property, plant and
equipment is used as the basis for the carrying amount and
depreciation of the asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5h A IS R B T
For the year ended 31 March 2013 # % 201343 431 H IF4F %

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.

(@)

(e)

Investment properties (Continued)

Properties that are being constructed or developed for future
use as investment property are classified as investment
properties under construction. Investment properties under
construction are initially stated at cost, including borrowing
costs capitalised, aggregate cost of development, materials
and supplies, wages and other direct expenses, less any
impairment losses. At the balance sheet date when fair value
can be determined reliably, it is stated at fair value subsequent
to initial recognition. Any difference between the fair value
of the property at the date and its previous carrying amount is
recognised in the consolidated income statement. Where fair
value is not reliably determinable, such investment property
under construction is measured at cost until either its fair value
becomes reliably determinable or construction is completed
(whichever is earlier).

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises
its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing
the asset to its working condition and location for its intended
use. Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the
consolidated income statement during the year in which they
are incurred.

Leasehold land and buildings transferred from investment
properties are stated at deemed cost equal to its fair value at the
date of change in use and is continued to account for as if it was
an asset held under finance lease. The entire lease payment of
leasehold land and buildings are included in the cost of land and
buildings as a finance lease in property, plant and equipment
and stated at deemed cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses.

2.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(e)

®

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
Depreciation is provided to write off the cost less accumulated
impairment losses, other than construction in progress, over
their estimated useful lives from the date on which they are
available for use and after taking into account of their estimated
residual values, using the straight-line method, at the following
rates per annum:
Leasehold land and buildings Over the shorter of the term
of the lease or 50 years

Leasehold improvements 25%-33%

Plant and machinery 20%-25%
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 25%
Motor vehicles 25%

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater
than its estimated recoverable amount. Residual values and
useful lives are reviewed at each balance sheet date.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the
proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised within
“Other gains — net” in the consolidated income statement.

Properties under development

Properties that are being constructed or developed for future use
as held-for-sales are classified as properties under development
and stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Net
realisable value is determined by reference to the sale proceeds
of properties sold in the ordinary course of business, less
applicable variable selling expenses and the anticipated costs to
completion, or by management estimates based on prevailing
marketing conditions.

Development cost of property comprises construction costs,
amortisation of land use rights and borrowing costs capitalised,
and professional fees incurred during the development period.
On completion, the properties are transferred to completed
properties held for sale.

Properties under development are classified as current assets
when the construction of the relevant properties commences
unless the construction period of the relevant property
development project is expected to complete beyond normal
operating cycle.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5h A IS R B T
For the year ended 31 March 2013 # % 201343 431 H IF4F %

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.

(€9)

(h)

@

Completed properties held for sale
Completed properties remaining unsold at the end of the year
are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost comprises development costs attributable to the unsold
properties.

Net realisable value is determined by reference to the sale
proceeds of properties sold in the ordinary course of business,
less applicable variable selling expenses, or by management
estimates based on prevailing marketing conditions.

Prepaid lease payments

Prepaid lease payments include up-front payments to acquire
leasehold land and payments for lease of properties, where the
leases are held under operating lease. Prepaid lease payments
are stated at cost and are amortised on a straight-line basis over
the period of the lease.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life — for example,
goodwill or intangible assets not ready to use — are not subject
to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment. Assets
that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use.
For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at
the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash
flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than
goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment at the balance sheet date.

2.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
() Financial assets

@

Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following categories: financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss and loans and receivables. The
classification depends on the purpose for which the
financial assets were acquired. Management determines
the classification of its financial assets at initial

recognition.
. Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss are financial assets held for trading. A
financial asset is classified in this category if
acquired principally for the purpose of selling
in the short term. Assets in this category are
classified as current assets, if expected to be
settled within 12 months, otherwise they are
classified as non-current assets.

. Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. They are included in current assets,
except for maturities greater than 12 months
after the balance sheet date. These are classified
as non-current assets. The Group’s loans
and receivables comprise trade and other
receivables and cash and cash equivalents in the
balance sheet.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5h A IS R B T
For the year ended 31 March 2013 # % 201343 431 H IF4F %

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
() Financial assets (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade-date — the date on which the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial
assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are
initially recognised at fair value and transaction costs
are expensed in the consolidated income statement.
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the investments have expired
or have been transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and
receivables are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value
of the “financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss” category are presented in the consolidated income
statement within — “Other gains — net”, in the period
in which they arise. Dividend income from financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss is recognised
in the consolidated income statement as part of other
income when the Group’s right to receive payments is
established.

Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or
group of financial assets is impaired. A financial
asset or a group of financial assets is impaired and
impairment losses are incurred only if there is objective
evidence of impairment as a result of one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition of the
asset (a “loss event”) and that loss event (or events)
has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or group of financial assets that can be
reliably estimated.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
() Financial assets (Continued)

(iii)

Assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

Evidence of impairment may include indications
that the debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments, the probability
that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation, and where observable data indicate that
there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future
cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic
conditions that correlate with defaults.

For loans and receivables category, the amount of the
loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that
have not been incurred) discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate. The carrying
amount of the asset is reduced and the amount of the
loss is recognised in the consolidated income statement.
If a loan or held-to-maturity investment has a variable
interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any
impairment loss is the current effective interest rate
determined under the contract. As a practical expedient,
the Group may measure impairment on the basis of
an instrument’s fair value using an observable market
price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
was recognised (such as an improvement in the debtor’s
credit rating), the reversal of the previously recognised
impairment loss is recognised in the consolidated
income statement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5h A IS R B T
For the year ended 31 March 2013 # % 201343 431 H IF4F %

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.

(k)

U]

(m)

(n)

(0)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost, which comprises all costs of purchase and, where
applicable, cost of conversion and other costs that have been
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location
and condition, is calculated using the weighted average cost
method. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs
of completion and the estimated selling expenses.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary course
of business. If collection of trade and other receivables is
expected in one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of
the business if longer), they are classified as current assets. If
not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less provision for impairment.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions,
and short-term, highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less, in the consolidated balance
sheet.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation as a result of a past event, and it is probable that
the Group will be required to settle that obligation. Provisions
are measured at the directors’ best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the obligation at the balance sheet date, and
are discounted to present value where the effect is material.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently stated
at amortised cost; any difference between the proceeds (net
of transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognised
in the consolidated income statement over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method.

2.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(0)

(p)

Borrowings (Continued)

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised
as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable
that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this
case, the fee is deferred until the draw-down occurs. To the
extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some or all
of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a
prepayment for liquidity services and amortised over the period
of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group
has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for
at least 12 months after the balance sheet date.

Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred
tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated income statement,
except to the extent it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax
is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity.

@) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis
of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date in the countries where the Company
and its subsidiaries operate and generate taxable
income. Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation and
establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of
amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5h A IS R B T
For the year ended 31 March 2013 # % 201343 431 H IF4F %

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

2.

(p)

(i)

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is recognised in full, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, the deferred income tax is not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an
asset or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the balance sheet date and are expected to apply when
the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the
deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can
be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and
an associate, except where the timing of the reversal
of the temporary difference is controlled by the Group
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and
when the deferred income taxes assets and liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the same taxable entity or different
taxable entities where there is an intention to settle the
balances on a net basis.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(@)

Revenue recognition

Revenue from sales of properties

Revenue from sales of properties is recognised when the
risks and rewards related to the properties are transferred
to purchasers, which is when the construction of relevant
properties has been completed, title to the properties has
been delivered to the purchasers and collectability of related
receivables is reasonably assured. Revenue is recognised only
to the extent collectability of such receivable is reasonably
assured.

Revenue from sales of properties with operating leaseback

As part of the Group’s overall strategy to develop property
projects with specific themes, in relation to sales of certain
properties, immediately following sale of such properties, the
Group leases back the properties from purchasers for periods
ranging from 3 to 5 years. As lease back of the properties free
of charge was arranged as part of the sale of these properties,
the Group determined the fair value of lease payments it
would ordinarily make to lease such properties from other
independent owners based on factors such as expected
occupancy rates, rental yields etc. and included it as part of the
sales consideration received with a corresponding debit to other
prepaid lease payments. Since the fair value of lease payments
the Group would ordinarily make to lease such properties was
estimated to be insignificant, the Group did not separately
recognise it as part of the sales consideration received with
a corresponding debit to other prepaid lease payments. Such
transactions are accounted for as a sale and operating leaseback
given that, as part of the sale transaction, the Group disposes of
substantially all risks and rewards of owning the property. In
concluding that substantially all risks and rewards of owning
the property have been transferred, the Group considers the
short period of the lease and the expected future rentals it could
earn by letting out these properties, which are insignificant
relative to the value of the property.

Operating leases rentals paid to purchasers are recorded as an
expense on a straight line basis over the period of the lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5h A IS R B T
For the year ended 31 March 2013 # % 201343 431 H IF4F %

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.

()

(r)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from sales of properties with operating leaseback

(Continued)

To promote sales of certain properties, the Group conducted a
promotional sale of these properties since 2009 wherein it sold
such properties at special rates to selected purchasers. Sales
consideration for these properties included an explicitly agreed
transaction price to be settled in cash plus a lease back of these
properties to the Group free of charge. As lease back of the
properties free of charge was arranged as part of the sale of
these properties, the Group determined the fair value of lease
payments it would ordinarily make to lease such properties
from other independent owners based on factors such as
expected occupancy rates, rental yields etc. and included it as
part of the sales consideration received with a corresponding
debit to other prepaid lease payments. The other prepaid lease
payments will be amortised and recognised as operating leases
expense on a straight line basis over the period of the lease.

Revenue from sales of goods

Sale of goods is recognised on transfer of risks and rewards of
ownership, which generally coincides with the time when the
goods are delivered to customers and title has passed.

Revenue from leasing of investment properties

Rental income under operating leases is recognised in the
period in which the properties are let out and on a straight-line
basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Others

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time basis,
by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable, which is the rate that discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the
financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
rights to receive payments have been established.

Retirement benefits scheme

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service leave
are recognised when they accrue to employees. A provision
is made for the estimated liability for annual leave and long
service leave as a result of services rendered by employees up
to the balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are not
recognised until the time of leave.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(r)

Retirement benefits scheme (Continued)

In accordance with the rules and regulations in the PRC, the
PRC based employees of the Group participate in various
defined contribution retirement benefit plans organised by
the relevant municipal and provincial governments in the
PRC under which the Group and the PRC based employees
are required to make monthly contributions to these plans
calculated as a percentage of the employees’ salaries.

The municipal and provincial governments undertake to
assume the retirement benefit obligations of all existing and
future retired PRC based employees payable under the plans
described above. Other than the monthly contributions, the
Group has no further obligation for the payment of retirement
and other post retirement benefits of its employees. The assets
of these plans are held separately from those of the Group
in independently administered funds managed by the PRC
government.

The Group also participates in a pension scheme under the
rules and regulations of the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
Ordinance (“MPF Scheme”), which is a defined contribution
retirement scheme for all employees in Hong Kong. The
contributions to the MPF Scheme are based on minimum
statutory contribution requirement of 5% of eligible employees’
relevant aggregate income. The assets of this pension scheme
are held separately from those of the Group in independently
administered funds.

The Group’s contributions to the defined contribution
retirement schemes are expensed as incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5h A IS R B T
For the year ended 31 March 2013 # % 201343 431 H IF4F %
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Share-based payments

2.

)

@

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

The Group operates a number of equity-settled, share-
based compensation plans, under which the entity
receives services from employees as consideration for
equity instruments (options) of the Group. The fair
value of the employee services received in exchange for
the grant of the options is recognised as an expense. The
total amount to be expensed is determined by reference
to the fair value of the options granted. In determining
the fair value of the options granted:

. market performance conditions are taken into
considerations;
. the impact of any service and non-market

performance vesting conditions (for example,
profitability, sales growth targets and
remaining as employee of the entity over a
specified time period) is excluded; and

. the impact of any non-vesting conditions is
included.

Non-market vesting conditions are included in
assumptions about the number of options that are
expected to vest. The total expense is recognised over
the vesting period, which is the period over which all of
the specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied. At
the balance sheet date, the Group revises its estimates
of the number of options that are expected to vest based
on non-marketing vesting conditions. It recognises
the impact of the revision to original estimates, if
any, in the consolidated income statement, with a
corresponding adjustment to equity.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(s) Share-based payments (Continued)

@

(ii)

(iii)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
(Continued)

The cash subscribed for the shares issued when the
options are exercised is credited to share capital
(nominal value) and share premium, net of any
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
issue.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the
amount previously recognised in share option reserve
will be transferred to share premium. When the share
options are forfeited or are not exercised at the expiry
date, the amount previously recognised in share option
reserve will be transferred to retained earnings.

Share-based payment transactions among group
entities

The grant by the Company of options over its
equity instruments to the employees of subsidiary
undertakings in the Group is treated as a capital
contribution. The fair value of employee services
received, measured by reference to the grant date
fair value, is recognised over the vesting period as an
increase to investment in subsidiary undertakings, with
a corresponding credit to equity in the parent entity
accounts.

Share options granted to a consultant

Share options issued in exchange for services are
measured at fair value of the services received. The fair
value of the options granted is determined on the same
basis as those for employees and directors of the Group.
The fair value of the services received is recognised as
an expense, unless the services qualify for recognition
as assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5h A IS R B T
For the year ended 31 March 2013 # % 201343 431 H IF4F %

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(®

()

)

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets, when
expenditure for the asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are
being incurred and activities that are necessary to prepare the
assets for its intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation
of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned
on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation. All other borrowing
costs are recognised in the consolidated income statement in the
period in which they are incurred.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with
the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-
maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible
for allocating resources and assessing performance of the
operating segments, has been identified as the executive
directors that makes strategic decisions.

Foreign currency translation

(@) Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the consolidated financial statements
of each of the Group’s entities are measured using
the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (the “functional currency”).
The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollar (“HK$”), which is the Company’s
functional and the Group’s presentation currency.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(v)  Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions or valuation where items
are re-measured. Foreign exchange gains and losses
resulting from the settlement of such transactions
and from the translation at year-end exchange rates
of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are recognised in the consolidated
income statement, except when deferred in other
comprehensive income as qualifying cash flow hedges
and qualifying net investment hedges.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to
borrowings and cash and cash equivalents are presented
in the consolidated income statement within ‘finance
income or cost’. All other foreign exchange gains
and losses are presented in the consolidated income
statement within ‘other gains — net’.

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities
denominated in foreign currency classified as available
for sale are analysed between translation differences
resulting from changes in the amortised cost of the
security and other changes in the carrying amount of the
security. Translation differences related to changes in
amortised cost are recognised in profit or loss, and other
changes in carrying amount are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets and liabilities such as equities held at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised in profit or loss
as part of the fair value gain or loss. Translation
differences on non-monetary financial assets, such as
equities classified as available for sale, are included in
other comprehensive income.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities (none of which has the currency of a hyper-
inflationary economy) that have a functional currency
different from the presentation currency are translated
into the presentation currency as follows:
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 # % 201343 431 H IF4F %

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Foreign currency translation (Continued)

2.

)

(iii)

Group companies (Continued)

(a) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at the
date of that balance sheet;

(b) income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average exchange
rates (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the
rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in
which case income and expenses are translated
at the rate on the dates of the transactions); and

(c) all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of the net investment in foreign
operations, and of borrowings and other currency
instruments designated as hedges of such investments,
are taken to other comprehensive income. When
a foreign operation is partially disposed of or
sold, exchange differences that were recorded in
other comprehensive income are recognised in the
consolidated income statement as part of the gain or
loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the
closing rate.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

W)

x)

Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of
ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating
leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any
incentives received from the lessor), including upfront payment
made for land use right, are charged to the consolidated income
statement on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

The Group leases certain property, plant and equipment.
Leases of property, plant and equipment where the Group
has substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are
classified as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised at
the lease’s commencement at the lower of the fair value of the
leased property and the present value of the minimum lease
payments.

Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and
finance charges so as to achieve a constant rate on the finance
balance outstanding. The corresponding rental obligations, net
of finance charges, are included in finance lease obligations.
The interest element of the finance cost is charged to the
consolidated income statement over the lease period so as to
produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability for each period. The property, plant and
equipment acquired under finance leases is depreciated over the
shorter of the useful life of the asset and the lease term.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require the
issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a
loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payments
when due, in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.
Such financial guarantees are given to banks on behalf of
subsidiaries and other independent third parties to secure loans
and other banking facilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5h A IS R B T
For the year ended 31 March 2013 # % 201343 431 H IF4F %

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.

(x)

Financial guarantee contracts (Continued)

Financial guarantees are initially recognised in the consolidated
financial statements at fair values on the date the guarantee
was given. The fair value of a financial guarantee at the time
of signature is zero because all guarantees are agreed on arm’s
length terms, and the value of the premium agreed corresponds
to the value of the guarantee obligation. No receivable for
the future premiums is recognised. Subsequent to initial
recognition, the Group’s liabilities under such guarantees are
measured at the higher of the initial amount, less amortisation
of fees recognised in accordance with HKAS 18, and the
best estimate of the amount required to settle the guarantee.
These estimates are determined based on experience of similar
transactions and history of past losses, supplemented by
management’s judgement. The fee income earned is recognised
on a straight-line basis over the life of the guarantee. Any
increase in the liability relating to guarantees is reported in the
consolidated income statement within administrative expenses.

Where guarantees in relation to loans of subsidiaries are
provided for no compensation, the fair values are accounted
for as contributions and recognised as part of the cost of the
investment in the financial statements of the Company.

2.
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3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(@)

Amended standards and interpretations adopted by
the Group

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

The HKICPA has amended HKAS 12, ‘Income taxes’, to
introduce an exception to the principle for the measurement
of deferred tax assets or liabilities arising on an investment
property measured at fair value. HKAS 12 requires an entity
to measure the deferred tax relating to an asset depending on
whether the entity expects to recover the carrying amount of
the asset through use or sale. The amendment introduces a
rebuttable presumption that an investment property measured
at fair value is recovered entirely by sale. The amendment is
applicable retrospectively to annual periods beginning on or
after 1 April 2012.

The Group has adopted this amendment retrospectively for the
financial year ended 31 March 2013 and the effects of adoption
are disclosed as follows.

As disclosed in Notes 18 and 19, the Group has investment
properties and investment properties under construction
measured at their fair values totalling HK$938,470,000 as of 1
April 2012 (1 April 2011: HK$908,998,000). The investment
properties and investment properties under construction held by
the Group are located in Hong Kong and the People’s Republic
of China (“PRC”). As required by the amendment, the Group
has re-measured the deferred tax relating to certain investment
properties and investment properties under construction
amounting to HK$37,276,000 as of 1 April 2012 (1 April
2011: HK$33,674,000) according to the tax consequence
on the presumption that they are recovered entirely by sale
retrospectively. The comparative figures for 2012 have
been restated to reflect the change in accounting policy, as
summarised below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 # % 201343 H31 H IL4F R

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 3.
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(CONTINUED)

Amended standards and interpretations adopted by

(@)

the Group (Continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures (Continued)

Effect on consolidated balance sheet

TR BT B 8805 T 2 7 i S 5 i
e (48)

(a)  ACHEPIR AN A AT I R
W B (4)
7t BORSE B) K i 7% (A1)
HRRERMEE

As at 31 March As at 1 April

#3H31H R4H1H

2013 2012 2011

HKS$°000 HKS$°000 HK$’000

T THTT THTT

Increase in deferred income tax liabilities PEAE RS & B hn 42,473 37,276 33,674

Decrease in retained earnings R B3 ¥ A ek 2 18,557 15,646 14,467

Decrease in translation reserve e 5. ft i 3,995 3,995 3,034

Decrease in non-controlling interests I A2 I 4 ol 2 19,921 17,635 16,173

Effect on consolidated income statement AR g 0 2
Year ended 31 March
BWEIA3IHILAEE

2013 2012

HK$°000 HK$°000

F#u THIT

Increase in income tax expense A BH S 5,197 2,082
Decrease in net profit attributable to equity 7 ] PR A s

holders of the Company 2,911 1,179
Decrease in net profit attributable to T FROHEE i OB A v i 0

non-controlling interests 2,286 903

Decrease in basic EPS (HK cents) HIEAR AL (Al 0.23 0.09

Decrease in diluted EPS (HK cents) T ISR A () 0.23 0.10

Other than as disclosed below, there are no HKFRSs or
HK(IFRIC) interpretations that are effective for the first time
for the financial year beginning on or after 1 April 2012 that
would be expected to have a material impact on the Group.
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3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 3.  fRAIFis] REBIERT 2 5l M % it

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS e ()

(CONTINUED)

(b) New standards and amendments to standards have (b) DL PraT e ) R B ) 2 (g
been issued but are not effective for the financial year sl AR - HR 201244 H
beginning on 1 April 2012 and have not been early 1 H BA 8 2 B BUAE BE W oK AR 2
adopted: T A 45 [ 5 A 4 L PR 4 -

Effective for T s
annual periods B2
beginning R M
on or after ¥
HKAS | (Amendment)  Presentation of financial statements  presentation of Lhly2012  Fikashens 5 MEREZ B -E02E  201267A1H
items of ofher comprehensive income (1) WAZERES]
HKAS 19 (Amendment) - Employee benefits amary 013 ZU&FHERS 0% (B74) EAREA 013 1H1H
HKAS 27 (revised 2011)  Separate financal statements LJanuary 2013 B eaHEIF75 B T WIEIAH
(2011 &)
HKAS 28 (revised 2011)  nvestments in associates and joint ventures Ulamiary 2013 il &zt R85 REEAARABLEZ  WEIAIA
(2011 &) 4
HKAS 32 (Amendment)  Financial Instruments: presentation  offsetting Vamary 2014 ZUSGFHERSESE (B3T4) BBLA : 27— K850H 0148 1A1H
financial assets and financial iabilities BERMEARK
HKFRS 7 (Amendment) ~ Financial Instruments: disclosure - offseting January 2014 FWs A Hca bR 75 MBTH  WE- R 2014118
financial assets and financial iabilities (1) BRI AR
HKFRS 7and HKFRS 9 Mandatory effective date and transition disclosures Vamary 2015 BHRMHREENFEREE  BHAMAHRBEESEE  2015FI11H
(Amendment) BRI (BiTk)
HKERS 9 Financial instruments Uaniary 2015 BB ERAIR8: BBLA WISELALA
HKERS 10 Consolidated financial statements lamuary 2013 il B SR 55 108 SRITHRE WIEIAH
HKFRS 10, 11and 12 Transition guidance Vamary 2013 BRGNS0 BELES WIEIAH
(Amendments) BTSRRI 1R
Bk mH R R 105
(%)
HKFRS 11 Joint armangements Uanuary 2013 Bl HR AR5 115 BEEH WIBEIAH
HKERS 12 Disclosures of interests in other enfities lamuary 2013 il AR 25 185 g ik WI3EIAH
HKERS 13 Fair value measurements amuary 2013 il B AR 26 135 MilEE WIEIAH
Annual improvements — HKFRS 2009 - 2011 cycle lamary 2013 AR BB WIEIAH
20095201 1B

The Group is in the process of making an assessment on the
impact of these new standards, amendments and interpretations
and does not anticipate that the adoption will result in any
material impact on the Group’s results of operations and
financial position.

The Group intends to adopt the above new standards and
amendments to standards when they become effective.

AR T B LE AT A 52 BT AT HE B~ BT
R R HA TR e
B A B B A S A R B IR DL 2
DREREEDN-Z 3

A G BRI b IR AT e S B HE R 2 1
AR RORE R AN % S HE QU R AT -



R B KR AT B2 W] 83
20134F3k
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENT

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 2, the Directors of the Company are required to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period
or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects
both current and future periods. The following are the key assumptions
concerning the future, and other key areas of judgement that may have
a significant impact in determining the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities.

Estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful lives and
related depreciation charges for its property, plant and equipment.
This estimate is based on the historical experience of the actual useful
lives of property, plant and equipment of similar nature and functions.
It could change significantly as a result of technical innovations and
competitor actions in response to market conditions. Management
will increase the depreciation charge where useful lives are less than
previously estimated lives, or it will write-off or write-down technically
obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold.

Fair value of leasehold land and buildings, investment
properties and investment properties under construction
Leasehold land and buildings, investment properties and investment
properties under construction are stated at fair value in accordance
with the Group’s accounting policies. The fair value of leasehold land
and buildings, investment properties and investment properties under
construction are determined by independent professional valuers,
BMI Appraisals Limited and DTZ Debenham Tie Leung Limited, and
the fair values of leasehold land and buildings, investment properties
and investment properties under construction are set out in notes 21,
18 and 19 to the consolidated financial statements respectively. Such
valuations were based on certain assumptions, which are subject to
uncertainty and might materially differ from actual results.

In making the judgement, reasonable consideration has been given to
the underlying assumptions based on market conditions existing at the
balance sheet date. These estimates are regularly compared to actual
market data and actual transactions in the market for similar type of
properties in nearby locations..
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
]UDGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Impairment of trade receivables

The Group’s management determines the provision for impairment of
trade receivables on a regular basis. This estimate is based on the credit
history of its customers and prevailing market conditions. Management
reassesses the provision for impairment of trade receivables at the
balance sheet date.

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion
and selling expenses. These estimates are based on the current market
condition and the historical experience of selling products of similar
nature. It could change significantly as a result of competitor actions
in response to severe industry cycles. Management reassesses these
estimations at the end of each reporting date to ensure inventories are
shown at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Recoverability of completed properties held for sale and
properties under development

Management performs a regular review on the carrying amounts of
completed properties held for sale and properties under development.
Based on management’s review, write-down of completed properties
held for sale and properties under development will be made when the
estimated net realisable value has declined below the carrying amount.
In determining the net realisable value of completed properties held
for sale and properties under development, management refers to the
latest economic measures introduced by the local government, recent
global and local economic developments, recent sales transactions
of the Group and other similar properties in the surrounding areas,
marketability of the Group’s existing properties, market survey reports
available from independent property valuers, internally available
information and management’s expectation on future sales.

Promotional sales of certain properties

As discussed in note 2(q), the Group conducted a promotional sale of
certain properties since 2009. Sales consideration for these properties
included an explicitly agreed transaction price to be settled in cash
plus a lease back of these properties to the Group free of charge. Of the
explicitly agreed transaction price the Group received a down-payment
of 24% in cash upon transfer of title to the properties with the remainder
being receivable in future. As all the revenue recognition criteria had
been met the Group recorded this as a revenue transaction.
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
]UDGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Promotional sales of certain properties (Continued)

Having considered a number of factors such as the overall state of
the property market, the prospects of the properties and profile of
individual buyers, management determined that the collectability of the
receivable was not reasonably assured at the date of sale. Accordingly,
revenue was recorded only to the extent of cash received. Management
reassesses the collectability of the receivable based on the credit history
of the customers and prevailing market conditions at each balance
sheet date to ensure the recoverable amount of the receivable was fairly
stated.

Share-based payment

The determination of the fair value of the share options granted requires
estimates in determining, among others, the expected volatility of the
share price, the expected dividend yield, the risk-free interest rate for
the life of the option, and the number of options that are expected to
become exercisable. Where the outcome of these estimates is different,
it will impact the fair value of the share option and the amount of share
option expense charged to the consolidated income statement during
the vesting periods of the relevant share options.

PRC land appreciation tax

The Group is subject to land appreciation taxes in the PRC. However,
the implementation and settlement of these taxes varies among various
tax jurisdictions in cities of the PRC, and the Group has not finalised
its PRC land appreciation taxes calculation and payments with any
local tax authorities in the PRC. Accordingly, significant judgement
is required in determining the amount of the land appreciation and its
related taxes. The Group recognised these PRC land appreciation taxes
based on relevant rules and regulations. The final tax outcome could
be different from the amounts that were initially recorded, and these
differences will impact the taxation and tax provisions in the years in
which such taxes have been finalised with local tax authorities.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the
group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to
maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The capital structure of the Group consists of borrowings (note 32),
cash and cash equivalents (note 30) and equity attributable to equity
holders of the Group.

The Group reviews the capital structure periodically. As a part of
this review, the Group considers costs of capital, its bank covenant
obligations and the risks associated with issued share capital and may
adjust its overall capital structure through the drawn down of bank
borrowings, the repayment of existing borrowings or the adjustment of
dividend to shareholders.
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6.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group’s major financial instruments include financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss, trade and other receivables, cash and cash
equivalents, trade and other payables, borrowings, and amount due
to an associate. Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in
respective notes. The risks associated with these financial instruments,
include market risk (currency risk, interest rate risk and price risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk, and the policies on how to mitigate
these risks are set out below. The Group does not have written risk
management policies and guidelines. However, the board of directors
meets periodically to analyse and formulate measures to manage the
Group’s exposure to different risks arising from the use of financial
instruments. Generally, the Group employs conservative strategies
regarding its risk management. The management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a
timely and effective manner.

(a) Market risk
@) Currency risk

The Group’s foreign currency assets, liabilities and
transactions are principally denominated in Chinese
Renminbi (“RMB”) and United States dollar (“US$”).
These currencies are not the functional currencies of
the Group entities to which these balances relate. The
Group is exposed to foreign currency risk arising from
the movements in the exchange rates of these different
currencies against the functional currencies of the
Group entities. The Group manages its foreign currency
risks by closely monitoring the movement of the
foreign currency rates. Most of the Group’s business
transactions are denominated in Hong Kong dollar
(“HK$”), US$ and RMB.

The Group considers there is no significant exposure
to foreign exchange fluctuations as long as the Hong
Kong-United States dollar exchange rate remains
pegged. However, the Group is exposed to fluctuation
in exchange rates of RMB. At 31 March 2013, if HK$
had weakened/strengthened by 3% (2012: 3%) against
RMB with all other variables held constant, post-tax
profit for the year would have been HK$4,125,000
(2012: HK$3,837,000) lower/higher, mainly as a
result of foreign exchange losses/gains on translation
of RMB-denominated receivables, payables and
borrowings.
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5h A IS R B T
For the year ended 31 March 2013 # % 201343 431 H IF4F %
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Market risk (Continued)

6.

(@)

(i)

Interest rate risk

Except for the cash held at banks, the Group has no
other significant interest bearing assets. The Group’s
income and operating cash flows are substantially
independent of changes in market interest rates.

At 31 March 2013, if interest rates on cash held at banks
had been 25 basis points higher/lower with all other
variables held constant, post-tax profit for the year
would have been approximately HK$940,000 (2012:
HK$1,324,000) higher/lower, mainly as a result of
higher/lower interest income on cash at banks.

The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk relates
primarily to variable-rate borrowings of HK$327,600,000
(2012: HK$184,500,000). Borrowings at variable rates
expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk which is
partially offset by cash deposit held at variable rates. It
is the Group’s policy to keep the majority of borrowings
at floating interest rate so as to minimise the fair value
interest rate risk.

The Group’s exposures to interest rates on financial
liabilities are detailed in the liquidity risk section of
this note. The Group’s interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of market interest rates
arising from the Group’s deposits and borrowings.

6.
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(a) Market risk (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

At 31 March 2013, if interest rates had been 25 basis
points higher/lower with all other variables held
constant, interest payment on floating rate borrowing
would have been approximately HK$819,000 (2012:
HK$461,000) higher/lower. Interest expenses on
these floating rate borrowings would be capitalised in
accordance with the Group’s capitalisation rate. The
Group anticipates that the impact on profit of the Group
resulting from changes in interest expenses capitalised
would have been approximately HK$719,000 (2012:
HK$449,000).

Price risk

The Group’s financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss represent investments in listed equity
securities and are measured at fair value at each balance
sheet date. Therefore, the Group is exposed to equity
securities price risk. The management manages this
exposure by maintaining a diversified portfolio of
investments with different characteristics.

The sensitivity analysis below is prepared to illustrate
the Group’s exposure to equity price risk at the
reporting date. A 10% change is used when reporting
the price risk internally to the management. If the
price of the respective equity instruments had been
10% higher/lower, the net unrealised gain on financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss would have
been increased/decreased and the profit for the year
would have been increased/decreased by approximately
HK$2,371,000 (2012: HK$3,794,000).

S 785 I B 4 B ) B B SR ()

T 35 LB (4)
i) FIERJEES (A1)

(iii)
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 # % 201343 431 H IF4F %

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

6.

(b)

(©)

Credit risk

Credit risk mainly arises from trade and other receivables,
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, and cash and
cash equivalents.

In respect of cash and cash equivalents, the Group will place its
cash in banks and financial institutions with high credit ratings
assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

As at 31 March 2013, the top five customers accounted
for approximately 69% (2012: 71%) of the Group’s trade
receivables balance.

Most of the Group’s customers do not have independent
rating. Before accepting any new customer, where available
at reasonable cost, the Group obtains credit report from
commercial information provider to assess the potential
customer’s credit and defines credit limits by customer. Credit
limits of customers are reviewed periodically. In order to
minimise the credit risk, the management of the Group has
established credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debts.

For certain trade receivables in connection with sales of
properties, the Group has the right to repossess the properties
when the repayment of trade receivables of properties sales
is in default. The arrangement has mitigated the credit risk
for the customers which cannot be assessed through our past
experience and other factors to prove their credit standing.

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management to finance
the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations
in cash flows. The management monitors the utilisation of
borrowings and ensures compliance with loan covenants, if any
borrowing has been drawn.

6.
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(©

6.

St 5 DL B A BE H B M B3R (4)

Liquidity risk (Continued) () TRENE b (4)
The following tables show the remaining contractual maturities T RBR AR B AR AT
at the balance sheet date of the Group’s bank borrowings, B R MR BB > AR
based on undiscounted cash flows (include interest payments PEET &) R BB B 4 0m (0 45 4
computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates FTH R ARG E AT 5
current at the balance sheet date) and the earliest date the Group BRI > RIARSE A 455 H )
can be required to pay. ) Jo A £E [ W] R AE R 1 fex
HHWEHE -
Specifically, for bank borrowings which contain a repayment AW - SERSHEARIT] 2
on demand clause which can be exercised at the bank’s sole FEB I 47 6 1 2 BSR4 AR
discretion, the analysis shows the cash outflow based on the HERATIEXMN T > I BUR IR 55
earliest period in which the Group can be required to pay, that Z4E [ R BERE BoR R Ak 2 e TR
is if the lenders were to invoke their unconditional rights to call [T (B 5 7 A7 (e L A {4 E |
the loans with immediate effect. The maturity analysis for other HRER) FTEZHERE - &
bank borrowings is prepared based on the scheduled repayment L ERAT 15 B I HA B 434 T AR 95
dates. WE e # 3k H HAm A o
The Group’s financial liabilities have contractual maturities as AL MT ABZ G421 H i
follows: g
31 March 2013 31 March 2012
R201343H31H 01243 A31H
Maturity Analysis - Undiscounted cash outflows Maturity Analysis - Undiscounted cash outflows
FH H 43 B — A B BB 4 0 B H 23 A — R A5 3R B 0
On Lessthan Between1 Between?2 On  Lessthan Betweenl Between?2
demand Lyear and 2 years and 5 years Total  demand I year and?2years and 5 years Total
—HE R o
wEk R i fk aE BBk R ik i3 A%
HKS$000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HKS$000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS$000  HKS000
T  Tdx  Fi#x ¥k FEx TEx  Tx T T TEx
Trade and other JEfF ot LA
payables TR - 20073 - - 200723 - 252484 - - 252484
Borrowingsand SRS
interest payments 190,207 46,261 43,381 78,120 357,969 - 50,096 47049 122411 219,556
Amountduetoan  JER—%
associate Brg AR -2l - - 2881 A1) - A i))
190207 9565 43381 TN S6127 S a9 1241 4N
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

6.

(©)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The following table summarises the maturity analysis of bank
borrowings with a repayment on demand clause based on
agreed scheduled repayments set out in the loan agreement. The
amounts include interest payments computed using contractual
rates. As a result, these amounts were greater than the amounts
disclosed in the “on demand” time band in the maturity analysis
above. Taking into account the Group’s financial position, the
directors do not consider that it is probable that the bank will
exercise its discretion to demand immediate repayment. The
directors believe that such bank borrowings will be repaid in
accordance with the scheduled repayment dates set out in the
loan agreement.

6.
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Maturity Analysis — Bank borrowings subject to

a repayment on demand clause based on

scheduled repayments
B3] H 23 A — A0 bn o 2 sk H 0 T 02
A 2 ZEOR R Ik PRy R AT i B

Less than Between 1 and Between 2 and

On demand 1 year 2 years S years Total

HER —HERN EERE WEELE ik

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000

il T b i iRi

31 March 2013 201343 H31H - 43,913 42,973 103,321 190,207
31 March 2012 20124F3A31H - - - - -

The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows, which may differ from the carrying
values of the liabilities at the balance sheet date.

bR R 2 SRS KRB
BEWwE - TaARNRGEE R 2
AARARTEI(E
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(d)

Fair value estimation
The different levels of the fair value measurement hierarchy
have been defined as follows:

. Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

. Inputs other than quoted prices included within level
1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived
from prices) (level 2).

. Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (that is unobservable inputs)
(level 3).

The financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
equity securities that are traded in an active market. Closing
stock prices are readily available from active market and are
used as being representative of fair value. As at 31 March
2013, the Group and the Company have these financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss of HK$28,396,000 (2012:
HK$45,435,000) and HK$720,000 (2012: HK$2,225,000)
respectively, which were classified as level 1 for the purpose of
measuring fair value.

St 5 DL B A BE H B M B3R (4)

(@)

AP R
O PRl wt AR 2 AN A JE AR
W

. TR 5 B R R TE 7 R T
B 2 BB CREETHHE) (551
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fEA% ) 2 Al LA Ho At g A
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R T LS T 2 chk (BP
IS AR (53
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AR SR AR A FAHSNIR 2 TS &
E T S BT 3 28 B 2 A 7R
J5 o B S i T AE AT A E B T
Bl Rl s AR (E o
201343 H31 H » fERFEA E
WF o ASEE [ KA S RS % A iR
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(20124F : 2,225,000%7C) 734 5
E1E -



RA:BIBRAT B A W] 93
20134F3k

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B S A I

For the year ended 31 March 2013 # % 201343 431 H IF4F %

7.

REVENUE

Revenue represents (i) the amounts received and receivable from
customers in respect of goods sold less returns and allowances; (ii)
the proceeds from the sale of properties during the year; and (iii) the

WA

WABIEG)E T & 2 &SRR &
KA futs 2 Bk B G IE TR 5 (GD) 4R
T8 B 1 3 2 T A ROE 5 R (i) FEL 45

amounts received and receivable in respect of leasing of investment B 2 B S B SRTE o
properties.

2013 2012
HK$’000 HKS$°000
F#u THIT
Sales of pearls and jewellery DI E & 261,411 300,024
Sales of properties LIE S 159,375 32,768
Rental income A 40,399 37,444
461,185 370,236

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group determines its operating segments based on the reports
reviewed by the executive directors that are used to make strategic
decisions.

The Group has two reportable operating segments. The Group’s
operating businesses are structured and managed separately according
to the nature of the operations and the product perspectives. Each of the
Group’s reportable operating segment represents a strategic business
unit that are subject to risks and returns that are different from the
other reportable operating segment. Details of the reportable operating
segment are as follows:

(1) Pearls and jewellery — Purchasing, processing, assembling,
merchandising, wholesale distribution of pearls and jewellery
products.

(i1) Property — Development, sales and leasing of properties.

vigihg s
AR5 [ AR AR RA AT 2 5 3 BRI PR A H R
e it i HLE AR o

A A T ] B o AR
i NSRS M) B 2R
B o ASERH 2 A AT A A AR
— A S RS AL > JFL R D [ e L
AT R S AR [R] o T R )
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8.  SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 8. SrHER(HE)
Segment information about these businesses is presented below: A BRRZ S 2 R R T
For the year ended 31 March 2013: BE20134E3H31 H LA -
Pearls
and
jewellery Property Total
73737311 L/ES At
HKS$°000 HK$°000 HKS$000
Tl Tl Tl
Profit and loss items Al R EHEEH
Segment revenue NN 261,411 200,944 462,355
Inter-segment revenue ey UN - (1,170) (1,170)
Revenue from external customers REINBEF ZUA 261,411 199,774 461,185
Segment operating profit isiidesc byl 11,201 104,530 115,731
Finance income igrLlen 648 13,578 14,226
Finance costs AT A - (12,496) (12,496)
Share of profit of an associate T A — KW A wl i A - 23 23
Segment profit before income tax [ B A5 B R0 s s 1 11,849 105,635 117,484
Income tax expense JAR BB 3 (1,154) (46,752) (47,906)
Segment profit for the year ARAF B35 s A 10,695 58,883 69,578
As at 31 March 2013 #201343H31H
Balance sheet items B A HKER
Total segment assets AR 348,855 1,617,144 1,965,999
Total segment assets include: AR A AR -
Investment in an associate R—FEE N Z G - 144 144
Additions to non-current assets FRBEE 2 M (REL
(other than deferred income tax assets) Fis i EEA) 2,480 90 2,570
Total segment liabilities Gany = 33,627 784,466 818,093
Other information: HibGH -
Depreciation e (4,801) (2,874) (7,675)
Amortisation e - ® ®
Impairment loss on prepaid lease payment TN ESOE 2 WS - (5,704) (5,704)
Increase in fair values of investment properties and ~ #5 & 43 R fE @ EWI %
investment properties under construction N LB - 46,638 46,638
Gain on disposals of investment properties and HEREWERE R ENEL
investment properties under development A - 9,577 9,577
Gain on disposals of property, plant and equipment  HEWZE » FiE Kikfi Z A 407 - 407
Reversal of provision for impairment of trade TR B 2 kAR
receivables 3 3,763 - 3,763
Reversal of provision for inventory obsolescence THILE B I 3,636 - 3,636
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 #(%20134F3 431 H IL4E
SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 8. AEFER(H)
For the year ended 31 March 2012 (restated): 2012453 H 31 H IR 4R (BB ES) :
Pearls
and
jewellery Property Total
737351 ES Ast
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T T T
Profit and loss items Al R
Segment revenue AEBITA 300,024 71,333 371,357
Inter-segment revenue P2 A = (1,121) (1,121)
Revenue from external customers ENERy - 92ba | UN 300,024 70,212 370,236
Segment operating profit iniives byl 40,678 98,282 138,960
Finance income e 1,889 9,084 10,973
Finance costs AT B A = (8,382) (8,882)
Share of loss of an associate FEfG— e A vl - O] *)
Segment profit before income tax Bk BT A5 20 42,567 98,480 141,047
Income tax expense JARBL B 3 (3,358) (37,814) (41,172)
Segment profit for the year ARAEFE i A 39,209 60,666 99,875
As at 31 March 2012 R20125£3H31H
Balance sheet items BEAKERER
Total segment assets IR AR e 339,145 1,681,128 2,020,273
Total segment assets include: SR AR A AR -
Investment in an associate R—FWEAR 2R E = 121 121
Additions to non-current assets FRBEEZIEM (BRIEL
(other than deferred income tax assets) Frs g 2,252 6,510 8,762
Total segment liabilities G 58U 42,884 908,275 951,159
Other information: HingH
Depreciation e (4,494) (3,668) (8,162)
Amortisation i - (2,328) (2,328)
Increase in fair values of investment properties and &3 RAE HAL B2 RRAH
investment properties under construction b} - 40,400 40,400
Gain on disposals of investment properties HEREWEZ B = 15,158 15,158
Gain on disposals of property, plant and equipment ~ HEHFE - 5 Rk 2 dA 41 92 133
Reversal of provision for impairment of trade TN 2K 2 B
receivables [e] f3¢ 7918 10,422 18,340
Reversal of provision for inventory obsolescence I B 2 Tl 7,800 = 7,800
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 #%201343 H31 H IL4F R
SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

A reconciliation of the reportable segments’ profit before income tax to

8.

the Group’s profit before income tax is as follows:

g3 R B (4H)
T 0 RS AR P A T A B A 4 R
PrAs Bl it A1) 2 IR0

2013 2012

HK$°000 HK$°000

T THTT

(restated)

(K85

Total profit before income tax for reportable segments 7] #4573 Bk T 15 Fd il 4234 7] 117,484 141,047

Fair value change in financial assets at fair value ERR R RAES R T B

through profit or loss VAL 4,933 (3,804)

Dividend income i Bl 1,590 1,957
Share options expenses M REBH 5 379 (12,761)

Loss on disposal of subsidiaries B BB 2 R i 1R (2,814) -

Corporate finance (costs)/income, net NEEH (RA) s F 8 (1,851) 1,594
Corporate expenses Vol b3 (6,886) (5.824)

Profit before income tax of the Group 745 [ B A B Al i 112,077 122,209

A reconciliation of the reportable segments’ assets to the Group’s total

assets is as follows:

T ity 0 LA A T MR 2 IR
wr

2013 2012

HK$°000 HK$’000

T T T

Total for reportable segments T R4 SR AR 1,965,999 2,020,273

Unallocated: AAHL

Corporate assets NFEIEE 6,303 306,382
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss IR L5 P B PR 2

K 28,396 45,435

Current income tax recoverable ] e [|] B4 Fr A5 A 991 991

Total assets of the Group A G 2,001,689 2,373,081

A reconciliation of the reportable segments’ liabilities to the Group’s

total liabilities is as follows:

AT R AR AR AR I A B R
LU

2013 2012

HK$°000 HK$’000

T T T

Total for reportable segments AT R AR 818,093 951,159
Unallocated: ROTHL :

Corporate liabilities NEBE 180,754 1,713

Current income tax liabilities RIVHA s 4 1 - 939

Total liabilities of the Group AL M B R 998,847 953,811




RA:BIBRAT B A W] 97
20134F3k

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B S A I

For the year ended 31 March 2013 # % 201343 431 H IF4F %

8.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

The Company is domiciled in Hong Kong. The Group’s revenue
from external customers derived from Hong Kong and places other
than Hong Kong are HK$26,487,000 (2012: HK$15,644,000) and
HK$434,698,000 (2012: HK$354,592,000) respectively.

The Group’s two operating segments operate in the main geographical
areas and of which the revenues are disclosed as follows:

8.

5 W B (A

BN/ 55 N S P S
KA LVAN 2 AR 2 M A4 Al
£526,487,000 # JT (20124F © 15,644,000
#E T ) M 434,698,000 #E 7T (2012 4F ¢
354,592,000 7C) °

A5 T S 8“0 R 2 T [ S
Hlg Ay

2013 2012

HK$’000 HK$°000

Tl FH#IC

Europe i 106,267 150,464
Mainland China (excluding Hong Kong) HERRE (REEEE) 196,641 67,595
Hong Kong FE 26,487 15,644
North America JEEM 67,472 76,991
Other Asian countries HoAth BRI B R 55,612 50,506
Others HAth 8,706 9,036
461,185 370,236

The total non-current assets excluding investment in an associate and
deferred income tax assets located in Hong Kong and places other
than Hong Kong are HK$202,825,000 (2012: HK$187,838,000) and
HK$891,812,000 (2012: HK$871,970,000) respectively.

Revenue from the transactions with each single customer amounted to
less than 10% of total revenue of the Group for the year ended 31 March
2013 (2012: HK$54,211,000, HK$38,383,000 and HK$37,951,000
were derived from three individual customers in the Pearls and
jewellery segment).

7 A 7 e K 7 s DAL A L 2 JF I B
R (NEER — KB E AR 2 RE
KR SE P AR B 2 ) 43 Al £5202,825,000
W 0 (2012 4F : 187,838,000 s oG ) K
891,812,000%5 7T (20124F : 871,970,000
Jh) e

BE20134E3 H31 H IL4EFE > B4 Al
38 Gy 2 Mg A A 4R T Al 25 2D s
10% (20124F : 2R A B IR B E 0 &8 =4
BRI & B Z WA 43 7l 49 5 54,211,000 #5
JG ~ 38,383,000%5 75 /237,951,000457T) °
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9. OTHER INCOME

9. Atk

2013 2012
HK$°000 HKS$°000
T T
Dividend income from financial assets at fair value RIR R ES R TS
through profit or loss B Z B g 1,590 1,957
Others HAth 431 2,390
2,021 4347
10. OTHER GAINS - NET 10. HABBA —F#
2013 2012
HK$°000 HK$°000
T THTT
Exchange losses EE 5t s 15 (1,679) (1,713)
Fair value change in financial assets at fair value BB R A ESI IR S E
through profit or loss AN 4,933 (3,804)
Gain on disposals of investment properties and HEREYE R R G EL
investment properties under development A 9,577 15,158
Gain on disposals of property, plant and equipment HEYZE - RWUE K 2 A 407 133
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries (note 41) HEMEA R EH (EE41) (2,814) =
Others HiAth 3,997 6,895
14,421 16,669
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11. EXPENSES BY NATURE 11. #wWHES WX
2013 2012
HK$’000 HKS$’000
SR T
Costs of inventories and completed properties for sales HFEReEER YL A 270,565 174,331
Employee benefit expenses 1 BRI B ST (L FE S e )
(including directors’ emoluments) (note 12) (Ff3E12) 77,886 83,075
Auditor’s remuneration 1 BTN £ 1,848 1,800
Share option expenses for consultancy services (note 34(c)) i R 2 M HERH 37 (FfE34(c)) - 11,316
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment W ~ R Rkt ds 7,675 8,162
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments TR B SR S 8 2,328
Impairment loss on prepaid lease payments TS S B 5,704 =
Reversal of provision for impairment of trade receivables — FEUCE Fk 2 S (FL8 s ] 3 (FfFE28)
(note 28) (3,763) (18.340)
Reversal of provision for inventory obsolescence IR < Tl B
(note 26) (Hzk26) (3,636) (7,800)
Operating lease rental on rented premises Y E KEER S 9,202 8,819
Others HoAth 46,601 49,433

Total cost of sales, selling and administrative expenses S A ~ S8 R AT B S AR 412,090 313,124
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12. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING

13.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS)

12.

D L A B S (B35 2 5 )

2013 2012

HK$’000 HK$’000

Tl FHIC

Salaries, wages and other benefits Hia o LA A 73,706 78,178
Pension costs-defined contribution plans and social T LG Bt e b

security costs Ji %N 3,801 3,452

Employee share options expenses (note 34 (c)) 1 B BB ICREBA 37 (K aE34(c)) 379 1,445

77,886 83,075

DIRECTORS' AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'’S

EMOLUMENTS

Particulars of the emoluments of the directors and the five highest paid

13. #EHREEHAFHEANEZME

EE VSR N wd  E o R

individuals are as follows: T
(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) #EHWE
2013
Performance

Salaries related  Retirement Other

and other incentive benefit benefits
Name of director Fees allowances payment contributions (note b) Total

Fiak BB Bk RER
HHEA e JHbEE BzE: ORGSR () it
HKS$000 HK$000 HKS$000 HK$000  HKS$°000 HK$’000
T T T T T T
Mr. Cheng Chung Hing WA - 3,600 - 15 1,692 5307
Mr. Cheng Tai Po [y bt - 1,800 - 7 560 2,367
Ms. Yan Sau Man, Amy WAT/MI - 1,300 1,400 15 - 3215
Mr. Zhang Huagiao (note a) AU Fe A (faka) - ! - 1 - 7
Mr. Lee Kang Bor, Thomas SRS 200 - - - - 200
Mr. Fung Yat Sang RS 220 - - - - 220
Mr. Lau Chi Wah, Alex Bt 20 - - - - 20
Mr. Kiu Wai Ming BN 20 - - - - 220
860 7271 1,400 38 2,252 11,821
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 # % 201343 H31 H IL4F R
13. DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S 13. #HEmEBAEENEZME(4)
EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)
(a)  Directors’ emoluments (Continued) (a) HEHMWE(H)
2012
Performance
Salaries related  Retirement Other Share
and other incentive benefit benefits options
Name of director Fees allowances payment  contributions (note b) benefits Total
ek BRH Bk HAbgER
HEL e AR #EzEs B (Jfeb)  MERHERA st
HKS$’000 HK$’000 HKS’000 HK$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000 HKS’000
T T T T T T T
Mr. Cheng Chung Hing LN = 3,600 - 12 1,553 = 5,165
Mr. Cheng Tai Po Ly ¥ - 3,600 - 12 910 = 452
Ms. Yan Sau Man, Amy AT = 1,800 1,400 12 = 140 3352
Mr. Zhang Huagiao (notea) AL &6
(ftzka) - 2236 - 6 - 1,151 3,393
Mr. Lee Kang Bor, Thomas 28564 200 = = = = = 200
Mr. Fung Yat Sang ity e 220 = = = = = 220
Mr. Lau Chi Wah, Alex Bl 200 - - - - - 200
Mr. Kiu Wai Ming B AL 220 = = = = = 20
840 11,236 1,400 42 2,463 1,291 17,272
Notes: BFRE -
(a) Mr. Zhang Huaqgiao was appointed as director on 20 (a) SRACAE SEAE R 2011479 H 20 H #ZAT
September 2011 and resigned as director on 3 April 2012. SR > W R20124FE4 H 3 H BHAE #
H o
(b) Other benefits consist of approximate ratable value and rent of (b) At A ) 6 355 T ) 2 2 M A E SR
the properties for accommodation and other related expenses. ZEBAFRAE B AH 4 DA S A AE B 22 -
(c) During the year ended 31 March 2013, a director agreed (c) BAE2013F3H31IH L » —2#E
to waive his emoluments of HK$1,800,000 (2012: Nil) 5[] 7= B Dk O 4 1,800,000 s

voluntarily. JG(20124F : %) -
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13. DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S 13. #HERBEBEANEZME(H)
EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)
(b)  Five highest paid individuals by hLAERHMAL
The five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group SN > AN R4 B A+
for the year include three (2012: four) directors of the Company 4 =4 (20124F © U4 ) AN
whose emoluments are set out in note 13(a) above. The AEE > HEZMAeSEEER L
emoluments of the remaining two (2012: one) individual are as SCHEEE13(a) > T HERTI 4% (2012
follows: ) AL ZME R T
2013 2012
HK$°000 HK$°000
T T T
Salaries, wages and other benefits e LEMEAEF 2,691 1,864
Pension costs-defined contribution plans and social £ 4 i€ A i3kt #1 M AL &
security costs PR A 29 12
Share options expenses M RERH S 379 60
3,099 1,936
The number of the remaining individuals whose remuneration JE IR 40 I 2 LR A A
fell within the following bands is as follows: B
Number of employees
(TN
2013 2012
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 72 % 1,500,0007 7 1 -
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7t £2,000,0007 7T -
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7C.%2,500,0009 7C 1 -
2 1
During the year ended 31 March 2013, no emoluments were BE20133 431 HIEFE » &
paid by the Group to the five highest paid individuals, including A5 18I A0 1) T 44 B A
directors, as inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as (BLIEE#EH) AT M4 > 1R 5
compensation for loss of office (2012: Nil). W5 | A A B A A £E [ 1Ry 2.

A48 Y g BRI AR £ (20124F © 4EE) o
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 # % 201343 431 H IF4F %
INCOME TAX EXPENSE 14. FrfaBiba X
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$°000
T T
(restated)
(485 51)
Current income tax: By
Hong Kong profits tax B R 764 3,652
PRC enterprise income tax o A 2E T R L 16,883 17,645
PRC land appreciation tax g - (E 9,184 5323
26,831 26,620
(Over)/under-provision in prior year: WOEAE I (AR B -
Hong Kong profits tax AU 58 (137) (380)
PRC enterprise income tax o A TR B (3,006) 930
PRC land appreciation tax H B S (A - (4,228)
(3,143) (3,678)
Deferred income tax: IRAE TSR -
Net charge to current year AR B S A 24,122 18,944
Attributable to change in tax rate Bl B) 2 5 - 226
24,122 19,170
47,810 42,112

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at a rate of 16.5% (2012:
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits for the year.

PRC enterprise income tax

The PRC enterprise income tax in respect of operations in Mainland
China is calculated at the applicable tax rates on the estimated
assessable profits for the year based on existing legislation,
interpretations and practices in respect thereof.

Withholding tax on distributed/undistributed profits

The PRC tax law imposes a withholding tax at 10%, unless reduced
by a tax treaty, for dividends distributed by PRC subsidiaries to its
immediate holding company outside the PRC for earnings generated
beginning on 1 January 2008.

T s FIAS B TIAR R A 2 Al 5T R B
A B2 16.5% (20124 ¢ 16.5%) 7t
ﬁ o

e ] i 3 - Bt

A IR P B o S 2 v A SE T
BLEARBEBUTIEG] ~ w2k B A B Gt
A AF B2 A B R i M) % T B R s
H .

C Ik, A 4 Uk s A B FE I BE
H20084F1 H 1 HBALE - BRIEBIBSAIRA T
DAY > o BB AR A e I IR N D (A
7 A ) ) SEL I DA ) T B A
AT B SN 10% TE AL ©
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14. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)

PRC land appreciation tax

Land appreciation tax in the PRC is levied on properties developed by
the Group for sale, at progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60% on
the appreciation of land value, which under the applicable regulations is
calculated based on the proceeds of sales of properties less deductible
expenditures including cost of land use rights, borrowing costs and all
property development expenditures.

The amount of taxation charge for the year can be reconciled to the
profit before income tax as follows:

14. i3 sipa =2 (4])

vpr 18 - Ml B A B

Hh R 2 b (R T kA A I o A
W2 FiH 2 THE DL B %
30% % 60% B » HFHE LTI AR i
M2 HE » LA &Y 2E S B f0 bR n]
FI8 B S (A b b il FA A AL AR~
FRA BT Y3 TR B ) R

A JBE T T B S BEL R T 45 AT e M) 2 3
MRAn

2013 2012
HK$°000 HK$°000
T T
(restated)
(%= 5)
Profit before income tax WAk BT A5 i s ) 112,077 122,209
Tax calculated at domestic income tax rate of 16.5% &AM 1SBiIRI216.5%
(2012: 16.5%) (20124F : 16.5%) 58 2 BiIE 18,493 20,164
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries operating e HA ] R [ 48 75 2 B g
in other jurisdictions KRB 2 2 7,610 6,587
Tax effect of: P2
Land appreciation tax o bR (2,296) (274)
Changes in tax rate Bl EEH) - 824
Expenses that are not deductible for tax purpose AT 2 B IE A 32 2,806 4,248
Income not subject to tax PR Z A (2,128) (2,923)
Derecognition of deferred tax asset recognised AR RERR ST MR AR AR A
previously B (712) -
Derecognition of deferred tax asset in respect of KRR A B AR HERR A 2 IR AT
unrecognised revenue BAIHE - 7,492
Tax effect of recognition of temporary difference not FRICRI AR MERR I B 2 B
previously recognised Pl s 22 5,197 2,082
Utilisation of tax loss not recognised previously o) H SR R R BUH 1R (701) -
Tax loss for which no deferred income tax asset i AT R AR L T 15 e 2 B IH
was recognised 518 693 1,780
(Over)/under-provision in prior years WA (R A2 (3,143) 550
Others FoAth 142 487
25,961 41,017
Land appreciation tax i 4 (E 9,184 1,095
Withholding tax on distributable profits on A AFE 1] B A /A W) 22 AT 4R
the Group’s PRC subsidiaries i A AT I 12,665 -
Income tax expense for the year AR BT BL B 3 47,810 42,112
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 # % 201343 431 H IF4F %

15.

16.

PROFITS ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS
OF THE COMPANY

The profits attributable to equity holders of the Company are dealt
with in the financial statements of the Company to the extent of
HK$146,120,000 (2012: HK$335,664,000).

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount is based on
the profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the Company
of approximately HK$48,244,000 (2012: HK$54,845,000) and the
weighted average number of 1,275,930,000 (2012: 1,242,012,000)
ordinary shares in issue during the year.

Basic earnings per share and diluted earnings per share are the same
for the year ended 31 March 2013 as the conversion of convertible
instruments are antidilutive.

The calculation of diluted earnings per share amount for the year
ended 31 March 2012 is based on the profit for the year attributable to
equity holders of the Company of approximately HK$54,845,000 and
1,254,404,000 ordinary shares, which represented the weighted average
number of 1,242,012,000 ordinary shares in issue during the year and
the weighted average number of 12,392,000 ordinary shares deemed to
have been issued at no consideration on the deemed exercise of all the
outstanding share options during the year.

15.

16.

A% > ) e M A ¥ A

AN BB R % A B i L 2 AR R R
JRE A1k %5 A1) B 146,120,000 H5 TC (2012 4F -
335,664,000 JC) °

2 A

A JBE R AR g R T 4 AR s D B ORI A AR
AE BB Vi B 4 48,244,000 7 7T (2012 4F ¢
54,845,000% 7)) B A< 4F B 854 T 4 ik
Z INHEEH81,275,930,000/8 (20124F :
1,242,012,000/%) 55 -

WA E20134E3 H31 H ILEF > 4 %3t
A ) B R R AR I R A ] 4R
& T BB S -

B E20124E3 A31 H L4 > 4 Bk
T ) 4% AR ] s R A A 4 8 Vi R 44
54,845,000 % JC K& 1,254,404,000 i % 48
JERTE o B ERASE RS TSk 2
0B - 15 $8501,242,012,000 /B b A8 45 B fiF
i AT B PS4 AR A AT (T
PAAE B A8 35 47 2 35 40 I A 1 35 8
12,392,000H% °
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17. DIVIDEND 17. BB
2013 2012
HK$°000 HK$°000
T THTT
Interim dividend — 1 HK cent (2012: 3 HK cents) per share IS — 4 A LAl
(20124F : 3¥AL) 12,802 37,852
Special interim dividend — 15 HK cents (2012: Nil) R AR S — A 1 Sl
per share (20124F : 1) 192,028 =
Proposed final dividend — 2 HK cents (2012: 2 HK cents)  #EIRAMIAE — & B2l
per share (20124F = 231l 25,604 25,604
Proposed special dividend — Nil (2012: 20 HK cents) HEEUR AR I IS — 4
per share (20124F - 4 fBc203:A1l - 256,038
230,434 319,494

The dividend paid during the year ended 31 March 2013 was
HK$486,472,000 (2012: HK$37,852,000).

A proposed final dividend in respect of the year ended 31 March
2013 of HK$2 HK cents per share, amounting to approximately
HK$25,604,000, is to be proposed at the annual general meeting on 20
August 2013. These financial statements do not reflect this dividend

HAE2013FE3A3HILEEZE A RE A
486,472,000 70 (20124F : 37,852,000%7T) °

2013458 20 H 8247 2 % oA 4F K & b i s
IR BEM T 20134E3 31 H IF4E B 2 #EIR AR W
BB A B2 WAL - A 4L 4725,604,0009 9T o ASHE
5 3107 4 S Bl P TE RS ARG o

payable.
18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 18. #&EWF
The Group
AL H
2013 2012
HK$°000 HKS$°000
T T o
At fair value A RM
At beginning of the year RAEH) 869,590 847,257
Exchange differences i 58, 2= %8 - 25,040
Additions during the year ERRE - 2,521
Disposals during the year R E (10,712) (41,597)
Transferred from property, plant and equipment AN - RUE Bkt - 1,916
Transferred from prepaid lease payment A 0 A B0 - 893
Transferred to property, plant and equipment WA - W7 Bt - (2,035)
Increase in fair values N e (ERE(E 43,464 35,595
At end of the year RER 902,342 869,590
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18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED) 18. #HEWHE(H)

(a) As at 31 March 2013, an investment property amounting (a) w2013 3 H 31 H » E(H
to HK$110,800,000 (2012: Nil) were pledged as security 110,800,000 % JC (2012 4F : %)
for bank loan facilities granted to the Group while certain B % & W 2E B it A 4E A% 1Y
investment properties amounting to HK$300,115,000 (2012: SRAT B FKCRE 1 2 A o
HK$293,060,000) were pledged as security for other loan (note & {E300,115,000 % 7T (20124F :
32). 293,060,000 7. ) (1% T &)

2 UL 0 L Al B A 2 AR o (R
#32) °

(b) The Group’s investment properties at 31 March 2013 were (b) AR BB W) R 20134E3 A 31
revalued by BMI Appraisals Limited and DTZ Debenham Tie H 2 B {E Y b 8 57 S 2 2E A
Leung Limited, independent firms of professional property P e R R S A A BIR N )
valuers, on market value basis and by adopting term yield in AT A PR T He T (R I ME K 3R
the range of 10% to 10.5%. The valuations were arrived at AT 10% % 10.5% 2 FFHH B3R o
by reference to comparable market transactions and where FAL o HAFAN(E TS AT & iR
appropriate, on the basis of capitalisation of net income. 35528 5 I (M ) ) 48 15 Wi 2 1

FOEAS IR UE R E o
The Group’s interests in investment properties at their net book values 2 AL H A B W 2 b 2 B g i EL R TR
are analysed as follows: EAHTAE
The Group
AL
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$°000
Tt FHIC
Land and buildings situated in Hong Kong AR s H AT B R S04 2
and held under leases of over 50 years HARA 2 A - 4,720
Land and buildings situated in Hong Kong NS B AT A 102 504E 2
and held under leases of between 10 and 50 years HAFA 2 + s 110,800 95,900
Land and buildings situated in the PRC D B AR A 102 504 2
and held under leases of between 10 and 50 years HAFA 2 T s 691,174 678,688
Land and buildings situated in the PRC i B H AT A 504E 2
and held under leases of over 50 years HAFA 2 T s 100,368 90,282

902,342 869,590
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19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES UNDER

19. HERBEWE

CONSTRUCTION
The Group
A
2013 2012
HK$°000 HK$°000
T THTT
At fair value %A Rl
At beginning of the year AT 68,880 61,741
Exchange differences T 5, 2 %0 - 2,158
Additions NE - 163
Disposals e (7,602) =
Interest capitalised FREARL - 13
Increase in fair value A AEHEE 3,174 4,805
At end of the year AR 64,452 68,380
Less: Investment properties under construction classified as 3 @ 2485 B EE 2 FE @R E
current asset (note) W (B ak) - 7,602
Non-current portion B 64,452 61,278

The Group’s investment properties under construction at 31 March
2013 were revalued by DTZ Debenham Tie Leung Limited, an
independent firm of professional property valuer, on market value
basis. The valuations were arrived at by reference to comparable market
transactions and where appropriate, on the basis of capitalisation of net
income.

The Group’s interests in investment properties under construction at
their net book values are analysed as follows:

A4 [ fE i B W FE R 20134E3 H31 H 2 B 1(E
T PR A8 7 S S ) S A (S A R A A PR R
MEEMETE A o M AEAE T2 AT & LT 5
5 5 B (78 ) ) 42 T i 2 98 70 Y AR A1 35 A g
% o

A TP TE A 15 B S v 2 M i 12 LR A O (L
AT

The Group
AEH
2013 2012
HK$°000 HK$°000
Tt Tt
Land and buildings situated in the PRC A B BT 25 102 5048 2
and held under leases of between 10 and 50 years HARA 2 LA 18,819 23,493
Land and buildings situated in the PRC Az B DATH A 504 2
and held under leases of over 50 years MAFE 2 LA 45,633 45,387

64,452 68,880
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19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES UNDER 19. Te#Ewk ()
CONSTRUCTION (CONTINUED)
Note: 5T -
As at 31 March 2012, investment properties under construction of R20124F3 H31H » fEREZEYEANRT
RMB6,181,000 (equivalent to HK$7,602,000) which represent vacant land 6,181,0007C (4% 14 7,602,000%% 7C ) £ 1 jiA Hh
situated in the PRC, were presented as held for sale following the approval of the ZZEE T MRS A B A 20124F 2
Group’s management in February 2012 to sell the land to an independent third AR L& T — BB =0 1% 0 2
party. G B RefE s o
The land was sold at a consideration of RMB13,752,000 (equivalent to % W 4% AR AE N 913,752,000 (R & 7
HK$16,915,000) to such third party, and the consideration was been received in 16,915,000%5 70) & Ta% %8 = » REH
full by the Group in March 2012. The transaction was subsequently completed CLA20124F3 H I 2 BURE - 325 HAZ R
in May 2012 with a gain on disposal of approximately HK$7,401,000. 201245 H 2 A > B e A4 457,401,000 95
IE o
20. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT 20. #FHhys
Properties under development held as current assets represent FRVE T E) & e 2 B R h W 362 A H A& 6
properties which are developed with an intention for future sale. EHHmE R YE -
The Group
AL
2013 2012
HK$°000 HKS$°000
Tl Tt
At beginning of the year Y] 51,038 36,711
Exchange differences i 50, 2= %5 - 1,447
Additions wNE 6,052 64,226
Interest capitalised FREARL 2,130 4,839
Transferred to completed properties held for sale R ARHEL G 2R T (59,220) (56,185)
At end of the year AR - 51,038
The Group’s interests in properties under development at their net book AL B a8 T 2 b 2 ME RS e HLIE
values are analysed as follows: TR
The Group
A B
2013 2012
HK$°000 HK$°000
T#x T T
Land and buildings situated in the PRC and held under A A B B AL AR A S0 4F 2.
leases of over 50 years AT 2 AT - 51,038

- 51,038
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21. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 21. W3k ~ B Bkt
Leasehold Furniture,
land and Leasehold Plantand  fixtures and Motor
buildings  improvements machinery equipment vehicles Total
& T HE & R A
W B Wa  EE R R M5t
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HKS$’000
T Tt Tt T T Tt
The Group ALEH
Cost or valuation JRA AR B A
At 1 April 2011 #20114E4H 1H 107,358 14,978 30,985 9,126 8,236 170,683
Exchange differences T . % 38 471 303 375 267 446 1,862
Additions RE - - 1,909 512 920 3,341
Disposals e - - (104) (155) (892) (1,151)
Transfer from investment ¥4 | fL &M
properties (Note 18) {izaty 2,035 = = = = 2,035
Transfer to investment ARGV
properties (Note 18) (ff5E18) (1,916) - = = - (1,916)
Increase in fair values N (E 3,735 - - - - 3,735
At 31 March 2012 R20124:331H 111,683 15,281 33,165 9,750 8,710 178,589
Additions NE - - 1,492 332 746 2,570
Disposals e - - (157) (326) (1,480) (1,963)
Increase in fair values N FfEBE 8,045 = = = = 8,045
At 31 March 2013 R20134:331H 119,728 15,281 34,500 9,756 7,976 187,241
Accumulated depreciation 25 i %
At 1 April 2011 R20114F4H 1H = 12,925 25,584 8,151 6,287 52,947
Exchange differences i i, 2258 = 299 371 260 412 1,342
Depreciation charge eS8 3,198 1,249 2319 549 847 8,162
Eliminated on disposals H B R = = (94) (155) (757) (1,006)
Eliminated on revaluation T Feias (3,198) = = = = (3,198)
At 31 March 2012 R20124:331H - 14,473 28,180 8,805 6,789 58,247
Depreciation charge g g 3,445 787 2,226 500 n7 7,675
Eliminated on disposals H B R = = (143) (325) (1,480) (1,948)
Eliminated on revaluation i A3 (3,445) = = = = (3,445)
At 31 March 2013 R20134:331H - 15,260 30,263 8,980 6,026 60,529
Net book value e TH
At 31 March 2013 A20134:3731H 119,728 21 4,237 776 1,950 126,712
At 31 March 2012 #20124E3 H31H 111,683 808 4,985 945 1,921 120,342
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SR W R B
For the year ended 31 March 2013 # % 201343 431 H IF4F %
21. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 21. W3k ~ Bl Bkt (%)
(CONTINUED)
The net book value of leasehold land and buildings shown above A A b R A B T R (LA
comprises:
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$°000
Fl0 T T
Buildings situated in Hong Kong A A s HL AT 9 25105 S04F
and held under leases of between 10 and 50 years Z A 2 T 87,600 82,200
Buildings situated in the PRC A i B HL AT A 2510 % S04F
and held under leases of between 10 and 50 years Z A 2 BT 32,128 29,483
119,728 111,683

The Group’s leasehold land and buildings at 31 March 2013 were
revaluated by BMI Appraisals Limited, an independent professional
property valuer, on market value basis. The valuation were arrived at
by reference to comparable market transactions. The increase in value
arising from revaluation of the land and buildings of HK$11,490,000
(2012: HK$6,933,000) has been credited to the property revaluation
reserve.

If the leasehold land and buildings had not revaluated, they would
have been included in these consolidated financial statements at
historical cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss of
HK$49,012,000 (2012: HK$50,705,000)

AL B B b AR 201343 H 31
H 2 ABEL Y i 8 7 25 2 ) 25 A (L Fifi A
IR HEAG A PR W i T A A o
I AE Al E T5 2 B8 0] & LT 5 58 5 1
TE o FAl MR AR 2 N AU (E
11,490,000%5 JG (20124F : 6,933,0005 7C)
ERFAYZEE MG RIHA -

i L, R A NI A A T LA
B 15 I A I B R B RO (E S 1R
49,012,000 % JC (20124F : 50,705,000 i
TG RIS B RR A
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 #%201343 H31 H IL4F R
22. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 22. HAHHERKIA
The Group
A
2013 2012
HK$°000 HK$°000
T TH#TT
Prepaid land lease payments (note a) T - AR B B (i ka) 162 170
Other prepaid lease payments (note b) At E A AR B R (Bt D) - 5,704
162 5,874
Notes: [t -
(a) Prepaid land lease payments are amortised over the lease period of the (a) T A o b A B K T AE A Bt A
related land. Amortisation expense has been charged to administrative NHESH o S5 BH SR AT BB S A 4
expenses. B o
(b) Other prepaid lease payments represent rental rights arising from (b) Ho A 7 AT AR B SR IE AR 25 T LR w6
certain properties located in Zhuji and these are amortised over the W EELENHEMER > WER
lease period of 5 years. Amortisation expense has been charged AERE A P S o B B SO B S AL
to cost of sales. Due to a consistently low occupancy rate of these ANHIER o HRZEY ¥ A HEH
properties since inception of the lease, the Directors considered that g MR- EHRMK . EFERG
no rental value should be recognised on these rights and assessed that WEG S R A& - I
an impairment loss on the carrying amount should be recognised in Tife U TR (P ) 9 L e 48 2B I AR 4 B

administrative expenses in the current year. ZATBB S N ERR o
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 # % 201343 H31 H IL4F R
22. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS (CONTINUED) 22.  TEAHH S RIE (4)
The Group
AL
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$°000
Flo FHIT
At beginning of the year A4 5,874 8,024
Exchange differences T 5, 2 %1 - 224
Transferred to investment properties A G2 - (893)
Amortisation b ® (2,328)
Impairment loss AR (5,704) -
Increase in fair values Oy FefEHE(E - 847
At end of the year REER 162 5,874
The Group
AL
2013 2012
HK$°000 HK$000
F#o THIT
The net book values of prepaid land T LA I
lease payments are analysed as follows: HRIFE AT -
Situated in the PRC held under Do B H LI A 102 504 2
leases of between 10 and 50 years AR 162 170
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 #%201343 H31 H IL4F R
23. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE 23. RKBBAFZRE
The Group
AL
2013 2012
HK$°000 HKS$°000
¥ THIT
At beginning of the year AR 121 121
Exchange differences e bt 22 38 - 4
Share of profit/(loss) of an associate TN — FR I wl
(E518) 23 @)
At end of the year RAER 144 121
Current liabilities: mEE i
Amount due to an associate (note) TR — R B 2 F R (MRFE) 2,581 2,032
Note: The amount due to an associate is interest-free, unsecured and has no MFer © MEAT— FH A\ W 308 A B~
fixed repayment terms. The carrying amount approximates to its fair S 4 [ S A K o IR T i R
value and is denominated in RMB. S FAEMA - ML REESIE -
Unaudited financial information of the associate for the years ended 31 WL N AR 2 20134F F220124F3 A
March 2013 and 2012 was summarised as follows: 31 H I8 2 AR 58 A% U 15 R Ak
o
2013 2012
HK$’000 HKS$°000
F#u THIT
Assets K 4,089 3,013
Liabilities Al (3,37) (2,408)
Equity ML 718 605
2013 2012
HK$°000 HK$°000
T THTT
Revenue A 3,181 2,401
Profit/(Loss) for the year AEFERA (R51H) 114 (20)
At 31 March 2013 and 2012, the Group’s investment in an associate is  jA20134F 5201243 H 31 H > A4 [3] A B 45
as follows: HZHREmT
Place of establishment/ Proportion of Principal
Name of Company operation Class of shares held ownership interest %  activities
A ) A1 W,/ Pk it 4 0 WA L0 (%)  FEEH
Zhuji Pan-Asia Property People’s Republic Registered capital 20% Property management
Management Company Limited of China RMB500,000
it Bz YR B RA A e \ R FLANE LA AR = Egi

500,0007C
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 # % 201343 431 H IF4F %

24.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES AND

24.  TAFE 2 Wl Z 15 B B MW B 2

AMOUNTS DUE FROM SUBSIDIARIES ) K IH
The Company
A2
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’000
T THs 7
Non-current assets: FMEERE
Unlisted shares, at cost F By A 211,074 210,695
Amounts due from subsidiaries JRE S o J 2 ) KO 282,049 579,860
Current assets: MENEE :
Amounts due from subsidiaries TSI} B 2 =) 3 E 36,131 70,683

The carrying value of the unlisted shares is based on the book values of
the underlying net assets of the subsidiaries attributable to the Group as
at the date on which the Company became the holding company of the
Group pursuant to the corporate reorganisation in 1997.

The non-current amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured,
interest-free and not repayable within one year. The carrying amounts
approximate to their fair values and are denominated in Hong Kong
dollar.

The current amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free
and have no fixed repayment terms. The carrying amounts approximate
to their fair values and are denominated in Hong Kong dollar.

Details of the Company’s subsidiaries at 31 March 2013 are set out in
note 46 to the consolidated financial statements.

I I Th By 22 B T () AR A AR T
199745 EAT /N W) A4 > AN T A A
4B N B ) HCE A IS /A 7 =2 AR
B AR VR AR

U 3 R S o J 2~ ) IR AT~
B R BRI — A R AR o BRI (E B A
FAEARA > M LA T

U B R S P 2 )RR AT - SR B
T S 6 2 K o MR (L BELEL A SR (EAR
# o WA TTIIE -

2N T B AN\ iR 2013453 A 31 H 2 &F
i R A5 A B R R M 46 -
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 #%201343 H31 H IL4F R
DEFERRED INCOME TAX

The followings are the major deferred income tax liabilities/(assets)
recognised by the Group and movements thereon during the years
ended 31 March 2013 and 2012.

25.

25.

HESE i 153 B

A4 R #E 2013 4F K 20124E3 H 31
HIEFEEMRRZ FERENEH A
& (&) MHEFIT -

Revaluation ~ Accelerated Unrealised  Unrecognised
of tax profitin revenue  Withholding
properties ~ depreciation ~ Taxlosses  inventories (note a) tax Others Total
IR AEE REBHA
Lt o REEH  RREN (k) KB Jifl it
HKS"000 HK$000 HKS"000 HK$000 HKS"000 HK$"000 HK$000 HK$"000
T T T T T T T T
(restated) (restated)
(#E71) (&)
The Group KEE
At 1 April 2011, as previously reported 1201144 1H » J5RT 24 112,595 (930) (26) QM) 21330 - (1,209) 87,057
Adjustment for change in accounting  BERAVAE W &3HEAIE 1235
policies for adoption of amendments (7] H @zt R A
o HKAS12 (note 3(a)) PR (M3 o)) 33,674 - - - - - - 33,674
At 1 April 2011 (restated) 014 1R (K1) 146,69 (930) (26) (2,043) (21,330) - (1,209) 120,731
Exchange differences EHER 3304 10 - - (593) - 14 2,735
Net charge/(credit)to consolidated ~ #18 / (GFA )& a5
income statement 11,022 25 26 (24) 7492 - 369 19,170
Net charge to equity MEERTE 1471 = = - = - = 1471
At 31 March 2012 2012637311 162,066 (635) - (2,067) (14431) - (826) 144,107
At April 201, as previously reported 12012445 1H - J5HT R 124,790 (635) - 2067 (14431) - (820 106831
Adjustment for change in accounting ~ BEFFAVE &7 HENISE 124
policies for adoption of amendments (71 @5tk A
o HKAS12 (note 3(a)) BT (B3 o)) 3176 - - - - - - 37276
At 1 April 2012(restated) 20124 1R (&) 162,066 (635) - (2,067) (14431) - (826) 144,107
Exchange differences BHER = = = = = = = =
Net charge/(credit) to consolidated 1/ (;FA G g & i
income statement 11,015 464 - (474 - 12,665 452 4,122
Net charge to equity MAERTE 2044 - - - - - - 2,044
At31 March 2013 2013837311 175,125 (1m) = Q54 (1401 12,665 04 10213
Note: BE5E -
(a) Unrecognised revenue represents the amounts of the sale transactions, (a) e FR WA A B A 45 13 A Wi 2

with respect to that the Group transferred the title of certain properties
to customers upon receipt of partial payments, have not received or
related receivables are not reasonably asserted. Enterprise income
tax has been provided for based on the full contractual amount of the
related sales transactions and in accordance with relevant rules and
regulations even though a part of the sales considerations has not been
recorded as revenue. As such, a deferred income tax asset has arisen
from the provision for such enterprise income tax.

O SR TEAR IR AE W) 2 2 SERERS A
5 2 AR 2 By e RRATY AR W B SR
I FIE WA R BB 5 LR S o AR AT
B R0 S0 B ik M - A A VS O 6 £ AR
ol BT ER A2 WA o {E DU B 8 6 52
oy Z AV M B A B SRR T AR T
A ZERTAFBL o WOt o BAF A TG
LA O 7 AR ST TS BLE ©
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 # % 201343 431 H IF4F %
25. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (CONTINUED) 25. BEEPEH(4)

MBI EERMKRM S > & TRENF
BLEE KA MO RIEE B EaHERE 12
SRR TR 8 o WU T 2R

For the purpose of balance sheet presentation, certain deferred income
tax assets and liabilities have been offset in accordance with conditions
set out in HKAS 12. The following is the analysis of the deferred

income taxation for financial reporting purposes: SEFTAFBL TN R
The Group
ALH

2013 2012 2011

HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000

T THTT THTT

(restated) (restated)

(K== 5) (K %1)

Deferred income tax liabilities TIEPTIFHL R E 171,968 145,015 121,857
Deferred income tax assets IR AL T A5 i (1,695) (908) (1,126)
170,273 144,107 120,731

At 31 March 2013, the Group has unused tax losses of HK$24,689,000
(2012: HK$24,761,000) available for offsetting against future profits.
No deferred income tax asset has been recognised with respect to the
total of HK$24,689,000 (2012: HK$24,761,000) due to unpredictability
of future profit streams. Tax losses of HK$24,296,000 (2012:
HK$24,547,000) have no expiry date while the remaining tax losses of
HK$393,000 (2012: HK$214,000) will be expired in five years after the
relevant accounting year end date.

At 31 March 2012, deferred income tax liabilities of HK$4,431,000
has not been recognised for the withholding tax and other taxes that
would be payable on the unremitted earnings of certain subsidiaries as
the Company controls the dividend policies of these subsidiaries and it
is not probable that these subsidiaries would distribute earnings in the
foreseeable future. Such unremitted earnings totalled HK$89,627,000
as at 31 March 2012.

201343 31 H » A4 H 424,689,000
#E 9T (20124F ¢ 24,761,000 75) W] J 1E
RS R AR A1 2 AR B B RS o it
4 70 FEUORE A A i A AR TR > I SR A
324,689,000 %5 JG (2012 4F : 24,761,000
W50 ) MERR AR 1E TS B & E - BLIANG1E
24,296,000 # 7T ( 2012 4F : 24,547,000
570 ) G AT e H B T AR B E s 1R
393,000% 7C (20124F : 214,000% 70 ) A5 4it
AF BE G AT B A5 A AR AR IR o

R20124E3 A31H » ARLEE KA MR
T+ BfE B 2 ] o &% RE 2 R nT R I AT 2 AR
0B TE N A B IH 2 4 4E BT A5 B A R
4,431,000%5 TG > JRU R £ AR 2 ) 42 il G 25
Bff B8 2> ] 2 B BN IBROSR o i U
F R A REAE A AL 2 R A IR B A o
R20124E3 H31H » #% AR & R A &3k
89,627,000%5 7C °
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 #%201343 H31 H IL4F R

26. INVENTORIES 26. #H
The Group
AR

2013 2012
HK$°000 HK$’000
Filo T#s7C
Raw materials JEM E 21,042 22,857
Work in progress TEB 5, 26,843 21,185
Finished goods T 28,886 27,114
76,771 71,156

During the year, the Group reversed provision for inventory
obsolescence of HK$3,636,000 (2012: HK$7,800,000). Such reversal
has been included in cost of sales in the consolidated income statement.

RN o AR 4R [E (] B AR RE AT B OB
3,636,000 ¥ 7T ( 2012 4E : 7,800,000 #&
Jo) o WA PR A G I g R 2 B E
A o

27. COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE 27. PEmEZ®ETHE
The Group’s interest in completed properties held for sale at their net A2 E A BB v T vk > RS
book values are analysed as follows: Fe IR T R (AT R
The Group
AL
2013 2012
HK$’000 HKS$°000
Tt T T
Land and buildings situated in the PRC held fr i B AT A5 102 504E 2
under leases of between 10 and 50 years AR 2 0 R 172,273 252,633
Land and buildings situated in the PRC held iz B ELLARELIA 2% B 8 S04F 2
under leases of over 50 years A FA 2 T L 36,567 10,787

208,840 263,420
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 # % 201343 431 H IF4F %
28. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 28, FEWCER Ak B L A R sk
2013 2012
HK$°000 HK$’000
Ti#o THTT
Trade receivables TR & 3K 79,877 84,356
Less: provision for impairment of trade receivables W R S (R (21,537) (29,060)
Trade receivables — net TS B 3K — 58,340 55,296
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables e iﬁﬁ?ﬁrﬁ B HAbREMS R K 90,158 89,207
Advance of entrusted loan (note) [H AR (T - 123,000
148,498 267,503
Note: During the year ended 31 March 2012, the Group granted a Bisk © BE20124F3 A31H IEFER > A
loan of RMB100,000,000 (the “Entrusted Loan”), equivalent to EEE R — KR RBTE L2
HK$123,000,000, through an entrusted loan arrangement with a PRC ?‘3 SR PE > AL = O iR tl:}
bank to independent third parties. The Entrusted Loan was interest- AN B 100,000,000 JT ( *E
bearing at 24% per annum and had been settled in full on 27 April 2012. 123,000,000 75 ) ([ {7 L E K 1 i
FE R R AR R F 24 SR Bili_l;'ﬁ’:‘
20124F4 H 27 H R B fE % -
The Group grants an average credit period of 60 days to its customers. KEBEGTHEF 258 % 560
The carrying amounts of the trade and other receivables approximate H o s ?A& Al R 5 AR R R T L
their fair values as these financial assets, which are measured at HLHN AR BT B RSB E
amortised cost, are expected to be paid within a short period of time, JE FE R B AR FHE o TE A A R
such that the impact of the time value of money is not significant. A5 ST I R & IR R (R 2 -
At each balance sheet date, the recoverability of the Group’s trade RS A > AL B REY AR % F 2
receivables due from individual customers are assessed based on the W & oR] i Inl EREAR R R F 2 A5 R
credit history of its customers, their financial conditions and current B~ BABSIRUL K B H LR o FiEZ J
market conditions. Consequently, specific impairment provision is HERRA B AR Rl I (B A o

recognised.
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 #%201343 H31 H IL4F R
28. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 28. W Bk B At Mk ()
(CONTINUED)
The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and other receivables are 7 B2 [ 22 JRE A B B H At B MK R R 2 iR
denominated in the following currencies: T8 AR 571 B W 2oy BELAY
2013 2012
HK$°000 HK$°000
T THETT
Renminbi AR HE 78,255 203,780
United States dollar Ein 51,245 51,909
Hong Kong dollar ESTH 14,816 11,011
Others HAth 182 803
148,498 267,503
The Group has provided fully for all receivables where recovery of the 74 B2 ] 25y T g [ A4 MR R T A B AR
amounts is remote, unless the Group has determined that such balances FCRTHIEM R IF AR R S L5 A
are not recoverable, in which case the impairment loss is directly AR > FEME LR BB R A B
written off against the corresponding trade receivables. Based on past 3z BRLAE R R A B B o AR 5 A AR
experience and the Group’s assessment, the management believes R L BTG > B B G AR S TR iR
that no impairment provision is necessary in respect of the remaining RS ERAE BB o T R RS
balances as there had not been a significant change in credit quality of WS B R R S ) - HR%SE
such receivables and the balances are considered fully recoverable. AR A T A o
Movements in the provision for impairment of trade receivables are as FRE & PO E R s B an
follows:
2013 2012
HK$°000 HK$’000
T T o
At beginning of the year RAEH) 29,060 60,002
Exchange differences e 56, 75 4 - 612
Reversal of provision for impairment losses TR S TR 13 A el ¢ (3,763) (18,340)
Amounts written off as uncollectible AT g [ R 2 R (3,760) (13,214)

At end of the year R 21,537 29,060
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 # % 201343 431 H IF4F %

28.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(CONTINUED)

Included in trade and other receivables of the Group are trade
receivables of HK$79,877,000 (2012: HK$84,356,000) and their
ageing analysis based on due date is as follows:

28. MRk B Lt RSO IR K ()

TE A ] 2 R AT 5 R L A B i R 3 v
2 M & 3K 579,877,000 7G (20124F
84,356,000 70) o MR IRFAREEIH H

ZHRES Sy HTIn R
2013 2012
HK$°000 HK$°000
T THTT
Not past due fi 60 1) 18,695 15,574
1 to 60 days past due EINE(IPN 24,651 21,734
61 to 120 days past due W61 2 120K 5,507 11,062
More than 120 days past due 120K L 1 31,024 35,986
79,877 84,356

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a wide
range of customers for whom there was no recent history of default.

As of 31 March 2013, trade receivables of HK$39,645,000 (2012:
HK$40,727,000) were past due but not impaired. These relate to a
number of independent customers for whom there is no recent history
of default. Based on past experience, management believes that no
impairment provision is necessary in respect of these balances as there
has not been a significant change in credit quality of these receivables
and the balances are still considered fully recoverable. The ageing
analysis of these trade receivables is as follows:

R 18 1) 7 R 8 1Y B W BRI e 2 44 ANl %
J5 o T 45 S5 A0 SN0 S AT Bk o

201343 31 H » FEUL & 339,645,000 % I
(20124 : 40,727,00045 7C) £ @ HE R I8 (E - 1
LN E TR TR AT AR - M
NI IR AR Bk o RIRARIE ACEE > S HB AN S
PEZE SRR T &5 BRVE B I (R > TN e% %
FE U ARk A BV I T RS ) - AR A R
AR s T AR [m] o A5 M U B 3R 2 R IS
Mramh :

2013 2012

HK$’000 HK$’000

Tt T#57C

1 to 60 days past due RN ENIPN 24,651 21,734
61 to 120 days past due w61 £ 120K 3,489 9,462
More than 120 days past due w120k 11,505 9,531
39,645 40,727




122 MAN SANG INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2013

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B U A I

For the year ended 31 March 2013 #%201343 H31 H IL4F R

28. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 28.

(CONTINUED)

As of 31 March 2013, trade receivables of HK$21,537,000 (2012:
HK$29,060,000) were impaired and provided for. The individually
impaired receivables mainly relate to customers which are in
unexpectedly difficult economic situations. The ageing analysis of

B 85k B il WA ke ik (46)

R20134E3 H31 H » BN EFK21,537,000
HETT (20124F :29,060,0003 7T) 4 B {EH
T A3t o IR A . I (B Wi 1 ik o 5 LB
AT Z ANE TR e 2 B A B o hAE

these receivables is as follows: IR ARES AT
2013 2012
HK$°000 HKS$°000
T THETT
Not past due e - 1,005
1 to 60 days past due EGNE(PN - =
61 to 120 days past due W61 2 120K 2,018 1,600
More than 120 days past due EH120K L 1 19,519 26,455
21,537 29,060

29. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH  29.

PROFIT OR LOSS

gﬂ?ﬁﬁ@&ﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁiﬁi%%
L2

The Group The Company
AL A2 ]
2013 2012 2013 2012
HK$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000 HKS$°000
Ti#x T T T T o
Trading securities, at market value: WAEE S WE
Listed equity investments it LR
in Hong Kong 28,396 45,435 720 2,225

The fair values of the listed equity investments have been determined
directly by reference to published price quotations in active markets.

ET RO 2 A R E T2 R I B T
G e A 2 A B
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30. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 30. HE&ERERBE
The Group The Company
ASHE A ]
2013 2012 2013 2012
HK$°000 HKS$°000 HKS$000 HK$’000
T T 7T T SR
Bank balances and cash SATHE R & 435,308 573,514 1,294 1,872
Time deposits EMER 5,462 31,585 - =
440,770 605,099 1,294 1,872

The carrying amounts of the cash and cash equivalents approximate to 4= J% 45 [&] ¥1 4 22 WE 1 (B B HL N (B AR - 3R
their fair values. The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents are 4> [ 2[R ¥l 4 2 BRI (EL LA 7)) B e A3 BT
denominated in the following currencies:

The Group The Company
AL AT

2013 2012 2013 2012
HK$’000 HKS$°000 HK$°000 HKS$°000
T T T T T o
Renminbi NG 252,204 305,583 - -
United States dollar En 93,334 171,766 30 30
Hong Kong dollar WIT 91,012 115,088 1,264 1,842
Others FoAth 4,220 6,662 - =
440,770 605,099 1,294 1,872

The period of time deposit approximately range from 1 month to 2 EMIFEFIAR L & —10 A ZmMH A A% > Ak
months and they carry interest at short-term deposit rates of below 1% KA 1 (20124 = K7 1E ) 2 55 HAAE 2R 51
(2012: below 1%). B e

The conversion of RMB-denominated balances into foreign currencies  § A R ¥ &5 ik bt # /5 A7 B ) 0 46 AP 4R AT
and the remittance of such foreign currencies denominated bank 4% it S B 4 2H 78 <y A [ SRR il 2 1) 41 REE 75 il 2
balances and cash out of the PRC are subject to relevant rules and  AHBE# A FIER o

regulation of foreign exchange control promulgated by the PRC

government.
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 #%201343 H31 H IL4F R

W ASF 5k 2 Ll Ak MRk

2013 2012

HK$°000 HK$°000

T THTT

Trade payables JEfT & 3% 8,413 16,040

Loans from minority shareholders (note) A& 5 D BB 2 B () 96,716 114,696

Advance receipts from customers TR % P 2 IE 68,567 109,101
Advance receipt with respect to disposal of investment W B RUE Y 2 FUG IR

properties under construction - 16,915

Other accruals and other payables b 22 R B JEC At B £ R 214,015 248,712

387,711 505,464

Note:  The loans from minority shareholders are interest-free, unsecured and
have no fixed repayment terms.

The ageing analysis of trade payables based on due date is as follows:

WiEE - e E D BUROR 2 B A B MK
TR 8] 5 2 o

JEAT EFARE RN B 2 BRI MU R -

2013 2012

HK$°000 HK$°000

F#u THIT

0 to 60 days past due A0 R 60K 6,753 15,355
61 to 120 days past due HHA61 22 120K 480 49
More than 120 days past due HAHA120 K D | 1,180 636
8,413 16,040

The carrying amounts of trade and other payables approximate to
their fair values. The carrying amounts of trade and other payables are

JRE A R e HE A R A MR 2 B (L B
N FAEARE o MEAH B R B H M A A Rk

denominated in the following currencies: ZHRTAEL LA 31 & W A By
2013 2012
HK$°000 HK$°000
T TH#s7C
Renminbi YN 231,591 355,493
United States dollar Ein 14,387 13,931
Hong Kong dollar W 141,593 135,956
Others HAty 140 84

387,711 505,464




RA:BIBRAT B A W] 125

201344
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S S R B R
For the year ended 31 March 2013 # % 201343 431 H IF4F %
32. BORROWINGS 32. f&#
The Group
AEM
2013 2012
HK$°000 HK$’000
Ti#o THTT
Current et
Bank borrowings (Note (a)) SRITIE & (F k() 180,000 -
Other loan (Note (b)) HoAth Bk (K (b)) 36,900 36,900
216,900 36,900
Non-current A B
Other loan (Note (b)) HoAth Bk (K (b)) 110,700 147,600
110,700 147,600
Total borrowings 2 (A 327,600 184,500
The maturity of the above borrowings is as follows: AR AR
2013 2012
HK$°000 HK$°000
T SR
Within 1 year G 76,900 36,900
Between 1 and 2 years 1ZE24E N 76,900 36,900
Between 2 and 5 years 2ESER 173,800 110,700
327,600 184,500
(a)  Bank borrowings (a) HTHE
As at 31 March 2013, the Group’s bank borrowings of 201343 H31H - A% H
HK$180,000,000 were secured by an investment property located 180,000,000 ¥ JC . 4R 47 & £ LA
in Hong Kong with carrying amount of HK$110,800,000 and the DA W 2 B W 2 (AR T A
Company’s corporate guarantee. 110,800,000 75 ) M A\ m] 2 A
SEWERAFARAN o
The loan agreement contains a repayment on demand clause K M e B 4 B SRR ARG
which gives the lender the unconditional right to call the loan at SRR T R AR AR R ]
any time. As such, the amount is classified as current liabilities Wi IRp SR AE IR R o BRI > 524
in which the lender could demand repayment. The bank B AT A - HERA
borrowings will mature in August 2015. A EERIERK o SRATIE R 22015

HESHE -
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32. BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

33.

(@)

(b)

Bank borrowings (Continued)

The carrying amount of bank borrowings approximates to its
fair value. The bank borrowings are carried at HIBOR +2%
(2012: Nil) per annum.

Other loan

The Group entered into a fund arrangement with a financial
institution (the “Trustee”). Pursuant to this fund arrangement,
the Trustee raised a trust fund totaling RMB150,000,000
(approximately equivalents to HK$184,500,000) and
advance the whole amount to the Group to finance property
development projects in relation to China Pearl & Jewellery
City. The loan is subject to daily interests at 1.3 times of the
People’s Bank of China 3 to 5 years interest rate and which is
subject to the review in each stipulated repayment period. The
fund arrangement is recognised as other loan and will mature in
June 2016.

As at 31 March 2013, the carrying amount of other loan of
HK$147,600,000 (2012: HK$184,500,000), denominated
in RMB, is subject to an effective interest rate of 8.9%
(2012: 8.8%) per annum.

The other loan was secured by certain investment properties
located in the PRC with an aggregate carrying amount of
HKS$300,115,000 (2012: HK$293,060,000).

SHARE CAPITAL

32.

33.

Number of shares

fif 8 (#1)

(@)

(b)

JR A

AT ()

SRAT A8 2 B T i B L AR (EAH
oo ST B LIE SR TR 27
Bn2% 2 Fl % (20124F : 4%) 5}
H o

I i 855K

A 42 8 B — [ FF 5 M A (T 15 5
N BT EE& % - RERE
B 55 ANt I 5k BB
TR R Bk B O 2 W) 2 R TE
HRIEEEGFGTES LA
B % 150,000,000 7T (40 & it 4
184,500,000 7 JC ) S 4% 48 45 FIE
AN FAEE o EERPEAR
SRATIBSFEF R Z 135 B S
HALE > 3R 5 25045 o 22 3K
Wt o & &2 PEMERE B HoA
B SR 2016456 H JET ©

R20134E3 H31H » Hi sz
1 T B /5 147,600,000 %% 7T (2012
4 1 184,500,000 # T ) - LA A
RUWEGHE - 4% H B4R #8.9%
(20124F : 8.8%)7FE -

HoAth 453K DA 17 44H1300,115,000
WG (20124F © 293,060,000 7C)
PrA R 2 2 TR E YRR
i o

Share capital

JR 4 8 H JeA
2013 2012 2013 2012
’000 ’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
T Tk T THETT
Authorised: o
Shares of HK$0.10 each BT (0. 109 7T 2 A7 5,000,000 5,000,000 500,000 500,000
Issued and fully paid: DT REE
At beginning of the year TR 1264340  1227,090 126,434 122,709
Issue of new shares upon exercise T R E IR 3547 i i
of share options 15,850 37,250 1,585 3,725
At end of the year RER 1,280,190 1,264,340 128,019 126,434
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SHARE-BASED PAYMENT

34.

(@)

Share options granted to employees and directors of
the Group

Share Option Scheme

The 2002 Scheme

The share option scheme adopted by the Company on 2 August
2002 (the “2002 Scheme”) was expired on 1 August 2012.
Thereafter, no further options would be granted under the 2002
Scheme but the subsisting options granted thereunder prior
to the expiry date will continue to be valid and exercisable in
accordance with the terms of the 2002 Scheme.

The purpose of the 2002 Scheme is to provide incentives to the
eligible participants to contribute to the Group and to enable the
Group to recruit high-caliber employees and attract resources
that are valuable to the Group. Under the 2002 Scheme, the
board of directors of the Company may grant options to any
person being an employee, officer, agent, or consultant of the
Group including executive or non-executive directors of the
Company and its subsidiaries, to subscribe for shares in the
Company at a price to be determined by the board of directors
being the highest of (a) the closing price of the shares on the
Stock Exchange on the date of grant of the option, which must
be a trading day; (b) the average closing price of the shares
of the Stock Exchange for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of grant of the option; and (c) the nominal
value of the shares.

The total number of shares in respect of which the 2002
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Group is not
permitted to exceed 10% of the number of shares in issue at the
date of adoption of the 2002 Scheme or such number of shares
as a result from a sub-division or consolidation of the number of
shares at that date. Subject to as provided in the 2002 Scheme,
the Company may seek approval from its shareholders in
general meeting to refresh this 10% limit, but the total number
of shares which may be issued under the 2002 Scheme must not
exceed 30% of the number of shares in issue from time to time.
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20134F3k

34. VUt 7 2 e 2 ik

(@)

I AS £ ] 0 B % o o 2 1h O
Jit HE

il P M 1 )

20024 71#]
AR 20024FE8 H 2 H £ 44 2 1§
JERERE B ([20024F5H#] 1) - B
201248 H 1 H & » 2 4% > 2002
AT B T AR S RO > (HET
R T H AT 2 B A
HEIG 48 S0 R0 PTARYE20024F 7
B 2 M ATAE

20024F 51 81 B 1E AL IE T A
M 2B > (6045 5 A 4 1R
R M7 A SR A5 DA B K
W4 B b e 2 (R B R A A
SEHE & 2 &R o iRPE200247 5T
B> AN FIEE G A B A AR
E =T YN =R L
(B AR 7) B HL e 2 =) 2 3
TR IEHATEDS) AT A 3%
HBERERE  DARREEAS N R A
PRI ERE R R >
AR TE © (a) A I R I
B B (ARG B ) FER
FrskAS 2 M= 5 (o) BT B 4%
HE e R 1 R FLR 20 5 B AE
WA BT Bk A5 2 P TS 5 F(c)
JBeAfy i (. o

2002 4F 71 S A< 4 [ AT o] JHLAh B
JERERTEITE N354T 2 B0 Al
B R 20024F 51 #1744 H 1
ELEEAT IO O H O 5% H R 3R 4
AR B8 i AR 2 BB
H 22 10% ° fE20024FE 51 # ez
SN ER N NN IR S N
SRR SR 4 B T 1 10% BR AR > {H
20024 5T HITH T ] B54T 2 e 4A
U@L N L ARR-Zai /e =
30% o
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34. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT (CONTINUED)

(@)

Share options granted to employees and directors of
the Group (Continued)

Share Option Scheme (Continued)

The 2002 Scheme (Continued)

No participant shall be granted an option which, if accepted
and exercised in full, would result in the participant becoming
entitled to subscribe for such number of shares as, when
aggregated with the total number of shares already issued and
which may be issued upon exercise of all options granted and
to be granted to him, together with all options granted and to
be granted to him under any other share option schemes of the
Company and/or any subsidiaries, within the 12-month period
immediately preceding the proposed date of grant (including
exercised, cancelled and outstanding options), would exceed
1% of the number of shares in issue as at the proposed date of
grant.

The 2002 Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of 10
years commencing 2 August 2002.

Options granted must be taken up within 28 days of the date of
grant upon payment of HK$1 for each grant of options. Subject
to as provided in the 2002 Scheme, options may be exercised
at any time during the option period, which is to be notified
by the board of directors to each grantee, commencing on the
date of grant or such later date as the board of directors may
decide and expiring on such date as the board of directors may
determine, provided that such period is not to exceed ten years
from the date of grant, and subject to any restrictions that may
be imposed by the board of directors in its discretion.

Details of the principal terms of the 2002 Scheme are set out in
the circular of the Company dated 4 July 2002.

The following tables disclose details of the Company’s share
options held by directors and employees under the 2002
Scheme and movements in such holdings during the year.

(@)

34. VAt 7 2 e 2 ok (4)

) A 4 4 B % o 4 i
JBEHE (48)

JiFe P A T ()

20024F71-F (48)

i ) e — 2 BG4 IR RE 5 i
165 7 B S IS A A % A TG AT
fifi > HPEECE B2 BLE AT RS
Z IR 5 b B B R
R H AR 1218 A B A e
) {5 4% L Bt 452t 2 For A M i
HE > DL RARYEA LS /) K S AT o]
e ] 2 AT Ay L At i PR 5 )
O 1 s 1 Bt 4%t 2 Jor A B
JEHE (RS EATH - EaEsE K
RATAH 2 B I ) 2847 il i 2 %%
1T Rl TR AT 2 By Ay - At
B i 1 B 2 B AT R
BH 1% > RIS A Bk
HE o

2002 4F 51 #| 2 A %A HH 2002 4F-8
A2 HEFH A A-4F -

5% 2 W RO b ZE A A 1 I
FI28 H A - S ZE s R
Z I IERE AT 1 T - AR 952002
ERTEZ T o R ] i
FEREE S0 1 o I PR A T (o S A ARE o JfE
SRR B0 03445 2 8 R i %R %
A > HRH B (S EE A
PE 2 Wk B ) B EE 5 R
HHEHRE 2 HIAGHR » HEMA
FEHA R B 4% 1 B A 15 i
AF 5 Sl 2B 7 T S I N 2
AT B il T ELRR o

20024F w2 5 AR R
ANTE H B A20024E7 H4H 25
BRI FA]

R AR A L I E 52002
R AT 2 A R
ST -
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34. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT (CONTINUED) 34. DAty %y R e 2 A5k (4])
(a)  Share options granted to employees and directors of (a) 7 A4 B g B B o8 55 % HY
the Group (Continued) JBEHE (48)
Share Option Scheme (Continued) i IS HEE it ) ()
The 2002 Scheme (Continued) 20024F 5 3 (#)
Number of Number of Number of
share share share
options options options
outstanding oufstanding outstanding
Exercise at31 March Forfeited/ at31 March Forfeited/ at31 March
Date of grant Exercisable period price 011 Granted Exercised  Lapsed 2012 Exercised  Lapsed 2013
2011 20124 2013
3H31H 330 3H31H
WA T WA WAL
It B/ R B/ <R
i frfEs il YR BRN BhE Ka HH B ki ]
(HKS)
(#70)
Directors %
2 May 2006 200645124 2 May 2006 to 2006520 E 0253 12,000,000 - (11,000,000 - 1,000,000 (1,000,000) - -
1 May 2012 W06 A1H
1 September 2009 200991 1H 1 September 2009 to W99 1HE 0450 13,000,000 - - (5,000,000 8,000,000 (8,000,000) - -
31 August 2012 01281310
20 September 2011 WIE9A20H 20 September 2011t 20119H20H % 0.630 - 12,353,902 - - 12,353,902 - (12,353902) -
19 September 2016 016697198
25,000,000 12,353,902 (11,000,000) (5,000,000) 21,353,902 (9,000,000) (12,353,902) -
Employees TR
2 May 2006 20065 A12H 2 May 2006 to 2006520 E 0253 10,000,000 ~(10,000,000) - - - - -
1May 2012 N12FSALH
18 September 2006 200649/118H 18 September 2006t~ 200691 18H % 0233 7,000,000 - (7,000,000) - - - - -
17 September 2011 01149/ 17H
13 March 2007 207EA13H 1 January 2008 to N08E1A1HE 0.500 5,000,000 ~ (1,300,000)  (3,700,000) - - - -
12 March 2012 W3R 128
27 August 2009 20098H27H 27 August 2009 to W095E8H2THE 0397 16,550,000 - (7950,000) - 8,600,000 (6,850,000) (1,750,000) -
26 August 2012 2012481268
2 March 2012 01253120 2 March 2012 to WEIHIRE 0.610 - 3,000,000 = - 3,000,000 = - 3,000,000
1 March 2017 WITESAIH
38,550,000 3,000,000 (26.250.000) (3,700,000) 11,600,000 ~(6,850,000) (1,750,000) 3,000,000
63,550,000 15,353,902 (37,250,000) (8,700,000) 32,953,902 (15,850,000) (14,103,902) 3,000,000
Options vested at end of year A £ 5@ T L 52,550,000 21717967 1,000,000
Weight average exercise price fITET-H17 (8 HKS0.348 HKS$0.512 HKS0.610
o {7 T
Weighted average exercise £ SF B .2 e HK$0.330 HKS0.454 HKS0.61
price of options vested THfffE i i i

Weighted average il REE 3
remaining contractual life ~ AATER 1.16 yearstf 234 years 392 years'F
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34. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT (CONTINUED)

(@)

Share options granted to employees and directors of
the Group (Continued)

Share Option Scheme (Continued)

The 2002 Scheme (Continued)

During the year, 15,850,000 options (2012: 37,250,000
options) were exercised and 14,103,902 options (2012:
8,700,000 options) were forfeited or lapsed. The weighted
average closing price of the Company’s shares immediately
before the dates on which share options were exercised was
HK$0.505 (2012: HK$0.483).

The 2012 Scheme

On 17 August 2012, the Company adopted the 2012 share
option scheme (the “2012 Scheme™) under which the directors
of the Company may grant options to eligible persons to
subscribe for the Company’s shares subject to the terms and
conditions as stipulated therein. Unless otherwise cancelled or
amended, the 2012 Scheme will remain valid for a period of 10
years from the adoption date.

The purpose of the 2012 Scheme is to provide incentives to the
eligible participants to contribute to the Group and to enable the
Group to recruit high-caliber employees and attract resources
that are valuable to the Group. Under the 2012 Scheme, the
board of directors of the Company may grant options to any
person being an employee, officer, agent, or consultant of the
Group including executive or non-executive directors of the
Company and its subsidiaries, to subscribe for shares in the
Company at a price to be determined by the board of directors
being the highest of (a) the closing price of the shares on the
Stock Exchange on the date of grant of the option, which must
be a trading day; (b) the average closing price of the shares
of the Stock Exchange for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of grant of the option; and (c) the nominal
value of the shares.

(@)

34. VAt 7 2 e 2 ok (4)

) A 4 4 B % o 4 i
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SHARE-BASED PAYMENT (CONTINUED)

34.

(@)

Share options granted to employees and directors of
the Group (Continued)

Share Option Scheme (Continued)

The 2012 Scheme (Continued)

The total number of shares in respect of which the 2012
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Group is not
permitted to exceed 10% of the number of shares in issue at the
date of adoption of the 2012 Scheme or such number of shares
as a result from a sub-division or consolidation of the number of
shares at that date. Subject to as provided in the 2012 Scheme,
the Company may seek approval from its shareholders in
general meeting to refresh this 10% limit, but the total number
of shares which may be issued under the 2012 Scheme must not
exceed 30% of the number of shares in issue from time to time.

No participant shall be granted an option which, if accepted
and exercised in full, would result in the participant becoming
entitled to subscribe for such number of shares as, when
aggregated with the total number of shares already issued and
which may be issued upon exercise of all options granted and
to be granted to him, together with all options granted and to
be granted to him under any other share option schemes of the
Company and/or any subsidiaries, within the 12-month period
immediately preceding the proposed date of grant (including
exercised, cancelled and outstanding options), would exceed
1% of the number of shares in issue as at the proposed date of
grant.

The 2012 Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of 10
years commencing 17 August 2012.

Options granted must be taken up within 28 days of the date of
grant upon payment of HK$1 for each grant of options. Subject
to as provided in the 2012 Scheme, options may be exercised
at any time during the option period, which is to be notified
by the board of directors to each grantee, commencing on the
date of grant or such later date as the board of directors may
decide and expiring on such date as the board of directors may
determine, provided that such period is not to exceed ten years
from the date of grant, and subject to any restrictions that may
be imposed by the board of directors in its discretion.
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34. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT (CONTINUED)

(@)

(b)

Share options granted to employees and directors of
the Group (Continued)

Share Option Scheme (Continued)

The 2012 Scheme (Continued)

Details of the principal terms of the 2012 Scheme are set out in
the circular of the Company dated 6 July 2012.

During the year, no share options have been granted by the
Company under the 2012 Scheme.

Share options granted to a consultant

On 23 August 2011, the Company entered into a consultancy
services agreement (the “Consultancy Services Agreement”)
with Magical Asia Capital Limited (the “Consultant”), an
independent third party, where the Consultant agreed to provide
the following services to the Company: (i) advise and assist
the Group in seeking and identifying an appropriate target
company for the strategic co-operation in the development of
micro credit businesses; (ii) assist the Group in seeking and
identifying a senior executive with appropriate experience and
reputation in the financial sector; and (iii) perform such other
duties as may be mutually agreed (if any).

In consideration of the provision of the services by the
Consultant, the Company agreed to grant option to the
Consultant to subscribe for 49,415,608 shares of the Company
(the “Consultant Option”), representing 4% of the issued share
capital of the Company on the date of grant of the Consultant
Option as service fee paid to the Consultant. The exercise price
of the Consultant Option was fixed at HK$0.515 per share.
The Consultant Option was vested on the date of grant and is
exercisable in whole or in part at any time within five years
from 20 September 2011.

No Consultant Option was exercised or lapsed during the year.
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(b)
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34. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT (CONTINUED) 34. DAty %y R e 2 A5k (4])
(c)  Fair values of share options and assumptions (c)  TEIBHEZ A s d B Mk
During the year, employee share option expense of AEIN > AR ) B H I SR A B
HK$379,000 (2012: HK$12,761,000) was recognised in the Z M B % I HE B 52379,000 # 7T
consolidated income statement in relation to share options (20124F : 12,761,000 7T ) E it
granted by the Company. SR MR RINHERR o
Details of share based payments by nature are as follows: Fie MR Ay B DA RSy Ao FE 3 2 Ash 3K
ST
2013 2012
HK$°000 HK$°000
T T 7T
Employee share option expenses 1% B IR RE B X 379 1,445
Share option expenses for consultancy services (note) TR RS 22 W RO B =
(WL - 11,316
379 12,761
Note:  The fair value of consultancy services is estimated by Bk« BT 2 A RER 2 HE

reference to the fair value of the share option granted. I IRRE 2 A B AN R -



134 MAN SANG INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2013

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 #%201343 H31 H IL4F R
35. RESERVES —- THE COMPANY 35. filifhi —AnT]
(Accumulated
Share Contributed Share option  losses)/Retained
The Company AAT premium surplus reserve earnings Total
(B5HEHR) /
Jht i YN S i A ke TR B A gt
HKS$°000 HK$000 HK$°000 HKS$’000 HKS’000
T T T TiBT T
At 1 April 2011 2011444 1H 322,659 96,857 9427 (8,004) 420,939
Issue of new shares upon exercise /7 i i RGBS A7 M

of share options 7,025 - - - 7,025
Interim dividends (note 17) AR (HHE17) = (37,852) = = (37,852
Share option benefits TR A - = 12,761 = 12,761
Profit for the year ARAEFERH] = = = 335,664 335,664
Transferred to share premium upon 17 ffi Bt fERFEE A

exercise of share options {8 4,023 = (4,023) - -
Transferred to retained earnings ~ BEHEARAURFEA A

upon lapse of share options TREF - - (2,144) 2,144 =
At 31 March 2012 #20124£3H31H 333,707 59,005 16,021 329,804 738,537
Issue of new shares upon exercise /7 B RFEE 1Tk

of share options 4,987 - - - 4,987
Interim and special dividends A AR (3 17)

(note 17) - - - (204830) (204,830)
Final and special dividends AR (zE17)

(note 17) - (59,005) - (222,637) (281,642)
Share option benefits TR IR A = = 379 = 379
Profit for the year AR A - - - 146,120 146,120
Transferred to share premium (R IN

upon exercise of share options i 3,185 - (3,185) = =
Transferred to retained earnings RS A RFik A (R B

upon lapse of share options i Al = = (1,488) 1,488 -
At 31 March 2013 #*201343731H 341,879 - 11,727 49,945 403,551
Contributed surplus represents the difference between the consolidated SN BRSO T B N T 2 G A B U
shareholders’ funds of the subsidiaries acquired and the nominal value 45 BELA 19974F /4 ) T AH IR7 A 4N ) Bt Ui s
of the Company’s shares issued for the acquisition at the time of the Fr B T RS T T 2 2548 o

corporate reorganisation in 1997.
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 # % 201343 431 H IF4F %
35. RESERVES —- THE COMPANY (CONTINUED) 35. flthi — AW (4)
Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, the contributed surplus RIEE FZ 198 AR » ARNFE 28
account of the Company is available for distribution. However, the AR ERIRATBESM R - MEAE R AR DL T A
Company cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out NFEIANATEIREIRATE, > s R
of contributed surplus if: SR E R
(a) itis, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities (@) A FIBESAE IR E R ) RS
as they become due; or 2 87 5 5
(b)  the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than the b)) AFRZAUSBEEADKEEA
aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital and share 5~ DT KR R 2
premium account. HEFA o
36. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 36. &k
At the balance sheet date, the Group had pledged the investment AR H > REFEC IR EY E
properties of HK$442,526,000 (2012: HK$421,752,000) to banks or 442,526,000 #5 JC (2012 4F : 421,752,000
financial institutions to secure banking facilities and other loan granted W G) B E TR T S B A > ME AR
to the Group. AR RS SR T 45 R A B0 B T A B
ZHER o
The Company did not have any pledge of assets as at 31 March 2013 201343 H31H » A Al AT
(2012: Nil). HEH 2 G (20124F © 4E) o
37. FINANCE INCOME AND COSTS 37. BABEWERARA
2013 2012
HK$°000 HK$°000
T FHIC
Finance income g Ten
Interest income on short-term bank deposits S 18R T A R B i 4,037 6,498
Other interest income HAbFE as 11,092 6,069
15,129 12,567
Finance costs BT LA
Interest expenses on borrowings (ERceilsY b (17,380) (13,734)
Amount capitalised on qualifying assets RERERZERMEH 2,130 4,852
(15,250) (8,882)

Finance income — net WS — 34 (121) 3,685
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B S R B G
For the year ended 31 March 2013 #%201343 H31 H IL4F R
38. CAPITAL COMMITMENT 38. HEAKIME
The Group
ALEM
2013 2012
HK$°000 HK$°000
T T T
Capital expenditure contracted for but not provided CATAE AR R 55 & MBS R
for in the consolidated financial statements: B EARR L
Construction of property and land acquisition HEEYIERBEE 1 25,821 37,604
Purchase of property, plant and equipment WEE W - Wk Bttt 770 =
26,591 37,604
The Company did not have any significant capital commitments as at TA20134E3 H31 H » 248/ &) 5if 44T ] &
31 March 2013 (2012: Nil). FEATKYE (20124F © HE) -
39. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 39. HEMEL
The Group as lessee AAE 1 R R LN
As at 31 March 2013, the Group had outstanding commitments for the 201343 H31 H » ZAS4E #5204 T %1 1Y
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases ] JEE iy 2 AS AT TR 888 FH B 2 R AR B ik
which fall due as follows: HAEARSCAPRIEIT
The Group
AL
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’000
Tt THIT
Operating leases which expire: RO EAE AR R i -
Within one year —4ER 8,396 10,329
In the second to fifth year inclusive BE_REHF
(L E R4 12 8,701
8,408 19,030
Leases are negotiated for an average term of one to five years and FRA R E T YA By — 2 TAF > MR

rentals are fixed during the relevant lease period. BAFAIAR 2 4 e A 4 -
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 # % 201343 431 H IF4F %

39.

40.

OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

The Group as lessor

Property rental income earned during the year was HK$40,399,000
(2012: HK$37,444,000).

As at 31 March 2013, the Group had contracted with tenants for the
following future minimum lease payments receivable under non-
cancellable operating leases:

39.

B ML (8

A A 2 R AL
AR A B 2 ) 2 4 U A 540,399,000
HEIT (20124F 1 37,444,000%7T) ©

201343 H31 H > A4 H B F #% A
AL R A T 2 HT A AR Bl B (A
Er

The Group
A

2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$°000
Tt TH#TT
Within one year —4 R 35,714 31,699
In the second to fifth year inclusive 5 R 5 AR (B R AR 15,648 6,772
51,362 38471

FINANCIAL GUARANTEES

The Company issued corporate guarantees to banks in respect of
general banking facilities granted to its subsidiaries. To the extent of
such banking facilities, the borrowing of HK$180,000,000 was drawn
by one of its subsidiaries as detailed in note 32(a) of these financial
statements.

The Group entered into a mortgage collaboration agreement with a
bank in Mainland China under which the Group agreed to indemnify
the bank for any failure by purchasers of the Group’s properties in
CP&J City to repay the borrowings or interest to the bank for the period
before and up to the bank registering the certificates of real estate
ownership as collateral for the borrowings. As at 31 March 2013, the
Group has maximum exposure on the guarantees of HK$85,294,000
(2012: HK$76,297,000).

40.

B AR

AT B L S R R 2 — R AT
PG SEREE ] SRATHE AN A LR - (5L
FESRATRUE N S > Hap—HEA A
EL 42 B K 180,000,000% 7T - #EIEHER
RS R R EE32(a) ©

AT T B [ K e — R ARAT R SR R
TEW R - PRI > AREEE R B W %8R AT

O AR PR R o A AN 4R [ E R R R
W) 3 B R K A SRAT B R R R AE
By 8 B IRHT Z A0 o B a B SRR
AR R R o R ) SRAT R A o
20134F3 31 H » AHE [ 5 oK AR 78 45 3R
7485,294,000% JC (20124F : 76,297,000
JG) e
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 #%201343 H31 H IL4F R

40.

41.

FINANCIAL GUARANTEES (CONTINUED)

As at 31 March, 2013, certain investment properties with carrying
amount of RMB22,818,000 (equivalent to HK$28,066,000) have been
pledged to a PRC bank to secure a loan granted by the PRC bank to an
independent third party.

The directors are of the view that the fair values of these financial
guarantees are not significant.

Save as disclosed above, the Group and the Company had no other
significant contingent liabilities as at 31 March 2013 (2012: Nil).

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed in the board meeting of
the Company held on 23 November 2012, the Group entered into a
sale and purchase agreement with a PRC third party to dispose of the
entire equity interest held by the Group in Eternal Noble Limited and
its subsidiaries (the “Disposal Group) together with the shareholder’s
loan at an aggregate consideration of HK$194.3 million. The Disposal
Group was originally established by the Group for the purpose of
developing a mirco credit business in the PRC. As disclosed in the
Company’s announcement dated 30 April 2012, the proposed strategic
co-operation agreement with an independent third party to establish
the micro credit business was subsequently terminated. The disposal of
subsidiaries established was completed on 18 December 2012.

40.

41.

W E 5 IR (4)
201343 H31 H » BRm A R H
22,818,0007T (A 174 28,066,000%5 7T ) 1)
FTHREY O T — B P B RAT
DIBUAS 3% B SRA TR T — 2 B 5 =
Y EEK o

R M I MBI R 2 A (AR E
t o

Wi B SCHT I ER & 0 > AR SE M L AR A | R
20134F-3 H 31 H olf7 4 HoAth B K sk 9K A &
(20124F : 4) -

i B BB 2 W)

RIE20124E11 23 H 2 AR A RIEH & &
TR A A R AN AR [ B
9 =T OLE E Wk o B AR R
Eternal Noble Limited 5 FFff &2 &) (I
B REZ ITA MR > DR
o AUE A 3L 194,300,0009 7T o A4
B E A A > R T A B
JE/NREERTECERS o SINAR A | 20124F
430 H Byt B bk #E > BB N A
HEERs > B — WL = RIS 2 ek
B A 1R W ek e iR B A 1k - B R
S MM EAFR20124E12 H 18 H 52, -
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5h A IS R B T
For the year ended 31 March 2013 # % 201343 H31 H IL4F R
41. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 41. WS AW ()
The net assets of the Disposal Group at the date of disposal were as R B A A B TR (E A0
follows: I
2013
HK$’000
T
Net assets of the Disposal Group disposed of: T S A A R
Cash and cash equivalents B R B 518 197,341
Trade and other payables JREAST 5 3 B A R A+ iRk 99)
Income tax liabilities RESTREYi (131)
197,111
Accumulated translation reserves BETRE LA 3
197,114
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries (Note 10) H S BB 3 v 2 e 4 (FEE10) (2,814)
194,300
Satisfied by: F AR 7 AT
Cash consideration received by the Group AL E L B A A 194,300
Net cash outflow arising on disposal: B 2 B A AR
Cash consideration B HE 194,300
Bank balances and cash disposed of OB 2 SRAT A i M B4 (197,341)

(3,041)




140

MAN SANG INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2013

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B U A I

For the year ended 31 March 2013 #%201343 H31 H IL4F R

42.

TRANSACTIONS WITH NON-CONTROLLING 42, BIEERRAER AR 5
INTERESTS
Acquisition of additional interest in a subsidiary W B B G 2 ) W B AR A
On 3 January 2013, the Group completed an acquisition of an additional 201341 H3 H > 7S 46 [ 58 A i 1
7% of the issued shares of China Pearls and Jewellery City Holdings [ 5 B T R A BR A &) ([ R B 5
Limited (“CPJ HK”) at a consideration of HK$28,400,000. The BERE I ) FINT%E AT R BEE
carrying amount of the non-controlling interests in CPJ HK on the date FRAE %45 28,400,000 7T o iU i H A
of acquisition was HK$42,748,000. The Group recognised a decrease rh B R R TR B Ak 0 JE 2 R RE 25 AR M
in non-controlling interests of HK$24,969,000 and an increase in equity £542,748,000%5 70 o A4 [ Al B IF 45 A%
attributable to owners of the Company of HK$14,348,000. The effect of E 35 3800 24,969,000 7 75 A4 )
changes in the ownership interest of CPJ HK on the equity attributable A NJE AL HE 35 18 014,348,000 7T © 4F
to owners of the Company during the year is summarised as follows: W B R TR E R A A\ AR A )
SPAS FFEA N Ak HE i 1 2 ZBEAME 2t
o
As at 31 March
R3A31H
2013 2012
HK$°000 HK$°000
T T
Carrying amount of non-controlling interests acquired I SO e 5 i R 42,748 =
Consideration paid to non-controlling interests SN R SRR A R (28,400) -
Excess of consideration paid recognised within equity R RR A TR Y LA R E 14,348 -

There were no transactions with non-controlling interests in 2012.

Effects of transactions with non-controlling interests on the equity
attributable to owners of the Company for the year ended 31 March
2013:

JR20124F - Sl 4 B I 22 S M i 19 52 B 9%
dz o

5L IF 42 L 25 19 38 22 AR 8 W) 22013
3 H 31 H IR A ARG HE 55 1 52
7B .

=

HKS$°000
Tt
Total comprehensive income for the period attributable to ENNIEIE 7 2 DN E TN
owners of the Company AT AL 2 AR 57,691
Changes in equity attributable to owners of the Company arising from i %t J&§ /& 7 BH /M £ 28 A= 1)
acquisition of additional interests in subsidiary E/NCIET ZEDN R i B w0 14,348

72,039
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 # % 201343 H31 H IL4F R
43. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 43. BPDEALZRS
(a) Key management compensation (a) FEEMABZHM
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’000
Ti#o THTT
Salaries, wages and other benefits e TE R HAMMAER 11,136 16,648
Pension costs-defined contribution plans and social #&# 4 fitEks ] &
security costs FEE R AR 53 55
Share options expenses T A B S 379 1,384
11,568 18,087
(b) The Group entered into the following material related () AEEELSUTERRMEA
party transactions, which were carried out in the L5 » WERG JIRALE
ordinary course of the Group’s business. Bz — e R AT -
2013 2012
Related party relationship Nature of transaction HK$’000 HK$°000
B 2\ B % o EE T T T
An entity which is significantly influenced by Reimbursement of rental charges
a key management personnel of the Company paid on behalf
ARREEERMARHEATRPEN AW WS AT 2 A 1,828 1,822
Save as disclosed in the consolidated financial statements, there BT & A B e i B i 2 1

were no other significant related party transactions. S 4 A FE R BN 22 5 -
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 #%201343 H31 H IL4F R

44.

45.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

The Group participates in a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF
Scheme”) for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The assets of
the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group, in funds
under the control of an independent trustee. The Group contributes
5% of relevant payroll costs to the MPF Scheme, which contribution
is matched by employees. The monthly contributions of each of the
employer and the employee are subject to a cap of HK$1,000 and such
cap has been revised to HK$1,250 since 1 June 2012, and thereafter
contributions are voluntary.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC are members of
a state-managed retirement benefits scheme being operated by the local
PRC government. The subsidiaries are required to contribute 10% to
15% of the average basic salary to the retirement benefits scheme to
fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect to the
retirement benefits scheme is to make the specified contributions.

The total cost charged to the consolidated income statement of
HK$3,801,000 (2012: HK$3,452,000) represents contributions payable
to these schemes by the Group in respect of the current accounting
period.

EVENT AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

On 15 May 2013, the Group received a written notice from Zhuji
Land Resources Bureau confirming that the bid made by the Group of
RMB62,700,000 for the land use right for the land located in Zhuji, the
PRC, through a transfer by public listing process was successful. The
Group entered into the land transfer contract with Zhuji Land Resources
Bureau and fully paid the Land Transfer Price on 4 June 2013.

44.

45.

AR A 5T

A SE B £ T A s A RS A B 25
PN (TR AT ) - miks
FTE 2 & 7E AR AT S A kR
Ao WEAEE [ 2 K Sy R o A4
9] ) i 4 ) SCAE 2 MR A B
T A 2 5% > BLARE B fr AT E A -
B R B g 2 sk ek B IR 5 A
H 1,000 70 K% EBRE H20124F6 H1H
BRI E 11,2509 0 > BRI EEN 5 H A
HERK -

el s N N e = A
[0 DS 4% e 2 [ A AR AR A R T
B2 BB o 5B A F ZE R AR AE A
FHE S AT AR & 2 10% 2 15% >
R AREARME S o SURAAEAFE
M5 > AREE 20— AT 5 AT 48 e it

e
oA °

TE 55 A Mgt 2 P A BR 2 R AR B
3,801,000 7 7 (2012 4F : 3,452,000 #
TG) o Ay AR EE B AR & A K] 2R 1) b gl
FHEE 2 kK -

HHE BB HHE
R20134E5 H 15 H - AL E 3 55 2 it
B0 1 VR R AR T A A o FERRAR AR
9] 48 B N B AR T - LA
62,700,000 70 1% 15 A B 7 BB TH — I -
i b AR RE - AN A2 [0 Bl s R T )
BRI ET S T R A iR 20134F
674 H BB AT 1 A -
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 # % 201343 431 H IF4F %

406.

of excessive length.

Name of subsidiary

W 24 ) 44 1

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

The list below gives the particulars of principal subsidiaries of
the Group which, in opinion of the directors, principally affect the
operating results and net assets of the Group. To give full details of
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars

Place of establishment/ Nominal value

principal place of

46. FEWE A &R
R B T A G AR A
HE FHEA ERRE AR T I E
NEZENE o RGBS > w5 K E A
EIRERH R IR TR o

Percentage Principal activities

of issued of equity FEEH

operations share capital/ attributable
JRor I registered capital to the Group
R C#f17 (note 1)
A TEIE, AL
Rl M A WEAGHE 52 71 43 be
(F5E1)
Arcadia Jewellery Limited Hong Kong Ordinary 100% Trading and manufacturing of
BRI F it HK$500,000 jewellery products
Lyl R BB
500,000%57C
China Pearls and Jewellery International PRC Registered capital 62% Property development and
City Co. Ltd. (note 3) ailt US$30,000,000 investment
wft S T PR BR B A R ) AL E A PR R R AR
(Fit&E3) 30,000,000 7T
Man Hing Industry Development PRC Registered capital 100% Purchasing and processing of
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. (note 3) H HK$29,600,000 pearls and assembling of
FOBLE 3R () A BRA 7 (B 3E3) EALRAES pearl jewellery and property
29,600,000 7T investment
PRI R0 T2 2k K2R A i
IV ES ey
Man Sang Innovations Limited Hong Kong Ordinary 100% Trademark holding
RAERIARAF i HK$5,000 A R
35,0009 7T
Man Sang Jewellery Company Limited Hong Kong Ordinary 100% Trading of pearl products and
RAREFRAA it HK$500 investment holding
Deferred share BRI E 5 KA Gk
HK$500 (note 2)
LRS00 T
TR 500 T
(KtaE2)
Market Leader Technology Limited British Virgin Islands/  Ordinary 100% Investment holding and
Hong Kong US$100 trading of equity securities
) Areid v gl BOEPER AR S5 2L 5
ik 100%7T
Swift Millions Limited Hong Kong Ordinary 100% Property investment
HIRAT R 7 it HKS$5,000 BRI

-9 15,0009 7T
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 #%201343 H31 H IL4F R

46. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 46. FEMIE L ERH(4H)

(CONTINUED)

Notes: B EE -

1. The Company directly holds the interests in Man Sang Innovations 1. RAFHBESAERAER RARAH
Limited and Market Leader Technology Limited. All other interests K Market Leader Technology Limited
shown above are indirectly held by the Company. T hEzs o Ll A HoAb#E 25 5 A

o ) R -

2. The non-voting deferred shares practically carry no rights to dividends 2 A 5 TR R A 1 BT S b A JmE A
or to receive notice of or to attend or vote at any general meeting of the SHIUE S, > 70 RE i BT fa] A5 /A )
company or to participate in any distribution on winding up. MER A& 2k - S ke

ARG EREE - IR & M RAT T
TR AR R I B E -
3. These companies were registered in the PRC as wholly-owned foreign 3. AN T B E R AN S

enterprises. e 30
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TAR M B R
RESULTS
E 3
For the year ended 31 March
BAEIA3LH LR
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
HK$°000 HKS$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HKS$’000
Tt THTT T TH#TT THTT
(restated) (restated) (restated) (restated)
(%8E51) (&8E=5) (% E%1) (K8E51)
Revenue A 461,185 370,236 401,854 339,379 359,734
Profit/(Loss) before income tax ~ FRAT{S R
R A (B8) 112,077 122,209 92,426 (39,557) (189,533)
Income tax (expense)/credit BREGALG AV %) (47,810) (42,112) (29,037) 27,200 84,102
Profit/(Loss) for the year AR (k) 64,267 80,097 63,389 (12,357) (105,431)
Profit/(Loss) attributable to: EHENG R (B1R)
Equity holders of the Company 787\ & R 48,244 54,845 55,077 18,523 (58,235)
Non-controlling interests FEFE IR £ 16,023 25,252 8,312 (30,880) (47,196)
64,267 80,097 63,389 (12,357) (105,431)
Dividend per share BRI
Interim dividend S 1 HK cents 3 HK cents 3 HK cents
1is Al AL - AL -
Special interim dividend 5 A 15 HK cents
\ 153 il - - - -
Proposed final dividend HEEIR A IS 2 HK cents 2 HK cents
‘ 2 ¥l 2l - - -
Proposed special dividend FRIREF R B 20 HK cents
- 2040 = = =
18 HK cents 25 HK cents 3 HK cents
18 il 25%AIl - 3l -
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
& KA
At 31 March
R3A3LH
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
HK$°000 HK$’000 HKS$’000 HK$°000 HKS$’000
Tt THTT THETT THETT TH#TT
(restated)
(KEHE7)
Total assets A 2,001,689 2,373,081 2,108,538 2,074,967 2,083,319
Total liabilities A 998,847 953,811 785,197 861,706 849,208
Non-controlling interests FeHE B £ 139,748 148,694 115,430 95,868 126,742

Equity attributable to equity A8 A RO BEA G HE AR
holders of the Company 863,094 1,270,576 1,207,911 1,117,393 1,129,294

y_
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Below is a schedule of investment properties held by the Group in Hong Kong  j220134E3 A 31 H » AS4E B {7 iR 7 ik K B 2

™, and the PRC as at 31 March 2013: BEYEMRINT
Location Description and Tenure (note) Use Group’s Interest
B WEDE B A (P 3E) 1Bz A £ 1 P A B i
Group 1
WM
19th Floor, Railway Plaza, No. The gross floor area of the property is Office for lease 100%
39 Chatham Road South, Tsim approximately 1,010.78 square metres.
Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong
(6,000/168,000th equal and The property is held under medium lease.

undivided shares of and in the
Remaining Portion of Kowloon
Inland Lot Nos. 10453 & 7700 and
Kowloon Inland Lot No. 8511)

Fis ILHE BAUES LAl HTEHHE 100%
VPR B S R 395E #11,010.78°F 5 K ©
kR 1948

(JLRE M HBESE 10453 50770095 % w42l h I FHAUHFFA -
JUBE R B85 115565 B 168,000
¥4 H AT 4yl

2.6,00013)
Group II
o
20 blocks of Man Sang Industrial City, The property has a total gross floor area  Factories and dwellings 100%
Min Sheng Main Road, Gong Ming of approximately 56,516.93 square for lease
Zhen, Bao An District, Shenzhen, metres.
the PRC
The properties are held under medium
lease.
Hh B I T EAZEL Y )iy BN YRt 100%
B3N #156,516.93F ) K o
R AR Rl B AR T2 ko0 At

2L I AR -
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PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES
FEYE
Location Description and Tenure (note) Use Group’s Interest P
Hu B DL e A 1 (BT ik 24 55 [0 P A e i o
24 shops/booths of Market Centre of ~ The properties have a total gross floor Commercial booths 100%
Phase I, CP&J City in Shanxiahu area of approximately 11,581.1 square and shops for lease
Town, Zhuji, Zhejiang Province, the metres.
PRC
The properties are held under medium
lease.
WL % S ) S AR TH TRI A [EES: I0VTHE L~y 100%
wf RETIT LT I #111,581.1°F 77K ©
2 BB R 2 B R —
35T 5524 M R A ZEY U AR -
Part of Market Centre of Phase I, The properties have a total gross floor Commercial booths 62%
CP&J City in Shanxiahu Town, area of approximately 48,961.6 square and shops for lease
Zhuji, Zhejiang Province, the PRC metres.
The properties are held under medium
lease.
SRl kiRan<) % S 1) S AR TH TRI A [EES: I THE L~y 62%
af RETIT LT 18 #148,961.6°F- 77K ©
2 B R R
SF— I A B T ZEY U AR -
Part of factory buildings of Phase I, The property has a total gross floor area  Factories for lease 62%
CP&J City in Shanxiahu Town, of approximately 22,771.8 square
Zhuji, Zhejiang Province, the PRC metres.
The properties are held under medium
lease.
Sl kiRaN<) 55 ) S K T T A TR 62%
wf BETIT LT I #122,771.8F Ik o

2 TR PR PR Bk
SR T ZAEMFEU T AR
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Bt/
Location Description and Tenure (note) Use Group’s Interest
™ Hu B HEDL B A 1 (BT ik A A [ P A B
Part of composite building of Phase The property has a total gross floor area ~ Commercial building 62%
I, CP&J City in Shanxiahu Town, of approximately 21,235.38 square for lease

Zhuji, Zhejiang Province, the PRC metres.

The properties are held under long lease.

SRl kiRaN<) % S W) S AR TH TRI A [EES: TNy 62%
b BETIT LT I8 #121,235.38°F K o

2 TR PR PR B

SRR A M ZEP DRI AT -

Group IIT

ot |

Industrial Land, Phase I, CP&J City, = The properties has a total site area of Land under 62%
Shanxiahu Town, Zhuji, Zhejiang approximately 35,876.00 square development in

Province, the PRC meters. planning stage

The property is held under medium lease.

B %5 ) SE AR M T A BT B [ B2 62%
it RETIT LT I8 #135,876.00°F- 75 K - B i

2 TR PR PR B

BT ZEY U AR -

Commercial/residential land, Phase I,  The properties have a total site area Land under 62%
CP&J City, Shanxiahu Town, Zhuji, of approximately 18,097.23 square development in

Zhejiang Province, the PRC meters. planning stage

The property is held under long lease.

W WL %S ) S AR i A i A KR | B B 62%
FE BT LN AR #7118,097.23°F- 17k o B Lt

By TSI SERIE il

[LE Fieey bl YR DRBIHAEA -

Notes: [t

Long lease represents the lease of over 50 years; medium lease represents the lease of  EHAFHA) 2 AR ES04E 5 HIFHA 2 AT 102

between 10 years and 50 years. 504 o
Group I — Investment properties held by the Group in Hong Kong B - ARERGEFRSA G YE
Group II - Investment properties held by the Group in the PRC BT - AREEAE PR 2 A

Group III — Investment properties under construction held by the Group in the PRC M AREEAE PR A 2 R E Y
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